

Kansas Register

Vol. 40, No. 19

May 13, 2021

Pages 675-726



In this issue ...

Page

Rates
Pooled Money Investment Board
 Notice of Investment Rates 677

Notices
Kansas Department of Administration – Office of Accounts and Reports
 Notice of Petroleum Storage Tank Release Trust Fund Unobligated Balances..... 677
Kansas State University
 Notice of Intent to Lease Office Space..... 677
Board of Regents Universities
 Notice to Bidders..... 677
Kansas Department of Administration – Office of Procurement and Contracts
 Notice to Bidders for State Purchases 678
City of Lenexa, Kansas
 Notice to Bidders for K-7 and Prairie Star Parkway Interchange Project 678
Kansas Department of Administration – Office of Facilities and Property Management
 Notices of Requested “On-Call” Architectural Services..... 679
 Notice of Requested Architectural Services 680
Kansas Department of Health and Environment
 Notice Concerning Water Pollution Control Permits and Applications 680
 Notice of Hearing on Federal Block Grant 682
Kansas Department of Transportation
 Notice to Consulting Firms for Sign Structure Standards for Overhead Sign Trusses 682
Hyman Brand Hebrew School
 Request for Proposals for Security Systems Vendor 683
Kansas Department for Children and Families
 Request for Proposals for SNAP Food Assistance Outreach..... 684

Bonds
City of Randolph, Kansas
 Notice of Intent to Seek Private Placement General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds 685

Executive Branch
Secretary of State
 Executive Appointments..... 685

Legislative Branch
Legislative Administrative Services
 Legislative Bills and Resolutions Introduced May 3-5 686

New State Laws
Senate Substitute for Substitute for House Bill 2196, concerning employment security; creating the unemployment compensation modernization and improvement council; providing for an audit to be conducted by the council; providing for development of a new unemployment insurance information technology system; membership of the procurement negotiating committee for such system; claimant tax information; website publication of trust fund data; maximum benefit period; charging of employer accounts for benefits paid; employment security board of review and emergency expansion thereof; employer contribution rate determination and schedules; crediting employer accounts for fraudulent or erroneous payments; services performed by petroleum landmen; lessor employment unit employee leasing restrictions; disclosure of information; shared work compensation program; establishing the my reemployment plan providing job search and job matching assistance to claimants and employers; providing for workforce training program availability for claimants; providing for the transfer of certain federal coronavirus relief funds received by the state to the employment security fund; changing the benefit disqualification period for fraud; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022; authorizing certain transfers and imposing certain limitations; establishing a new crime of unemployment insurance fraud with an enhanced penalty; providing for voluntary identity verification by claimants through participating law enforcement agencies; creating the legislative employment security fund..... 687

The Kansas Register (USPS 0662-190) is an official publication of the state of Kansas, published by authority of K.S.A. 75-430. The Kansas Register is published weekly and a cumulative index is published annually by the Kansas Secretary of State. One-year subscriptions are \$80 (Kansas residents must include applicable state and local sales tax). Single copies, if available, may be purchased for \$2. **Periodicals postage paid at Topeka, Kansas.**

POSTMASTER: Send change of address form to Kansas Register, Secretary of State, 1st Floor, Memorial Hall, 120 SW 10th Ave., Topeka, KS 66612-1594.

© Kansas Secretary of State 2020. Reproduction of the publication in its entirety or for commercial purposes is prohibited without prior permission. Official enactments of the Kansas Legislature and proposed and adopted administrative regulations of state agencies may be reproduced in any form without permission.

Hard copy subscription information and current and back issues of the Kansas Register (PDF Format) can be found at the following link: <http://www.sos.ks.gov/publications/kansas-register.html>.

Register Office:
 1st Floor, Memorial Hall
 785-368-8095
kansasregister@ks.gov



Published by
 Scott Schwab
 Secretary of State
 1st Floor, Memorial Hall
 120 SW 10th Ave.
 Topeka, KS 66612-1594
 785-296-4564
www.sos.ks.gov

Cover Artwork: Green Wheat, Rice County
 Photo by Todd Caywood

Regulations

911 Coordinating Council
 Notice of Hearing on Proposed Administrative Regulations.....719

Kansas Department of Revenue
 Notice of Hearing on Proposed Administrative Regulation720

Kansas Department for Aging and Disability Services
 Notice of Hearing on Economic Impact of Proposed Administrative Regulations720

Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks and Tourism
 Permanent Administrative Regulations.....721

Index to administrative regulations.....722

State of Kansas

Pooled Money Investment Board

Notice of Investment Rates

The following rates are published in accordance with K.S.A. 75-4210. These rates and their uses are defined in K.S.A. 12-1675(b)(c)(d) and K.S.A. 12-1675a(g).

Effective 5-10-21 through 5-16-21

Term	Rate
1-89 days	0.06%
3 months	0.01%
6 months	0.01%
12 months	0.05%
18 months	0.10%
2 years	0.16%

Scott Miller
 Director of Investments

Doc. No. 049116

State of Kansas

**Department of Administration
 Office of Accounts and Reports**

Public Notice

Under requirements of K.S.A. 65-34,117(c), as amended, records of the Office of Accounts and Reports show the unobligated balances are \$6,629,420.63 in the Underground Petroleum Storage Tank Release Trust Fund and \$1,933,019.73 in the Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tank Release Trust Fund at April 30, 2021.

Jocelyn Gunter, Director
 Office of Accounts and Reports

Doc. No. 049119

State of Kansas

Kansas State University

Notice of Intent to Lease Office Space

Public notice is hereby given, pursuant to K.S.A. 75-430a(d), that Kansas State University intends to lease several office spaces, located at 2005 Research Park Circle, Manhattan, Kansas, near Kansas State University's Manhattan campus. Specifications and further informa-

tion are available by contacting Angela Patrick, Executive Assistant to the Vice President for University Operations, Kansas State University, 109 Dykstra Hall, Manhattan, KS 66506.

Cindy Bontrager
 Vice President for University Operations
 Chief Operating Officer

Doc. No. 049135

State of Kansas

Board of Regents Universities

Notice to Bidders

The universities of the Kansas Board of Regents encourage interested vendors to visit the various universities' purchasing offices' websites for a listing of all transactions, including construction projects, for which the universities' purchasing offices, or one of the consortia commonly utilized by the universities, are seeking information, competitive bids, or proposals. The referenced construction projects may include project delivery construction procurement act projects pursuant to K.S.A. 76-7,125 et seq.

Emporia State University – Bid postings: <https://www.emporia.edu/about-emporia-state-university/business-office/purchasing/>. Additional contact info: phone: 620-341-5134, fax: 620-341-6770, email: purchaseorders@emporia.edu. Mailing address: Emporia State University Purchasing, Campus Box 4021, 1 Kellogg Circle, Emporia, KS 66801.

Fort Hays State University – Electronic bid postings: <http://www.fhsu.edu/purchasing/bids/>. Additional contact info: phone: 785- 628-4251, fax: 785-628-4046, email: purchasing@fhsu.edu. Mailing address: Fort Hays State University Purchasing Office, 601 Park St., Sheridan Hall 318, Hays, KS 67601.

Kansas State University – Bid postings: <https://www.k-state.edu/purchasing/rfq>. Due to Covid-19, Kansas State University will not be accepting paper bids until further notice. Division of Financial Services/Purchasing, 2323 Anderson Ave., Kansas State University, Manhattan, KS 66506. Additional contact info: phone: 785-532-6214, fax: 785-532-5577, email: kspurch@k-state.edu.

(continued)

Pittsburg State University – Bid postings: <https://www.pittstate.edu/office/purchasing/>. Additional contact info: phone: 620-235-4169, email: bstefanoni@pittstate.edu. Mailing address: Pittsburg State University, Purchasing Office, 1701 S. Broadway, Pittsburg, KS 66762.

University of Kansas – Electronic bid postings: <http://www.procurement.ku.edu/>. Due to Covid-19, the University of Kansas will not be accepting paper bids until further notice. KU Purchasing Services, 1246 W. Campus Road, Room 30, Lawrence, KS 66045. Additional contact info: phone: 785-864-5800, fax: 785-864-3454, email: purchasing@ku.edu.

University of Kansas Medical Center – Bid postings: <http://www.kumc.edu/finance/purchasing/bid-opportunities.html>. Additional contact info: phone: 913-588-1117. Mailing address: University of Kansas Medical Center, Purchasing Department, Mail Stop 2034, 3901 Rainbow Blvd., Kansas City, KS 66160.

Wichita State University – Bid postings: <http://www.wichita.edu/purchasing>. Additional contact info: phone: 316-978-3080, fax: 316-978-3738, email: purchasing.office@wichita.edu. Mailing address: Wichita State University, Office of Purchasing, 1845 Fairmount Ave., Campus Box 38, Wichita, KS 67260-0038.

Debbie Redeker
Chair of Regents Purchasing Group
Purchasing Director
Emporia State University

Doc. No. 048393

State of Kansas

Department of Administration Office of Procurement and Contracts

Notice to Bidders

Sealed bids for items listed will be received by the Director of Procurement and Contracts until 2:00 p.m. on the date indicated. For more information, call 785-296-2376:

05/24/2021	EVT0008050	Workers Compensation Insurance for DCF
05/24/2021	EVT0008058	Asphalt Milling and Overlay – Topeka Correctional
05/26/2021	EVT0008056	Crack Seal
05/26/2021	EVT0008057	Boom Slope Mower
06/01/2021	EVT0008047	Helicopter Pilot Training
06/01/2021	EVT0008048	F-150 Responder
06/03/2021	EVT0008052	Asphalt Distributor
06/08/2021	EVT0008061	Noxious Weed Services – NOWA
06/08/2021	EVT0008062	Tree Cutting Services – NOWA
06/08/2021	EVT0008063	Magnesium Chloride, Liquid
06/09/2021	EVT0008053	Kancare Consulting Services

The above referenced bid documents can be downloaded at the following website:

<http://admin.ks.gov/offices/procurement-and-contracts/bid-solicitations>

Additional files may be located at the following website (please monitor this website on a regular basis for any changes/addenda):

<http://admin.ks.gov/offices/procurement-and-contracts/additional-files-for-bid-solicitations>

There are No Bids Under this Website Closing in this Week's Ad

Information regarding prequalification, projects, and bid documents can be obtained at 785-296-8899 or <http://admin.ks.gov/offices/ofpm/dcc>.

Richard Beattie, Director
Office of Procurement and Contracts

Doc. No. 049131

(Published in the Kansas Register May 13, 2021.)

City of Lenexa, Kansas

Notice to Bidders

Sealed bids for K-7 and Prairie Star Parkway Interchange Project (KDOT: 7-46 KA-6027-01) will be accepted by the City of Lenexa, Kansas at the Community Development Department, Lenexa City Hall, 17101 W. 87th St. Pkwy., Lenexa, KS 66219 until 1:00 p.m. (CST) June 17, 2021, at which time bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at the Lenexa City Hall. Any bid received after the designated closing time will not be considered and will be returned unopened.

All bids shall be submitted to the Community Development Department Customer Service Staff (Main Level) in sealed envelopes addressed to the City of Lenexa, Kansas, Attn: City Clerk, and marked "Bid for: K-7 and Prairie Star Parkway Interchange Project – KDOT: 7-46 KA-6027-01." Copies of plans, specifications, bidding documents, and other contract documents are on file at Drexel Technologies, Inc., 10840 W. 86th St., Lenexa, KS 66214.

Bidders desiring contract documents for use in preparing bids may obtain a set of such documents at the address above. Plans and specifications may be downloaded from the Drexel Technologies, Inc. website at <http://planroom.drexeltech.com/>.

Each bidder will be responsible for ensuring that it has received any and all addenda issued by city in accordance with IB-10 of the instructions to bidders.

Contractors should read and be fully familiar with all contract documents including addenda before submitting a bid. In submitting a bid, the bidder warrants that it has read the contract documents and is fully familiar therewith and that it has visited the site of the work to fully inform itself as to all existing conditions and limitations and shall include in its bid a sum to cover the cost of all items of the work as specified in the contract documents.

No oral telegraphic, telephonic proposals or alterations will be considered. Facsimile transmissions will not be accepted.

The following items must be included in the sealed envelope with the bid:

- a. Bid form;
- b. 5% bid security—bid bond, cashier's check, or certified check (see below); and
- c. Acknowledgment of addenda issued by city.

Each bidder shall file with its bid a bid bond, a cashier’s check, or a certified check drawn on an acceptable bank, made payable to the City of Lenexa, Kansas, in an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the total bid, which shall be retained by the City of Lenexa, Kansas until a contract for the project has been executed. Bid bonds will be returned to the bidders, with the exception of the best and lowest and second best and second lowest responsible bidders, within twenty-one (21) days after their bids are rejected. The bid deposit of the lowest and the second lowest responsible bidders will be returned when the performance bond, maintenance bond, and statutory bond, each in an amount equal to 100% of the contract amount; required insurance certificates and other required documents shall have been furnished and the contract documents have been executed by the successful bidder.

In the event the low bidder is unable to execute the contract, for whatever reason, within the time provided in the Notice of Award, the city may annul the Notice of Award and the bid deposit may be forfeited and the city shall exercise its legal prerogatives, including, but not limited to, enforcement of its rights as to the bid security or specific performance.

The city reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids and to waive any technicalities or irregularities therein. Bids may be modified or withdrawn by written request of the bidder received in the office of city clerk, prior to the time and date for bid opening.

From and after the release of this notice, any party intending to bid on the above referenced project, including their officers, employees, agents, or contractors are specifically prohibited from communicating with any elected or appointed official of the city, directly or indirectly, with regard to the award of the contract for the project listed above, except as specifically authorized by the Instructions to Bidders. Any such unauthorized communication may result in the automatic disqualification of such bidder.

All bidders agree that rejection shall create no liability on the part of the city because of such rejection, and the filing of any bid in response to this notice shall constitute an agreement of the bidder to these conditions.

Jennifer Martin
City Clerk

Doc. No. 049124

State of Kansas
Department of Administration
Office of Facilities and Property Management

Notice of Requested “On-Call” Architectural Services

Notice is hereby given of the commencement of the selection process for “on-call” architectural services for Pittsburg State University. Services are required for restricted (small) projects with a project budget of \$1,000,000 or less. One or more firms will be selected. The contracts will be for three years.

For more information, contact Lindell Haverstic at lhaverstic@pittstate.edu, phone 620-235-4130. Firms interested in providing these services should be familiar with the requirements which can be found in Part

B-Chapter 4 of the Building Design and Construction Manual at the website below.

To be considered, one (1) PDF file of the following should be provided: State of Kansas Professional Qualifications DCC Forms 051-054, inclusive, and information regarding similar projects. These forms may be found at <http://admin.ks.gov/offices/ofpm/dcc/f-and-d>. State of Kansas Professional Qualifications DCC Form 050 for each firm and consultant should be provided at the end of each proposal. Please include your firm name, agency abbreviation, and an abbreviated project name in the title of the PDF document. Proposals should be less than 5 Mb and follow the current State Building Advisory Commission guidelines which can be found in Part B – Chapter 2 of the Building Design and Construction Manual at <http://www.admin.ks.gov/offices/ofpm/dcc/bdcm>. Paper copies and flash drives containing copies of the proposals are not required.

Proposals received after the date and time noted below will not be forwarded to the State Building Advisory Commission for review. If you have questions, please call 785-296-0749. Proposals shall be emailed to professional.qualifications@ks.gov to the attention of Randy Riveland by 2:00 p.m. on or before May 28, 2021.

The State of Kansas, as a matter of public policy, encourages anyone doing business with the State of Kansas to take steps to discourage human trafficking. If prospective bidders/vendors/contractors have any policies or participate in any initiatives that discourage human trafficking, then the prospective bidder/vendor/contractor is encouraged to submit same as part of their bid response.

Frank Burnam, Director
Office of Facilities and Property Management
Doc. No. 049121

State of Kansas
Department of Administration
Office of Facilities and Property Management

Notice of Requested “On-Call” Architectural Services

Notice is hereby given of the commencement of the selection process for “on-call” architectural services for Fort Hays State University. Services are required for restricted (small) projects with a project budget of \$1,000,000 or less. Two or more firms will be selected. The contracts will be for three years.

For more information, contact Dana Cunningham at dacunningham@fhsu.edu, phone 785-628-4424. Firms interested in providing these services should be familiar with the requirements which can be found in Part B-Chapter 4 of the Building Design and Construction Manual at the website below.

To be considered, one (1) PDF file of the following should be provided: State of Kansas Professional Qualifications DCC Forms 051-054, inclusive, and information regarding similar projects. These forms may be found at <http://admin.ks.gov/offices/ofpm/dcc/f-and-d>. State of Kansas Professional Qualifications DCC Form 050 for each firm and consultant should be provided at the end of each proposal. Please include your firm name, agen-

(continued)

cy abbreviation, and an abbreviated project name in the title of the PDF document. Proposals should be less than 5 Mb and follow the current State Building Advisory Commission guidelines which can be found in Part B – Chapter 2 of the Building Design and Construction Manual at <http://www.admin.ks.gov/offices/ofpm/dcc/bdcm>. Paper copies and flash drives containing copies of the proposals are not required.

Proposals received after the date and time noted below will not be forwarded to the State Building Advisory Commission for review. If you have questions, please call 785-296-0749. Proposals shall be emailed to professional.qualifications@ks.gov to the attention of Randy Riveland by 2:00 p.m. on or before May 28, 2021.

The State of Kansas, as a matter of public policy, encourages anyone doing business with the State of Kansas to take steps to discourage human trafficking. If prospective bidders/vendors/contractors have any policies or participate in any initiatives that discourage human trafficking, then the prospective bidder/vendor/contractor is encouraged to submit same as part of their bid response.

Frank Burnam, Director

Office of Facilities and Property Management

Doc. No. 049122

State of Kansas

Department of Administration Office of Facilities and Property Management

Notice of Requested Architectural Services

Notice is hereby given of the commencement of the selection process for architectural programming services for the Kansas Commission on Veteran's Affairs. On March 2, 2021, Kansas Governor Laura Kelly issued Executive Order 21-07 directing the Kansas Commission on Veteran's Affairs to submit an application to the United States Department of Veteran's Affairs, and to the State Veteran's Home Construction Grant Program, for the construction of a new state veteran's home in northeast Kansas. Services will include programming for a new approximately 72-bed Long-Term Care Facility. The site has not been selected and the firm will assist in evaluating potential sites of approximately 25 to 50 acres. The project may be completed in phases and will explore construction management at risk as an alternative delivery method. The selected consultants may be retained to provide full design and construction administrative services pending legislative directive. The project cost is estimated at \$30,000,000.

For more information, contact David Smith at david.smith@ksh.state.ks.us, phone 620-227-2121 ext. 27509.

To be considered, one (1) PDF file of the following should be provided: State of Kansas Professional Qualifications DCC Forms 051-054, inclusive, and information regarding similar projects. These forms may be found at <http://admin.ks.gov/offices/ofpm/dcc/f-and-d>. State of Kansas Professional Qualifications DCC Form 050 for each firm and consultant should be provided at the end of each proposal. Please include your firm name, agency abbreviation, and an abbreviated project name in the title of the PDF document. Proposals should be less

than 5 Mb and follow the current State Building Advisory Commission guidelines which can be found in Part B – Chapter 2 of the Building Design and Construction Manual at <http://www.admin.ks.gov/offices/ofpm/dcc/bdcm>. Paper copies and flash drives containing copies of the proposals are not required.

Proposals received after the date and time noted below will not be forwarded to the State Building Advisory Commission for review. If you have questions, please call 785-296-0749. Proposals shall be emailed to professional.qualifications@ks.gov to the attention of Randy Riveland by 2:00 p.m. on or before May 28, 2021.

The State of Kansas, as a matter of public policy, encourages anyone doing business with the State of Kansas to take steps to discourage human trafficking. If prospective bidders/vendors/contractors have any policies or participate in any initiatives that discourage human trafficking, then the prospective bidder/vendor/contractor is encouraged to submit same as part of their bid response.

Frank Burnam, Director

Office of Facilities and Property Management

Doc. No. 049123

State of Kansas

Department of Health and Environment

Notice Concerning Kansas/Federal Water Pollution Control Permits and Applications

In accordance with Kansas Administrative Regulations 28-16-57a through 63, 28-18-1 through 17, 28-18a-1 through 31 and 33, 28-16-150 through 154, 28-46-7, and the authority vested with the state by the administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, various draft water pollution control documents (permits, notices to revoke and reissue, notices to terminate) have been prepared and/or permit applications have been received for discharges to waters of the United States and the state of Kansas for the class of discharges described below.

The proposed actions concerning the draft documents are based on staff review, applying the appropriate standards, regulations, and effluent limitations of the state of Kansas and the Environmental Protection Agency. The final action will result in a Federal National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Authorization and/or a Kansas Water Pollution Control permit being issued, subject to certain conditions, revocation, and reissuance of the designated permit or termination of the designated permit.

Public Notice No. KS-AG-21-183

Pending Permits for Confined Feeding Facilities

Name and Address of Applicant	Legal Description	Receiving Water
Jeff D. Bina 1915 275th St. Marion, KS 66861	SE/4 of Section 18 T18S, R04E Marion County	Neosho River Basin

Kansas Permit No. A-NEMN-B023

This permit is being reissued for an existing facility with a maximum capacity of 600 head (240 animal units) of swine more than 55 pounds and 750 head (750 animal units) of cattle more than 700 pounds, for a total of 1,350 head (990 animal units) of swine and cattle. There has been no change in the permitted animal units.

Public Notice No. KS-AG-R-21-011/012

Per Kansas Statutes Annotated 65-171d, the following registration(s) has been received for a proposed facility:

Name and Address of Registrant	Legal Description	County
Preheim Ag Wesley Shaw 565 Quail Creek Peabody, KS 66866	NW/4 of Section 17 T22S, R04E	Marion
Name and Address of Registrant	Legal Description	County
Mark and Deborah Allen PO Box 276 Hopkinton, NH 03229	S/2 of NE/4 of Section 29 S/2 of NW/4 of Section 28 T12S, R13E	Wabaunsee

Public Notice No. KS-Q-21-032/036

The requirements of the draft permit public noticed below are pursuant to the Kansas Surface Water Quality Standards, K.A.R. 28-16-28(b-g), and Federal Surface Water Criteria.

Name and Address of Applicant	Receiving Stream	Type of Discharge
Alsop Sand Company, Inc. 105 Industrial Rd. Concordia, KS 66901	Republican River	Process Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. I-LR22-PO02
Federal Permit No. KS0101915

Legal Description: SE¼ of NW¼, S5, T4S, R4W, Republic County, Kansas

Facility Name: Nordman Limestone Quarry

The proposed action is to issue a new State/NPDES permit for an existing facility that has not been previously permitted by KDHE Bureau of Water. This is a limestone quarrying and crushing operation with no rock washing. Outfall 001A1 consists of pit water and stormwater runoff only. In compliance with Kansas and federal law, KDHE has approved an antidegradation review for this new facility for increased concentrations and mass of some pollutants to the receiving stream. The water quality of the receiving stream will not be lowered below the quality necessary to support existing designated uses. The proposed permit contains generic language to protect the waters of the state.

Name and Address of Applicant	Receiving Stream	Type of Discharge
Buffalo, City of PO Box 88 Buffalo, KS 66717	Buffalo Creek	Treated Domestic Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. M-VE03-0002
Federal Permit No. KS0094722

Legal Description: NE¼, SE¼, NE¼, S12, T27S, R15E, Wilson County, Kansas

The proposed permit is to reissue an existing State/NPDES permit to an existing facility. This facility is a three-cell wastewater stabilization lagoon system. The proposed permit contains limits for biochemical oxygen demand, total suspended solids, pH, and ammonia, as well as monitoring for E. coli.

Name and Address of Applicant	Receiving Stream	Type of Discharge
Elk City, City of PO Box 245 Elk City, KS 67344-0245	Elk Creek	Treated Domestic Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. M-VE14-0001
Federal Permit No. KS0045969

Legal Description: NW¼, SE¼, NE¼, S6, T32S, R14E, Montgomery County, Kansas

The proposed action is to reissue an existing State/NPDES permit for an existing facility. This facility is an Imhoff Tank followed by a two-cell wastewater stabilization lagoon system. The proposed permit contains limits for biochemical oxygen demand, total suspended solids, pH, and ammonia, as well as monitoring for E. coli and lead.

Name and Address of Applicant	Receiving Stream	Type of Discharge
Hamilton, City of PO Box 58 Hamilton, KS 66853	Onion Creek via Unnamed Tributary	Treated Domestic Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. M-VE20-0001
Federal Permit No. KS0046001

Legal Description: SE¼, SW¼, NW¼, S1, T24S, R11E, Greenwood County, Kansas

The proposed action is to reissue an existing State/NPDES permit for an existing facility. This facility is a three-cell wastewater stabilization lagoon system. The proposed permit contains limits for biochemical oxygen demand, total suspended solids, pH, and ammonia, as well as monitoring for E. coli.

Name and Address of Applicant	Receiving Stream	Type of Discharge
Moline, City of PO Box 253 Moline, KS 67353	Elk River via Wildcat Creek	Treated Domestic Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. M-VE27-0001
Federal Permit No. KS0027162

Legal Description: SE¼, SW¼, NW¼, S11, T31S, R10E, Elk County, Kansas

The proposed action is to reissue an existing State/NPDES permit for an existing facility. This facility is a three-cell wastewater stabilization lagoon system. The proposed permit contains limits for biochemical oxygen demand, total suspended solids, pH, and ammonia, as well as monitoring for E. coli and lead.

Public Notice No. KS-PT-21-003

The requirements of the draft permit public noticed below are pursuant to the Kansas Administrative Regulations 28-16-82 through 28-16-98, and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Pretreatment Regulation 40 CFR 403.

Name and Address of Applicant	Receiving Facility	Type of Discharge
Great Plains Manufacturing, Inc. 1525 E. North St. Salina, KS 67402-5060	Abilene Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant	Process Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. P-SH01-0001
Federal Permit No. KSP0000029

Facility Name: Great Plains Manufacturing, Inc – Abilene Facility

Facility Location: 1100 NW 8th St., Abilene, KS 67410

The proposed action is to reissue an existing pretreatment permit for an existing facility. This facility manufactures various types of landscape equipment. Regulated wastes consist of wastewater from a conversion coating (phosphating) operation, which consists of an automatic eight-stage washing system. Wastewater is treated with a chemical precipitation system and discharged via Outfall 003A1. Outfalls 001A1 and 002A1 no longer discharge to the city sewer. The proposed permit contains pretreatment limitations for pH, total toxic organics, cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, nickel, silver, zinc, and cyanide.

(continued)

Persons wishing to comment on or object to the draft documents and/or permit applications must submit their comments in writing to the Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) if they wish to have the comments or objections considered in the decision-making process. All written comments regarding the draft documents, application or registration notices received on or before June 12, 2021, will be considered in the formulation of the final determination regarding this public notice. Please refer to the appropriate Kansas document number (KS-AG-21-183, KS-AG-R-21-011/012, KS-Q-21-032/036, KS-PT-21-003) and name of the applicant/permittee when preparing comments.

All comments received will be responded to at the time the Secretary of Health and Environment issues a determination regarding final agency action on each draft document/application. If response to any draft document/application indicates significant public interest, a public hearing may be held in conformance with K.A.R. 28-16-61 (28-46-21 for UIC). A request for public hearing must be submitted in writing and shall state the nature of the issues proposed to be raised during the hearing.

Comments or objections for agricultural related draft documents, permit applications, registrations or actions should be submitted to the attention of Matthew Steele Ph.D., P.E., Section Chief, Livestock Waste Management Section at the KDHE, Bureau of Environmental Field Services (BEFS), 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 430, Topeka, KS 66612. Comments or objections for all other proposed permits or actions should be sent to Michael Beezhold at the KDHE, Bureau of Water, 1000 SW Jackson St., Suite 420, Topeka, KS 66612.

All draft documents/applications and the supporting information including any comments received are on file and may be inspected at the offices of the KDHE. For agricultural related draft documents or applications an appointment can be scheduled, or copies requested by contacting Rachel Hammond, BEFS, Livestock Waste Management Section at 1000 SW Jackson St., Suite 430, Topeka, KS 66612, telephone (785) 296-0076 or email at kdhe.feedlots@ks.gov. For all other proposed permits or actions an appointment can be scheduled, or copies requested by contacting Christopher Zwiener, Bureau of Water, 1000 SW Jackson St., Suite 420, Topeka, KS 66612, telephone 785-296-3056 or email at Christopher.Zwiener@ks.gov. These documents are available upon request at the copying cost assessed by KDHE. Application information and components of plans and specifications for all new and expanding swine facilities are available at <http://www.kdheks.gov/feedlots>. Division of Environment offices are open from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

Lee A. Norman, M.D.
Secretary

Doc. No. 049125

State of Kansas

Department of Health and Environment

Notice of Hearing

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) annually receives federal CDC grant dollars to address national health objectives. This funding provides support for a variety of public health programs, infrastructure, and staff salaries. Each year KDHE is required to submit a work plan outlining proposed objectives and activities for the following federal fiscal year. An advisory committee reviews and provides guidance, and the final draft of the work plan is made available for comment in a public hearing. The public hearing will take place from 10:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. (CST) Wednesday, June 2, 2021 via Zoom Webinar. The meeting is open to the public, but you must register at the following link to attend: https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_3sj1g7sYSz-mBqQXuYsfFg.

The final draft of the work plan will be available to view after May 17, 2021 and will be posted to the KDHE website or may be requested from Cherie Sage at cherie.sage@ks.gov.

Please note, this grant does not address immunizations or response to the COVID-19 coronavirus. (This is covered by a different grant and different Bureau at KDHE.)

Lee A. Norman, MD
Secretary

Doc. No. 049117

State of Kansas

Department of Transportation

Notice to Consulting Firms

The Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT) is seeking qualified consulting engineering firm(s) for the project listed below. Interested consulting firms must: (a) be prequalified by KDOT or otherwise demonstrate qualification in category 221 – Nonstandard Bridge Design. A PDF must be emailed to David Lutgen, P.E., Contracts Engineer at kdot.designcontracts@ks.gov. Responses are to be limited to eight pages, the subject line of the reply email and the file name must read “KA-6173-01 RFP – Firm Name.” RFPs must be received by 12:00 p.m. May 28, 2021 for the consulting firm to be considered.

If a firm is not currently prequalified by KDOT a response may still be submitted. Firms not prequalified must also provide documentation that demonstrates the firm is qualified for each specified category listed in this notice for the project. Firms may use the KDOT prequalification form to provide this documentation. KDOT 1050 Prequalification category definitions (Blue Book) can be found at <http://www.ksdot.org/descons.asp>. All firms doing business with KDOT must be registered and in good standing under the laws of the State of Kansas at the time of contracting and must comply with applicable state and federal laws, rules, and regulations.

Scope of Services to be Performed

KDOT is seeking the services of a consulting firm to provide new sign structure standards for overhead sign

trusses. A consultant will be awarded a contract to provide new sign structure standard details, and a design program. The structures are to be designed to AASHTO LRFD Specifications for Structural Supports for Highway Signs, Luminaires, and Traffic Signals and Interims. The structures are to be designed using steel, using the current KDOT general truss configuration.

Overhead Sign Truss Design and Details shall include:

- Sign structure standard details
- Design Mathcad/spreadsheets in combination with other software to be determined to assist
- Foundation design with software to be determined to assist for site specific conditions
- Designed for Fatigue Category 1
- AASHTO LRFD Design 2015 Plus Interims
- Fatigue Design shall include truck gust, galloping, natural wind
- Design for maximum sign area per structure as well as individual designs
- Utilizing angle webs
 - Minimize the use of transverse welds
 - Simplify details
 - Splice
 - Truss end connection
 - Add box ends to each section

The selected consultant firm will be required to submit standard detail plan sheets, structural calculation package and a design Mathcad/spreadsheets program. Periodic meetings with KDOT forces will also be necessary. The electronic format for the standard details and design program will be required as a deliverable. Review KDOT design policy for the trusses for feasibility.

Anticipated Schedule for Subsequent Events

Request for Proposals (RFPs) are due by 12:00 p.m. (CST) May 28, 2021. Evaluation and ranking of technical proposals on or about June 10, 2020 after which time all firms that submitted will be notified of the ranking. Negotiations with the most highly ranked firm to commence on or about June 21, 2020. Agreement in place and in effect July 12, 2020. RFPs are to be delivered via email to kdot.designcontracts@ks.gov.

Instructions for Proposal

No costs shall be contained in the RFP. The RFP must not exceed eight (8) pages total to address the pertinent topics. Please use the following naming convention for submittal...KA-6173-01 RFP – Firm Name. RFPs submitted will consist of the proposal and a completed and signed Special Attachment No. 7 (“Certificate of Final Indirect Costs”), a completed and signed Special Attachment No. 8 (“Tax Clearance Certificate”), and a completed and signed Special Attachment No. 10 (“Policy Regarding Sexual Harassment”). Subconsultants will need to complete these attachments as well

RFPs shall describe any processes or procedures, including best practices, that will be used to perform tasks and to produce deliverables described above under “Scope of Services to be Performed.” Also, include items such as:

- Project manager/engineer in charge
- History of projects with similar tasks.

- Availability of staff to meet schedule without overtime.
- Familiarity with KDOT standards and content
- Any Subconsultant and their role (if any) that will be performing services on the project

Evaluation Factors

RFPs will be evaluated based on the factors listed below, evenly weighted, to rank the most qualified firm in order of preference as first, second, third, etc. Evaluation factors: 1) the quality and completeness of the response; 2) qualifications and experience of consultant design personnel/manager proposed for services; 3) proposed project approach; 4) availability to respond to the work; and 5) past performance history for similar projects/services for KDOT. The highest ranked firm will be asked to enter into negotiations with KDOT for an agreement. In the event KDOT cannot reach agreement with the ranked firm, it will terminate negotiations with such firm and commence negotiations with the next highest ranked firm, and so on, until either agreement is reached for a satisfactory scope of services for a fair and reasonable price, or KDOT decides to pursue other alternatives.

Exhibits to this RFP

- Special Attachment No. 7 (“Certificate of Final Indirect Costs”)
- Special Attachment No. 8 (“Tax Clearance Certificate”)
- Special Attachment No. 10 (“Policy Regarding Sexual Harassment”)

Contract Terms and Conditions

A standard KDOT agreement for engineering and technical services will be used for this project. Special Attachments for the Kansas “Tax Clearance Certificate,” the “Certification of Final Indirect Costs,” and the Special Attachment No. 10 (“Policy Regarding Sexual Harassment”) will also eventually become attachments to the contract.

Questions about this RFP shall be sent by email to KDOT at kdot.designcontracts@ks.gov.

Calvin E. Reed, P.E., Director
Division of Engineering and Design

Doc. No. 049134

(Published in the Kansas Register May 13, 2021.)

Hyman Brand Hebrew School

Request for Proposals

Introduction

Hyman Brand Hebrew Academy (HBHA) is a private Jewish day school located in Overland Park, Kansas. In 2020, HBHA applied for a grant from the Nonprofit Security Grant Program (NSGP) for security-related systems required to reduce significant risks and vulnerabilities. In July 2020 HBHA was informed that a grant was awarded. HBHA invites all vendors interested in delivering such services to submit a written proposal in accordance with the following information and instructions.

Background

HBHA is a K-12 Jewish day school founded in 1966 by a group of parents who felt strongly about having a Jewish day school education for their children. As a school,

(continued)

HBHA provides a nurturing, collaborative, and joy-filled Jewish environment where students can grow into their best selves. The mission of the school is to prepare students for fulfilling lives as Jews and as honorable, contributing citizens. In the wake of anti-Semitic attacks in local, national, and international communities, the grant will be used to significantly enhance HBHA's entry way.

Scope of Services and Responsibilities of Vendor

The selected vendor will be responsible for providing systems that possess the functional features and capabilities described in subsequent sections below. The vendor will be expected to provide training and on-going support to HBHA designated staff and members so they can effectively activate and operate the system.

Vendors will be expected to tour the building to understand the layout, understand the current capabilities, how the building is used, and areas of concern. Vendors may propose optional or alternative features if such proposals produce an equivalent or better system than those described. HBHA reserves the right to accept or reject any or all such proposed alternatives in preference to the desired system features. Vendors need to keep in mind that the appropriate systems will need to maximize security effectiveness within the amount of available funding.

Vendor Background

The vendor must be an established company with experience in providing security solutions to commercial customers.

Required Capabilities

The desired security systems should address or provide each of the following features:

- Upgrade and/or replace current PA system for K-12 private day school. There are a minimum of 70 locations we would like to ensure we can have consistent communication. This improvement will enhance communication during security events and natural disasters

Vendor Availability

The selected vendor must be responsive to the following minimum criteria to be considered for this proposal:

- The vendor ultimately chosen will be expected to complete the installation of the systems by no later than August 1, 2021

Selection Criteria and Interview Process

An HBHA project committee will review all submitted proposals and will select no less than two (2) vendors to interview based on the following:

- Vendor's knowledge of the subject
- Vendor's ability to understand HBHA's needs
- Vendor's ability to design and install security systems that maximizes building security and available budget
- Positive and constructive reference reports
- Evidence of having performed similar services in the past

Short interviews will be conducted. The project committee will expect the vendors to engage in a question-and-answer session concerning the overall scope of services, processes, and training. This Request for Proposals

(RFP) is the Security Team's approach; however, we realize vendors have expertise in this field and are open to ideas that may better meet the project goals for securing the entrance to HBHA.

Following the interviews, the Project Committee will rank the proposals based on the demonstration and documents submitted plus what was learned during the interview process. HBHA will then engage the top ranked vendor in contract negotiations.

Budget and Contract

HBHA will enter into a contract with the selected vendor. NOTE: The contract and services described will be reviewed with the Kansas Highway Patrol to ensure compliance with the NSGP award. Additionally, HBHA Board of Directors will be required to approve the contract as a part of the award process.

Directions for Submission of RFP

Interested vendors can submit proposals either electronically via email or by hard copy. By email, the proposal should be sent to HBHA Business Office at businessoffice@hbha.edu, or mail/courier to:

Hyman Brand Hebrew Academy: Security Bid
Attn: Business Office
5801 W. 115th St.
Overland Park, KS 66211

Such proposals must show the respondent proposes security systems which reflect the requirements described above, illustrate they have provided services like those specified and include the minimum following information:

- Vendor name and address
- Brief history of company and range of service capabilities
- Name of project director
- No less than three (3) references, including contact information and a brief description of the services provided
- Project cost

The deadline to submit proposals will be 3:00 p.m. May 21, 2021. Questions concerning this RFP should be addressed to Carol Pfau, Executive Assistant, at 913-327-8152 or carolp@hbha.edu.

Additional Requirements

All vendors responding to this RFP shall be subject to and required to comply with all applicable state and federal provisions pertaining to non-discrimination, Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action and other provisions required by the NPSG program.

Airiona Maxwell
Chief Financial Officer

Doc. No. 049127

State of Kansas

Department for Children and Families

Request for Proposals

The Kansas Department for Children and Families (DCF), Economic and Employment Services (EES) announces the release of SNAP Food Assistance Outreach Request for Proposal (RFP). Applicants must successful-

ly communicate a comprehensive approach to conduct program informational activities (outreach) to inform low income households about the availability, eligibility requirements, application procedures, and the benefits of SNAP program. Sealed bids will be accepted no later than 2:00 p.m. (CST) June 6, 2021.

A complete copy of the RFP with details of important dates and timelines may be found at <http://www.dcf.ks.gov/Agency/Operations/Pages/OGC/Grant-RFP.aspx>. Additional files may be located at this website throughout the process so please monitor on a regular basis for changes.

Laura Howard
Secretary

Doc. No. 049133

(Published in the Kansas Register May 13, 2021.)

City of Randolph, Kansas

Notice of Intent to Seek Private Placement General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2021

Notice is hereby given that the City of Randolph, Kansas, (the "City"), intends to seek a private placement of the above referenced bonds. The maximum aggregate principal amount of bonds shall not exceed \$2,000,000. The proposed sale of the bonds is in all respects subject to the City Council passing and approving an ordinance or resolution authorizing the issuance, sale, and delivery of the bonds, and the execution and delivery of all other documents necessary to deliver the bonds and receive payment therefore.

Dated May 13, 2021.

Patricia Booth
City Clerk

Doc. No. 049120

State of Kansas

Secretary of State

Executive Appointments

Executive appointments made by the governor, and in some cases by other state officials, are filed with the secretary of state's office. The following appointments were recently filed with the Secretary of State:

Kansas Senate, 38th District

Ronald Ryckman, Sr., 503 N. Cedar St., PO Box 192, Meade, KS 67864. Succeeds Bud Estes.

Kansas Court of Appeals Judge

Jacy Hurst, Kutak Rock, LLP, 2300 Main St., Suite 800, Kansas City, MO 64108.

Lesley Ann Isherwood, Office of the District Attorney, 18th Judicial District, 1900 E. Morris, Wichita, KS 67211.

Trego County Attorney

J. Curtis Brown, 1216 Motz Ave., Hays, KS 67601. Succeeds Christopher Lyon.

Department of Labor, Kansas

Amber Shultz, 2009 E. 25th Pl., Lawrence, KS 66046. Succeeds Delia Garcia.

Advantage Kansas Coordinating Council

Trent Armbrust, 501 Poyntz Ave., Manhattan, KS 66502.

Jean Clifford, 102 Drury Ln., Garden City, KS 67846.

Alan Cobb, 835 SW Topeka Blvd., Topeka, KS 66612.

Dr. Blake Flanders, 5836 SW Turnberry Ct., Topeka, KS 66614.

James Hale, 8955 E. 38th Terr., Kansas City, MO 64612.

Shellaine Kiblinger, 1783 E. 5th St., Cherryvale, KS 67335.

Dr. Cynthia Lane, 3212 N. 68th Terr., Kansas City, KS 66109.

Matt Lindsey, 1000 Oak Tree Dr., Lawrence, KS 66049.

Ann Mah, 3351 SE Meadowview Dr., Topeka, KS 66605.

Vijay Ramasamy, 15341 Stearns St., Overland Park, KS 66221.

Dr. Randy Watson, 1510 Sunflower Dr., McPherson, KS 67460.

Becky Wolfe, 1951 N. Andover Rd., Andover, KS 67002.

Barbering, Kansas State Board of

Nicole Hughes, 528 N. Poplar St., Wichita, KS 67214. Term expires April 30, 2024. Succeeds Larry Ross.

Civil Service Board, Kansas

Sheryl Gilchrist, 3242 NW 43rd St., Topeka, KS 66618. Term expires March 15, 2025. Reappointed.

Tom Phillips, 1530 Barrington Dr., Manhattan, KS 66503. Term expires March 15, 2025. Succeeds Allen Clark Schmidt.

Credit Union Council, Kansas

Brenda Kliewer, 1401 Northglen, PO Box 825, McPherson, KS 67460. Term expires March 15, 2024. Reappointed.

Alicia Sanchez, 2340 N. Inwood Cir., Wichita, KS 67226. Term expires March 15, 2024. Reappointed.

Dental Board, Kansas

Dr. Vermelle Brown-Ghoston, 4428 SW Wanamaker Rd., Topeka, KS 66610. Term expires April 30, 2025. Succeeds Jarrod Jones.

Dr. Rita Burnett, 10195 Farley St., Overland Park, KS 66212. Term expires April 30, 2025. Succeeds Dr. Stan Wint.

Development Finance Authority, Kansas

Suchitra Padmanabhan, 5100 SW Urish Rd., Topeka, KS 66610. Term expires January 15, 2025. Reappointed.

Examiners in Fitting and Dispensing of Hearing Instruments, Kansas State Board of

Tim Stanton, 380 Fairground Rd., PO Box 56, Ellis, KS 67637. Term expires June 30, 2023. Succeeds Paul Rowden.

Information Network of Kansas Board

Lori Blake, 301 E. Kansas St., Assaria, KS 67416. Term expires October 1, 2022. Succeeds Lucas Goff.

(continued)

Kristy Wilson, 21377 K Rd., Holton, KS 66436. Term expires September 30, 2021.

Kansas State Fair Board

Holly Lofton, 209 N. Main St., Lindsborg, KS 67456. Term expires March 15, 2024. Reappointed.

KANSASWORKS State Board

Janeth Vazquez, 118 S. Cain Ave., Liberal, KS 67901.

Nursing, Kansas State Board of

Lori Owen, 312 N. Main St., Delavan, KS 67449. Term expires June 30, 2025. Succeeds Mandy Karstetter.

Pharmacy, Kansas State Board of

Lucinda Noches Talbert, 4214 N. 121st Terr., Kansas City, KS. Term expires June 30, 2025. Succeeds Cheri Pugh.

William Walden, 2122 N. Cottonwood St., Iola, KS 66749. Term expires June 30, 2025. Reappointed.

Physical Therapy Advisory Council

Sapana Dixit, 22495 W. 113th Pl., Olathe, KS 66061. Term expires June 30, 2024. Succeeds Dr. Ric Baird.

Racing and Gaming Commission, Kansas

Brandon Jones, 901 W. 4th St., Ottawa, KS 66067. Term expires January 15, 2025. Reappointed.

Real Estate Appraisal Board

Ernest Warren, Jr., 1660 S. Arbor Lakes Dr., Wichita, KS 67230. Term expires June 30, 2022. Succeeds James Stallbaumer.

Real Estate Commission, Kansas

Jacqueline Kelly, 13507 E. Ayesbury St., Wichita, KS 67228. Term expires April 30, 2024. Succeeds Connie O'Brien.

Natalie Moyer, 1337 N. White Tail Ct., Wichita, KS 67206. Term expires April 30, 2025. Succeeds Sue Wenger.

Tax Appeals, Kansas State Board of

Virginia Powell, 2795 SW Jewell Ave., Topeka, KS 66611. Term expires January 15, 2024. Succeeds James Cooper.

Kristen Wheeler, 2418 N. Woodridge Cir., Wichita, KS 67226. Term expires January 15, 2025.

Technical Professions, Kansas State Board of

Bonnie Limbird, 2019 W. 71st St., Prairie Village, KS 66208. Term expires June 30, 2025. Reappointed.

University of Kansas Hospital Authority Board of Directors

Mark Uhlig, 11409 El Monte Ct., Leawood, KS 66211. Term expires March 15, 2024. Reappointed.

Scott Schwab
Secretary of State

Doc. No. 049132

State of Kansas

Legislative Administrative Services

Legislative Bills and Resolutions Introduced

The following numbers and titles of bills and resolutions were introduced May 3–5 during the 2021 session of the Kansas Legislature. Full text of bills, bill tracking, and other information may be accessed at <http://www.kslegislature.org/li/>.

House Bills

HB 2454, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to the criminal discharge of a firearm; creating additional violations for discharges near a school and certain projectiles; amending K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 21-6308 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

House Resolutions

HR 6016, A RESOLUTION designating May 3, 2021, as Michael Mosher Day to honor Officer Michael Mosher's life, service and sacrifice, by Representatives Thomas, Anderson, Arnberger, Blex, Borjon, Burris, Carpenter, Clayton, Coleman, Concannon, Croft, Day, Delperdang, Ellis, Eplee, Estes, Featherston, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Gartner, Haswood, Helmer, Highberger, Highland, Hoheisel, Hoye, Jennings, Johnson, Kelly, Long, Mason, Moser, Murphy, Neelly, Neighbor, Newland, Ousley, Owens, Poskin, Proctor, Rahjes, Resman, Ruiz, Sanders, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, Stogsdill, Turner, Waggoner and Wasinger.

HR 6017, A RESOLUTION supporting the full development, funding and implementation of the Heartland Flyer Extension between Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, and Newton, Kansas, by Representatives Ralph, Carlin, Carmichael, Concannon, Curtis, Finney, Francis, Miller, Patton, Probst, Rahjes, S. Ruiz, Sawyer, Schreiber, Tarwater, Toplikar, Victors and Woodard.

Senate Bills

SB 313, AN ACT concerning roads and highways; designating a portion of United States highway 69 as the Senator Tom R Van Sickle memorial highway, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

SB 314, AN ACT reconciling conflicting amendments to certain statutes; amending K.S.A. 66-104, as amended by section 1 of 2021 House Bill No. 2367, 75-5133 and 79-3234 and K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 8-2110, 8-2118, as amended by section 6 of 2021 Senate Bill No. 67, 45-229, as amended by section 12 of 2021 House Bill No. 2390, 58-652, as amended by section 1 of 2021 Senate Bill No. 103, and 60-5508, as amended by section 6 of 2021 Senate Bill No. 283, and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A.22-4514a, as amended by section 1 of 2021 Senate Bill No. 16, 66-104, as amended by section 1 of 2021 House Bill No. 2145, 75-3728c, as amended by section 2 of 2021 Senate Bill No. 16, 75-5133d, 76-721, as amended by section 3 of 2021 Senate Bill No. 16, 79-3233b, as amended by section 4 of 2021 Senate Bill No. 16, and 79-3234d and K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 8-2110b, 8-2118c, 39-1431b, 45-229, as amended by section 5 of 2021 House Bill No. 2162, 45-229, as amended by section 36 of 2021 House Bill No. 2391, 58-652, as amended by section 39 of 2021 Senate Bill No. 106, and 60-5508, as amended by section 3 of 2021 House Bill No. 2126, by Committee on Ways and Means.

Senate Resolutions

SR 1721, A RESOLUTION recognizing 25 years of 529 Education Savings Plans to assist with educating and training our future workforce, and the importance of providing financial empowerment tools to families across Kansas so they may better afford the rising costs of higher education and reduce reliance on student loans, by Senator Sykes.

Doc. No. 049130

State of Kansas

Secretary of State

Certification of New State Laws

I, Scott Schwab, Secretary of State of the State of Kansas, do hereby certify that the following bill is a correct copy of the original enrolled bill now on file in my office.

Scott Schwab
Secretary of State

(Published in the Kansas Register May 13, 2021.)

Senate Substitute for Substitute for
House Bill No. 2196

AN ACT concerning employment security; creating the unemployment compensation modernization and improvement council; providing for an audit to be conducted by the council; providing for development of a new unemployment insurance information technology system; membership of the procurement negotiating committee for such system; claimant tax information; website publication of trust fund data; maximum benefit period; charging of employer accounts for benefits paid; employment security board of review and emergency expansion thereof; employer contribution rate determination and schedules; crediting employer accounts for fraudulent or erroneous payments; services performed by petroleum landmen; lessor employment unit employee leasing restrictions; disclosure of information; shared work compensation program; establishing the my reemployment plan providing job search and job matching assistance to claimants and employers; providing for workforce training program availability for claimants; providing for the transfer of certain federal coronavirus relief funds received by the state to the employment security fund; changing the benefit disqualification period for fraud; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022; authorizing certain transfers and imposing certain limitations; establishing a new crime of unemployment insurance fraud with an enhanced penalty; providing for voluntary identity verification by claimants through participating law enforcement agencies; creating the legislative employment security fund; amending K.S.A. 44-758 and K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-703, 44-704, 44-705, 44-706, 44-709, 44-710, 44-710a, 44-710b, 44-714, 44-719 and 44-757 and repealing the existing sections.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:

New Section 1. (a) (1) There is hereby created the unemployment compensation modernization and improvement council. The council shall consist of 13 members appointed as follows:

(A) Three members who, on account of their vocation, employment or affiliations, may be classed as representative of employers, one of whom shall be selected by the governor, one by the speaker of the house of representatives and one by the president of the senate;

(B) three members who, on account of their vocation, employment or affiliation, may be classed as representative of employees, one of whom shall be selected by the governor, one by the speaker of the house of representatives and one by the president of the senate;

(C) the chairpersons of the standing committees of the senate and the house of representatives to which legislation pertaining to the employment security law is customarily referred, appointed by the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives, respectively;

(D) two members of the senate, one of whom shall be a member of the majority party appointed by the president of the senate and one of whom shall be a member of the minority party appointed by the minority leader of the senate;

(E) two members of the house of representatives, one of whom shall be a member of the majority party appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives and one of whom shall be a member of the minority party appointed by the minority leader of the house of representatives; and

(F) the secretary of labor or a designee of the secretary who has administrative responsibilities with respect to the unemployment insurance compensation system of the department of labor.

(2) Legislative members shall serve during the legislative session in which they are appointed to the council and shall remain members of the legislature in order to retain membership on the council. Vacancies of legislative members during a term shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment only for the unexpired part of the term. The appointing authority for the legislative member may remove the member, reappoint the member or substitute another appointee for the member at any time.

(3) The members of the council shall be appointed and the council shall hold its first meeting within 30 days of the effective date of this act.

(b) All non-legislative members shall serve for three years or until the council is dissolved, whichever is shorter. Vacancies of non legislative members shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment only for the unexpired part of the term. The appointing authority for the member may remove the member, reappoint the member or substitute another appointee for the member at any time.

(c) The council shall be dissolved and the provisions of this section pertaining to the establishment, function and operation of the council shall no longer be in effect after three years from the date of the council's first meeting.

(d) Each member of the council shall be entitled to receive compensation for the member's services, together with the member's travel and other necessary expenses actually incurred in the performance of the member's official duties, in accordance with policies adopted by the council. Members' compensation and expenses shall be paid from the employment security administration fund or any account of the state general fund of the department of labor, as designated by the secretary.

(e) The chairperson of the house of representatives standing committee on commerce, labor and economic development, or a successor committee to which legislation pertaining to employment security law is customarily referred, shall serve as the chairperson of the council when first organized and for the ensuing two years. The chairperson of the senate standing committee on commerce, or a successor committee to which legislation pertaining to employment security law is customarily referred, shall serve as the chairperson of the council for the next two years, and thereafter the office of chairperson shall continue to alternate between the chambers as provided herein.

(f) The council shall examine and recommend changes to the unemployment compensation system to include current limitations, new features and benefits, system enhancements and dynamic, accurate reporting for the benefit of both employers and individuals. The council shall also examine the process by which an individual files a claim for and receives benefits and any changes made to that process after the effective date of this section. The scope of the council's examinations and recommendations shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

(1) The technological infrastructure used to file and process claims and pay benefits and the experience of individuals and employers participating in the process;

(2) system improvements or upgrades that will maximize responsiveness for individuals and employers;

(3) methods for information and data sharing across agency systems related to unemployment compensation to maximize efficiency; and

(4) system improvements or upgrades relating to system integrity by reporting vulnerabilities and recommended system enhancements to include identity verification and protection, social security administration cross-match, systematic alien verification for entitlement, incarceration cross-matches, interstate connection network, internet protocol address and data mining and analytics to detect and prevent fraud. Such data mining and analytics shall include current and future recommendations by the United States department of labor and the national association of state workforce agencies, including suspicious actor repository, suspicious email domains, foreign IP addresses, multi-state cross-match, identity verification, fraud alert system, and other assets provided by the unemployment insurance integrity center.

(g) (1) The council shall conduct an audit that shall examine the effects on the department of labor and the unemployment insurance system of fraudulent claims and improper payments during the period of March 15, 2020, through March 31, 2022, and the response by the department of labor to such fraudulent claims and improper payments during that period. The council shall select an independent firm to conduct the audit. The auditor shall have access to all confidential

(continued)

documents. The scope of the audit shall include, but not be limited to, the amounts and nature of improper payments and fraudulent claims, fraud processes and methods and the possibility of recovery of any improper payments. The audit shall also include, but not be limited to, an evaluation that provides likelihood of a data breach being a contributing factor to any fraudulent payments, improper network architecture allowing a potential breach to have occurred and a timeline of relevant events. The independent firm shall make a preliminary report to the council by May 1, 2022, and a final report by September 1, 2022, that shall be made publicly available by the council. The preliminary report should include, but not be limited to, an evaluation of systems with access to the payment and processing of claims, forensic endpoint images related to the claims and the external perimeter housing the claims systems, as well as an evaluation of the department of labor's response to claims. The council's report, and any subsequent report provided, shall also include information on the progress regarding the secretary's implementation of all program integrity elements and guidance issued by the United States department of labor and the national association of state workforce agencies as described in section 2(e), and amendments thereto. Any confidential information shall be redacted and shall not be made public. The audit shall be paid for by the state, subject to appropriations therefor.

(2) The council may hold an executive session that shall not be public under the Kansas open meetings act for the purpose of hearing and discussing any confidential portions of the audit. The council shall follow the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4319, and amendments thereto, when conducting such an executive session.

(h) The council shall not examine the solvency of the unemployment compensation fund created by K.S.A. 44-710a, and amendments thereto, or changes that would either increase or reduce benefits paid from the fund.

(i) The staff of the legislative research department, the office of revisor of statutes and the division of legislative administrative services shall provide such assistance as may be requested by the chairperson.

(j) (1) The council shall only have access to records of the department of labor that are necessary for the administration and duties of the council. The council shall not have access to any confidential or personal identifying information. The council may request that the secretary of labor, department of labor employee or any private or public employer or employee with information of value to the council appear before the council and testify to matters within the council's purview.

(2) Not later than 14 days after the council's first meeting, the council shall issue an initial report that, at a minimum, describes the state of the process by which an individual files a claim for and receives benefits under the employment security law at the time the report is issued and planned improvements to the process. The council may address other matters within the council's purview in the report.

(3) The secretary of labor shall post all testimony and other relevant materials discussed, presented to or produced for the council on a publicly accessible website maintained by the secretary.

(k) The secretary of labor shall notify the chairperson of the council of any unauthorized third-party access to or acquisition of records maintained by the secretary that are necessary for the administration of the employment security law. The secretary shall provide the notice not more than five days after the secretary discovers or is notified of the unauthorized access or acquisition.

(l) The secretary of labor shall notify the members of the council of any substantial disruption in the process by which applications for determination of benefit rights and claims for benefits are filed with the secretary. The council shall, in cooperation with the secretary, adopt and periodically review a definition of substantial disruption for purposes of this subsection.

(m) (1) The secretary of labor shall, with the assistance of the council:

(A) Develop a written strategic staffing plan to be implemented whenever there is a substantial increase or a substantial decrease in the number of inquiries or claims for benefits and review the plan in accordance with the provisions of subsection (n);

(B) create, in a single place on the website maintained by the secretary, a list of all points of contact by which an applicant for or a recipient of unemployment compensation benefits or an employer may submit inquiries related to the employment security law; and

(C) adopt rules and regulations creating a uniform process through which an applicant for or a recipient of benefits under the employment security law or an employer may submit a complaint related to the service the applicant, recipient or employer received.

(2) In the written strategic staffing plan required under paragraph (1)(A), the secretary shall include an explanation of whether and in what manner the secretary will utilize:

(A) Department employees who do not ordinarily perform services related to unemployment compensation;

(B) employees employed by other state agencies; and

(C) employees provided by private entities.

(n) For purposes of subsection (m)(1)(A), the secretary of labor shall develop the initial written strategic staffing plan and provide such plan to the council, the president of the senate, the speaker of the house of representatives and the governor. The secretary shall review the plan at least once per year. If, after reviewing the plan, the secretary determines that the plan should be revised, the secretary shall revise the plan. After each review of the plan as provided under this subsection, the secretary shall provide the most recent version of the plan to the council, the president of the senate, the speaker of the house of representatives and the governor. The secretary shall post the most recent version of the plan on a publicly accessible website maintained by the secretary.

(o) The council may suggest rules and regulations for adoption by the secretary as necessary to implement the provisions of this section.

(p) The secretary of labor or the secretary's designee shall provide status reports on or before the 15th day and the last day of each month to the council. The reports shall include, but not be limited to, the status of the new unemployment information technology system upgrade timeline, progress, budget and the overall project status. At such time that the new system becomes operational, the reports shall include, but not be limited to, system performance and process updates.

(q) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the employment security law.

New Sec. 2. (a) It is the intent of the legislature that, in order to accomplish the mission of collecting state employment security taxes, processing unemployment insurance benefit claims and paying benefits, the department of labor's information technology system shall be continually developed, customized, enhanced and upgraded. The purpose of this section is to ensure the state's unemployment insurance program is utilizing current technology and features to protect the sensitive data required in the unemployment insurance benefit and tax systems relating to program integrity, system efficiency and customer service experience.

(b) The legislature finds that, as a result of the vulnerabilities exposed in the legacy unemployment insurance system by the COVID-19 pandemic unemployment insurance crisis, a new system shall be fully designed, implemented and administered by the department of labor not later than December 31, 2022. The legislative coordinating council, upon consultation with the unemployment compensation modernization and improvement council established by section 1, and amendments thereto, may extend the deadline to a date certain and may further extend the deadline to another date certain at any time.

(c) The information technology system, technology and platform shall include, but not be limited to, any components as specified and defined by the unemployment compensation modernization and improvement council established by section 1, and amendments thereto, in consultation with the secretary.

(d) The new system shall include, but not be limited to, any features and benefits as specified and defined by the unemployment compensation modernization and improvement council established by section 1, and amendments thereto, in consultation with the secretary.

(e) The secretary shall implement and utilize all program integrity elements, as specified and defined by the unemployment compensation modernization and improvement council established by section 1, and amendments thereto, in consultation with the secretary, including, but not limited to:

(1) Social security administration cross-matching for the purpose of validating social security numbers supplied by a claimant;

(2) checking of new hire records against the national directorate of new hires to verify eligibility;

(3) verification of immigration status or citizenship and confirmation of benefit applicant information through the systematic alien verification for entitlement program;

(4) comparison of applicant information to local, state and federal prison databases through incarceration cross-matches;

(5) detection of duplicate claims by applicants filed in other states or other unemployment insurance programs through utilization of the interstate connection network, interstate benefits cross-match, the state

identification inquiry state claims and overpayment file and the interstate benefits 8606 application for overpayment recoveries for Kansas claims filed from a state other than Kansas;

(6) identification of internet protocol addresses linked to multiple claims or to claims filed outside of the United States; and

(7) use of data mining and data analytics to detect and prevent fraud when a claim is filed, and on an ongoing basis throughout the lifecycle of a claim, by using current and future functionalities to include suspicious actor repository, suspicious email domains, foreign internet protocol addresses, multi-state cross-match, identity verification, fraud alert systems and other assets provided by the unemployment insurance integrity center.

(f) If the unemployment compensation modernization and improvement council becomes inactive or is dissolved and the new information technology system modernization project has been completed, the secretary shall implement and utilize all new program integrity elements and guidance issued by the United States department of labor and the national association of state workforce agencies, including the integrity data hub, within 60 days of the issuance of any such guidance.

(g) The secretary, on a scheduled basis, shall cross check new and active unemployment insurance claims against the cross-check programs described in subsection (e). If the secretary receives information concerning an individual approved for benefits that indicates a change in circumstances that may affect eligibility, the secretary shall review the individual's case and act in accordance with the law.

(h) The department of labor shall have the authority to execute a memorandum of understanding with any department, agency or agency division for information required to be shared between agencies pursuant to the provisions of this section.

(i) The secretary of labor shall adopt rules and regulations necessary for the purposes of carrying out this section. Such rules and regulations shall be adopted within 12 months of the effective date of this act.

(j) The secretary of labor shall provide an annual status update and progress report regarding the requirements of this section to the unemployment compensation modernization and improvement council and the legislative coordinating council.

(k) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the employment security law.

New Sec. 3. (a) The secretary of labor shall include information on an unemployment insurance benefit claimant's initial notice of determination that informs the claimant of the federal and state tax consequences of any unemployment compensation benefits that the claimant may receive. This information shall include an explanation regarding the department of labor income tax withholding agreement form designated as K-BEN 233 or a successor form, tax withholding elections and the tax withholding process and estimated weekly and maximum claim year federal and state tax withholding amounts.

(b) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the employment security law.

New Sec. 4. (a) The secretary of labor shall post trust fund computations and data as required by subsection (b) on a publicly accessible website maintained by the secretary as follows:

(1) The secretary shall post and maintain certified computations and data for each of the most recent 20 fiscal years within 120 days of the effective date of this act; and

(2) for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2021, and each fiscal year thereafter, the secretary shall certify and post the trust fund computations and data for the fiscal year to the website on or before December 1 following the end of such fiscal year.

(b) The computations and data to be posted shall include:

(1) Distributions of taxable wages by experience factor for each state fiscal year including the following information:

(A) The rate group;

(B) the reserve ratio lower limit;

(C) the number of accounts;

(D) the taxable wages by fiscal year;

(E) a summary of active positive eligible accounts with the number of accounts and fiscal year taxable wages;

(F) a summary of active ineligible accounts with the number of accounts and fiscal year taxable wages;

(G) a summary of active negative accounts with the number of accounts and fiscal year taxable wages; and

(H) a summary of terminated and inactive accounts with the number of accounts and fiscal year taxable wages; and

(2) an average high cost benefit rate summary, including:

(A) The average high cost benefit rate currently in effect; and

(B) the benefit cost rate for the fiscal years used to calculate the average high benefit cost rate.

(c) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the employment security law.

New Sec. 5. (1) The secretary of labor and the secretary of commerce shall jointly establish and implement the my reemployment plan as provided in this section. For purposes of this section, "my reemployment plan" means a program jointly established and implemented by the Kansas department of labor and the Kansas department of commerce that provides enhanced reemployment services, including workforce services provided by the department of commerce, to Kansans receiving unemployment insurance benefits. The program shall be available to all claimants except claimants in the shared work program or trade readjustment assistance program or claimants on temporary layoff with a return-to-work date. The program shall be implemented on or before June 1, 2021.

(2) The secretary of labor shall provide the secretary of commerce with the names and contact information of claimants that have claimed three continuous weeks of benefits. The secretary of commerce shall request a resume or work history, a skills list and a job search plan from the claimants and shall offer and provide, when requested, assistance to the claimants in developing the documents or plan through collaboration by the secretary with the Kansas works workforce system. The claimant shall have seven days to respond to the secretary of commerce. The secretary of commerce shall report any failure to respond by the claimant to the secretary of labor.

(3) The secretary of labor shall share labor market information and current available job positions with the secretary of commerce. The secretary of labor may collaborate with Kansasworks or other state or federal agencies with job availability information in obtaining or sharing such information.

(4) The secretary of commerce shall match open job positions with claimants based on skills, work history and job location that is a reasonable commute from the claimant's residence and communicate the match information to the claimant and to the employer. The secretary of labor and the secretary of commerce shall consider whether the claimant or a Kansas employer would benefit from the claimant's participation in a work skills training or retraining program as provided by subsection (b) and, if so, provide such information to the employer, if applicable, and the claimant. Claimants who fail to respond within two weeks after contact by Kansasworks or the department of commerce shall be reported by the secretary of commerce to the secretary of labor.

(5) The secretary of commerce shall facilitate and oversee the claimant and employer interview process. The secretary of commerce and the secretary of labor shall monitor the result of job matches and share information regarding any claimant who did not attend an interview or did not accept a position that was a reasonable match for the claimant's work history and skills and was within a reasonable commute from the claimant's residence. The secretary of commerce shall contact the claimant and report the contact to the secretary of labor. The secretary of labor shall consider whether the claimant has failed to meet work search requirements and if the claimant should continue to receive benefits.

(b) The secretary of commerce shall develop and implement a work skills training or retraining program for claimants in collaboration with the Kansasworks workforce system, the secretary of labor, employers and other state or federal agencies or organizations. The secretary of commerce shall seek to obtain or utilize any available federal funds for the program, and to the extent feasible, may make current work skills training and retraining programs available to claimants. The secretary of labor may allow claimants to participate in such a program offered by the secretary of commerce or by another state or federal agency in lieu of requiring the claimant to meet job search requirements and the requirements of the my reemployment plan until the number of allowed benefit weeks has expired. A claimant shall participate in such a program for not less than 25 hours per week. The secretary of commerce shall monitor claimants who are participating in the program to ensure attendance and progress.

(c) Claimants who participate in the my reemployment plan or the work skills training or retraining program shall meet attendance or progress requirements established by the secretary of commerce to continue eligibility for unemployment insurance benefits. Non-compliant claimants shall be reported by the secretary of commerce to the

(continued)

secretary of labor. The secretary of labor shall disqualify such claimants from further benefits within five business days of receiving the report, unless or until the claimant demonstrates compliance to the secretary of commerce, and shall communicate the disqualification and the reason for the disqualification to the claimant. The secretary of commerce shall report to the secretary of labor when the claimant has reestablished compliance. The secretary of labor may continue benefits or reinstate a claimant's eligibility for benefits upon a showing of good cause by the claimant for the failure to meet attendance or progress requirements or my reemployment plan participation requirements.

(d) The secretary of labor and the secretary of commerce shall provide an annual status update and progress report for the my reemployment plan to the standing committee on commerce, labor and economic development of the house of representatives and the standing committee on commerce of the senate during the first month of the 2022 regular legislative session and the first month of each regular legislative session thereafter.

(e) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the employment security law.

New Sec. 6. Notwithstanding the provisions of chapter 1 of the 2020 Special Session Laws of Kansas, any other statute, any appropriation act or any other provision of this act: (a) For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, on or before July 15, 2021, the director of the budget shall determine the amount of moneys received by the state that are identified as moneys from the federal government for aid to the state of Kansas for coronavirus relief as appropriated in the following acts that are eligible to be used for employment security, may be expended at the discretion of the state, in compliance with the office of management and budget's uniform administrative requirements, cost principles and audit requirements for federal awards, and are unencumbered: (1) The federal CARES act, public law 116-136, the federal coronavirus preparedness and response supplemental appropriation act, 2020, public law 116-123, the federal families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127, and the federal paycheck protection program and health care enhancement act, public law 116-139; (2) the federal consolidated appropriations act, 2021, public law 116-260; (3) the American rescue plan act of 2021, public law 117-2; and (4) any other federal law that appropriates moneys to the state for aid for coronavirus relief. If the state receives any such moneys from the federal government for aid to the state of Kansas for coronavirus relief after July 15, 2021, the director of the budget shall also identify such moneys for the purposes of fulfilling the transfers required by this section.

(b) Of such identified moneys, the director of the budget shall determine in the aggregate an amount equal to \$250,000,000 available in special revenue funds. If such identified moneys in the aggregate are less than \$250,000,000, the director of the budget shall determine the maximum amount available. The director of the budget shall certify the amount so determined from each fund to the director of accounts and reports and, at the same time as such certification is transmitted to the director of accounts and reports, shall transmit a copy of such certification to the director of legislative research. Upon receipt of each such certification, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall immediately transfer an aggregate amount equal to such certification and in the aggregate, an amount equal to \$250,000,000 if available from such funds to the employment security fund (296-00-7056-7200) of the department of labor for the purpose of funding the employment security fund.

(c) Of such identified moneys, the director of the budget shall further determine in the aggregate an additional amount equal to \$250,000,000 available in special revenue funds. If such identified moneys in the aggregate are less than \$250,000,000, the director of the budget shall determine the maximum additional amount available. The director of the budget shall certify the amount so determined from each fund to the director of accounts and reports and, at the same time as such certification is transmitted to the director of accounts and reports, shall transmit a copy of such certification to the director of legislative research. Upon receipt of each such certification, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall immediately transfer an aggregate amount equal to such certification and in the aggregate, an amount equal to \$250,000,000 if available from such funds to the legislature employment security fund of the legislative coordinating council.

(d) Upon a determination of the dollar amount of improper payments by the audit of the department of labor in accordance with section 1(g), and amendments thereto, the unemployment compensa-

tion modernization and improvement council shall report such dollar amount immediately in writing to the division of the budget. Upon receipt of such report, the director of the budget shall certify the dollar amount identified by the audit and transmit a copy of such report and certification to members of the legislative coordinating council and the director of legislative research.

(e) If the amount of improper payments determined by such audit or the amount of any improper payments made during April 1, 2022, through December 31, 2022, as determined by the secretary following the review of the information as provided in K.S.A. 44-710b(e), and amendments thereto, or both such amounts added together, exceed the amounts transferred pursuant to subsections (b) and (c), the secretary shall certify such amount to the director of the budget. The director of the budget shall certify the amount of additional moneys identified under subsection (a) determined to be available from each fund to the director of accounts and reports and, at the same time as such certification is transmitted to the director of accounts and reports, shall transmit a copy of such certification to members of the legislative coordinating council and the director of legislative research. Upon receipt of each such certification, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall immediately transfer an aggregate amount equal to such certification if available from such funds to the legislature employment security fund of the legislative coordinating council.

(f) Upon receipt of any reports or certifications, the legislative coordinating council shall notify the legislative budget committee and forward a copy of such information to the committee. The legislative budget committee shall meet and review such information and shall report such committee's recommendation to the legislative coordinating council. After receiving recommendations from the legislative budget committee, the legislative coordinating council may authorize the transfer moneys in an amount not to exceed the amounts certified of improper payments from the legislature employment security fund to the employment security fund of the department of labor. Such transfers may be approved by the members of the legislative coordinating council, as provided in K.S.A. 46-1202, and amendments thereto, acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation, except that such transfers may also be approved while the legislature is in session.

(g) There is hereby established in the state treasury the legislature employment security fund which shall be administered by the legislative coordinating council. All expenditures from the legislature employment security fund shall be for the purposes of funding the employment security fund for improper payments. All expenditures from the legislature employment security fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the chairperson of the legislative coordinating council or the designee of the chairperson.

(h) As used in this act, "improper payment amounts" or "improper payments" means any payment that should not have been made or that was made in an incorrect amount under statutory, contractual, administrative or other legally applicable requirements and includes any payment to an ineligible recipient.

New Sec. 7. (a) On or before January 31 of each calendar year, the secretary of labor shall transmit to the standing committee on commerce of the senate and the standing committee on commerce, labor and economic development of the house of representatives or any successor committee, a report, based on information received or developed by the department of labor, concerning the employment security trust fund, unemployment benefit claims and employer contributions to the employment security trust fund. Such report shall contain the following information:

(1) The amount of claims for the 12-month period ending on June 30 of the previous calendar year;

(2) the actual and projected amount of claims for the 12-month period beginning on July 1 of the previous calendar year;

(3) the amount of employer contributions for the 12-month period ending on June 30 of the previous calendar year and current employer contribution rates;

(4) the actual and projected amount of employer contributions for the 12-month period beginning on July 1 of the previous calendar year and ending on June 30 of the current calendar year and projected employer contribution rates for the next succeeding calendar year;

(5) the balance of the employment security trust fund on June 30 of the previous calendar year and the current balance of the fund; and

(6) the projected balance of the employment security trust fund on June 30 of the current calendar year and on January 1 of the next succeeding calendar year.

(b) In arriving at the amount of employer contributions to the employment security trust fund pursuant to subsection (a)(3), and the projected amount of employer contributions pursuant to subsection (a)(4), contributions paid or projected to be paid on or before July 31 following the respective 12-month period ending date of June 30 shall be considered.

(c) The secretary may include in the report any recommendations of the secretary regarding changes in contribution rates or the contribution rate tables. If the secretary makes recommendations, the secretary shall include projections of changes to employer contribution rates and to the balance of the employment security trust fund if the secretary's recommendations were adopted by the legislature.

(d) The provisions of this section shall expire on February 1, 2024.

(e) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the employment security law.

New Sec. 8. During the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, on the effective date of this act, no state agency named in this or other appropriation act of the 2021 regular session of the legislature shall expend any moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal years 2021 and 2022 as authorized by chapter 5 of the 2020 Session Laws of Kansas or any appropriation act of the 2021 regular session of the legislature for the purposes of entering into a contract or agreement with any party to make any changes, improvements or upgrades to the technology infrastructure for claims, benefits and system integrity or to the methods for information and data sharing concerning Kansas unemployment benefits unless and until: (a) The unemployment compensation modernization and improvement council, created by section 1, and amendments thereto, has reviewed the information technology system, technology and platform specifications pursuant to the provisions of section 2, and amendments thereto, and made a recommendation to the legislative coordinating council; and (b) the legislative coordinating council has reviewed any such specifications and any such recommendations. Such legislative coordinating council review shall take place within 60 days of the last date of accepting bids on the modernization project. After the requesting state agency receives a report from the legislative coordinating council regarding such council's review, such state agency is authorized to expend all approved moneys lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds during the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022.

New Sec. 9. Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-37,102(b), and amendments thereto, for the purposes of selecting a vendor to perform the unemployment insurance modernization project authorized by section 2, and amendments thereto, the procurement negotiating committee shall be composed of: (a) The director of purchases, or a person designated by the director; (b) the chairperson of the joint committee on information technology pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 46-2101, and amendments thereto; and (c) the secretary of administration, or a person designated by the secretary or, if a procurement involves information technology or services, the executive chief information technology officer or a person designated by the executive chief information technology officer.

New Sec. 10. (a) The secretary of labor shall develop a form for use by claimants to establish their identity before a law enforcement officer of a Kansas law enforcement agency for the purpose of facilitating the receipt of unemployment insurance benefits. The form may be in electronic or paper format and may be transmitted or processed in electronic format if safeguards are made to protect any confidential information of the claimant. Use of the form by a claimant shall not be a requirement to receive unemployment benefits. The form shall be distributed to participating law enforcement agencies upon request and shall be provided to claimants at the time a claim for benefits is submitted. The form shall also be made readily available on the department of labor's website. The form shall be no more than one page in length, include space for the claimant's name, address, phone number if any, email address if any, date of birth and social security number and include instructions for the use of the form for the claimant and the law enforcement agency. The form shall specify permitted identity verification documentation that may be submitted to the law enforcement officer by the claimant to establish the claimant's identity. The permitted forms of identity verification documentation shall be documents to establish

identity or documents to establish both identity and employment authorization acceptable for federal form I-9, employment eligibility verification, pursuant to 8 C.F.R. 274a.2 as in effect on the effective date of this act. The form shall be developed and made available within seven days of the effective date of this act. Law enforcement agencies shall not be required to participate in the provisions of this section.

(b) Upon receipt of the form, a claimant may present the form to a participating law enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the location of the claimant's residence or last known place of employment in Kansas and submit documentation as required by the form for verification by the law enforcement agency. The claimant may present the form to a participating law enforcement agency that does not have jurisdiction over the location of the claimant's residence or last known place of employment if no law enforcement agency with such jurisdiction has agreed to participate and the secretary has approved such submission. If a law enforcement officer of the law enforcement agency examines and finds the documentation submitted by the claimant valid and sufficient to establish the claimant's identity, the law enforcement officer shall complete or verify the form and the law enforcement agency shall submit the form to the department of labor as provided by the instructions.

(c) The secretary shall presume a claimant's identity has been confirmed for purposes of the employment security law upon submission of a properly completed form to the secretary by the law enforcement agency on behalf of the claimant. The presumption may be overcome by direct and credible information to the contrary.

(d) The law enforcement officer, law enforcement agency, the state or any political subdivision of the state that employs a law enforcement officer providing identity verification as provided by this section for the department of labor, shall have immunity from any civil or criminal liability for such verification action if the law enforcement officer acts in good faith and exercises due care. Participation and verification of a claimant's identity as provided by this section by a law enforcement agency or law enforcement officer shall constitute a discretionary function or duty for purposes of the Kansas tort claims act.

(e) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the employment security law.

Sec. 11. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-703 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-703. As used in this act, unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

(a) (1) "Annual payroll" means the total amount of wages paid or payable by an employer during the calendar year.

(2) "Average annual payroll" means the average of the annual payrolls of any employer for the last three calendar years immediately preceding the computation date as hereinafter defined if the employer has been continuously subject to contributions during those three calendar years and has paid some wages for employment during each of such years. In determining contribution rates for the calendar year, if an employer has not been continuously subject to contribution for the three calendar years immediately preceding the computation date but has paid wages subject to contributions during only the two calendar years immediately preceding the computation date, such employer's "average annual payroll" shall be the average of the payrolls for those two calendar years.

(3) "Total wages" means the total amount of wages paid or payable by an employer during the calendar year, including that part of remuneration in excess of the limitation prescribed as provided in subsection (o)(1) of this section.

(b) "Base period" means the first four of the last five completed calendar quarters immediately preceding the first day of an individual's benefit year, except that the base period in respect to combined wage claims means the base period as defined in the law of the paying state.

(1) If an individual lacks sufficient base period wages in order to establish a benefit year in the manner set forth above and satisfies the requirements of subsection (g) of K.S.A. 44-705(g) and subsection (hh) of K.S.A. 44-703(hh), and amendments thereto, the claimant shall have an alternative base period substituted for the current base period so as not to prevent establishment of a valid claim. For the purposes of this subsection, "alternative base period" means the last four completed quarters immediately preceding the date the qualifying injury occurred. In the event the wages in the alternative base period have been used on a prior claim, then they shall be excluded from the new alternative base period.

(2) For the purposes of this chapter, the term "base period" includes the alternative base period.

(continued)

(c) (1) "Benefits" means the money payments payable to an individual, as provided in this act, with respect to such individual's unemployment.

(2) "Regular benefits" means benefits payable to an individual under this act or under any other state law, including benefits payable to federal civilian employees and to ex-servicemen pursuant to 5 U.S.C. chapter 85, other than extended benefits.

(d) "Benefit year" with respect to any individual, means the period beginning with the first day of the first week for which such individual files a valid claim for benefits, and such benefit year shall continue for one full year. In the case of a combined wage claim, the benefit year shall be the benefit year of the paying state. Following the termination of a benefit year, a subsequent benefit year shall commence on the first day of the first week with respect to which an individual next files a claim for benefits. When such filing occurs with respect to a week ~~which that~~ overlaps the preceding benefit year, the subsequent benefit year shall commence on the first day immediately following the expiration date of the preceding benefit year. Any claim for benefits made in accordance with ~~subsection (a) of~~ K.S.A. 44-709(a), and amendments thereto, shall be deemed to be a "valid claim" for the purposes of this subsection if the individual has been paid wages for insured work as required under ~~subsection (e) of~~ K.S.A. 44-705(e), and amendments thereto. Whenever a week of unemployment overlaps two benefit years, such week shall, for the purpose of granting waiting-period credit or benefit payment with respect thereto, be deemed to be a week of unemployment within that benefit year in which the greater part of such week occurs.

(e) "Commissioner" or "secretary" means the secretary of labor.

(f) (1) "Contributions" means the money payments to the state employment security fund ~~which that~~ are required to be made by employers on account of employment under K.S.A. 44-710, and amendments thereto, and voluntary payments made by employers pursuant to such statute.

(2) "Payments in lieu of contributions" means the money payments to the state employment security fund from employers ~~which that~~ are required to make or ~~which that~~ elect to make such payments under ~~subsection (e) of~~ K.S.A. 44-710(e), and amendments thereto.

(g) "Employing unit" means any individual or type of organization, including any partnership, association, limited liability company, agency or department of the state of Kansas and political subdivisions thereof, trust, estate, joint-stock company, insurance company or corporation, whether domestic or foreign including nonprofit corporations, or the receiver, trustee in bankruptcy, trustee or successor thereof, or the legal representatives of a deceased person, ~~which that~~ has in its employ one or more individuals performing services for it within this state. All individuals performing services within this state for any employing unit ~~which that~~ maintains two or more separate establishments within this state shall be deemed to be employed by a single employing unit for all the purposes of this act. Each individual employed to perform or to assist in performing the work of any agent or employee of an employing unit shall be deemed to be employed by such employing unit for all the purposes of this act, whether such individual was hired or paid directly by such employing unit or by such agent or employee, provided the employing unit had actual or constructive knowledge of the employment.

(h) "Employer" means:

(1) (A) Any employing unit for which agricultural labor as defined in subsection (w) ~~of this section~~ is performed and ~~which~~ during any calendar quarter in either the current or preceding calendar year paid remuneration in cash of \$20,000 or more to individuals employed in agricultural labor or for some portion of a day in each of 20 different calendar weeks, whether or not such weeks were consecutive, in either the current or the preceding calendar year, employed in agricultural labor 10 or more individuals, regardless of whether they were employed at the same moment of time.

(B) For the purpose of this subsection (h)(1), any individual who is a member of a crew furnished by a crew leader to perform ~~service services~~ in agricultural labor for any other person shall be treated as an employee of such crew leader if:

(i) Such crew leader holds a valid certificate of registration under the federal migrant and seasonal agricultural workers protection act or substantially all the members of such crew operate or maintain tractors, mechanized harvesting or cropdusting equipment or any other mechanized equipment, ~~which that~~ is provided by such crew leader; and

(ii) such individual is not in the employment of such other person within the meaning of subsection (i) ~~of this section~~.

(C) For the purpose of this subsection (h)(1), in the case of any individual who is furnished by a crew leader to perform ~~service services~~ in agricultural labor for any other person and who is not treated as an employee of such crew leader:

(i) Such other person and not the crew leader shall be treated as the employer of such individual; and

(ii) such other person shall be treated as having paid cash remuneration to such individual in an amount equal to the amount of cash remuneration paid to such individual by the crew leader, either on the crew leader's own behalf or on behalf of such other person, for the ~~service services~~ in agricultural labor performed for such other person.

(D) For the purposes of this subsection (h)(1) "crew leader" means an individual who:

(i) Furnishes individuals to perform ~~service services~~ in agricultural labor for any other person;

(ii) pays, either on such individual's own behalf or on behalf of such other person, the individuals so furnished by such individual for the ~~service services~~ in agricultural labor performed by them; and

(iii) has not entered into a written agreement with such other person under which such individual is designated as an employee of such other person.

(2) (A) Any employing unit ~~which that~~ for calendar year 2007 and each calendar year thereafter: (i) In any calendar quarter in either the current or preceding calendar year paid for ~~service services~~ in employment wages of \$1,500 or more; (ii) for some portion of a day in each of 20 different calendar weeks, whether or not such weeks were consecutive, in either the current or preceding calendar year, had in employment at least one individual, whether or not the same individual was in employment in each such day; or (iii) elects to have an unemployment tax account established at the time of initial registration in accordance with ~~subsection (c) of~~ K.S.A. 44-711(c), and amendments thereto.

(B) Employment of individuals to perform domestic service or agricultural labor and wages paid for such service or labor shall not be considered in determining whether an employing unit meets the criteria of this subsection (h)(2).

(3) Any employing unit for which service is employment as defined in subsection (i)(3) ~~of this section~~.

(4) (A) Any employing unit, whether or not it is an employing unit under subsection (g) ~~of this section~~, ~~which that~~ acquires or in any manner succeeds to: (i) Substantially all of the employing enterprises, organization, trade or business; or (ii) substantially all the assets, of another employing unit ~~which that~~ at the time of such acquisition was an employer subject to this act;

(B) any employing unit ~~which that~~ is controlled substantially, either directly or indirectly by legally enforceable means or otherwise, by the same interest or interests, whether or not such interest or interests are an employing unit under subsection (g) ~~of this section~~, ~~which~~ acquires or in any manner succeeds to a portion of an employer's annual payroll, ~~which~~ is less than 100% of such employer's annual payroll, and ~~which~~ intends to continue the acquired portion as a going business.

(5) Any employing unit ~~which that~~ paid cash remuneration of \$1,000 or more in any calendar quarter in the current or preceding calendar year to individuals employed in domestic service as defined in subsection (aa) ~~of this section~~.

(6) Any employing unit ~~which that~~ having become an employer under this subsection (h) has not, under ~~subsection (b) of~~ K.S.A. 44-711(b), and amendments thereto, ceased to be an employer subject to this act.

(7) Any employing unit ~~which that~~ has elected to become fully subject to this act in accordance with ~~subsection (c) of~~ K.S.A. 44-711(c), and amendments thereto.

(8) Any employing unit not an employer by reason of any other paragraph of this subsection (h), for which within either the current or preceding calendar year services in employment are or were performed with respect to which such employing unit is liable for any federal tax against which credit may be taken for contributions required to be paid into a state unemployment compensation fund; or ~~which that~~, as a condition for approval of this act for full tax credit against the tax imposed by the federal unemployment tax act, is required, pursuant to such act, to be an "employer" under this act.

(9) Any employing unit described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 ~~which that~~ is exempt from income tax under section 501(a) of the code that had four or more individuals in employment for some portion of a day in each of 20 different weeks, whether or not such weeks were consecutive, within either the current or preceding calendar year, regardless of whether they were employed at the same moment of time.

(i) "Employment" means:
 (1) Subject to the other provisions of this subsection, service, including ~~service services~~ in interstate commerce, performed by:

(A) Any active officer of a corporation; or
 (B) Any individual who, under the usual common law rules applicable in determining the employer-employee relationship, has the status of an employee subject to the provisions of subsection (i)(3)(D); or

(C) any individual other than an individual who is an employee under subsection (i)(1)(A) or subsection (i)(1)(B) above who performs services for remuneration for any person:

(i) As an agent-driver or commission-driver engaged in distributing meat products, vegetable products, fruit products, bakery products, beverages ~~¶~~, other than milk), or laundry or dry-cleaning services, for such individual's principal; or

(ii) as a traveling or city salesman, other than as an agent-driver or commission-driver, engaged upon a full-time basis in the solicitation on behalf of, and the transmission to, a principal ~~¶~~, except for side-line sales activities on behalf of some other person), of orders from wholesalers, retailers, contractors, or operators of hotels, restaurants, or other similar establishments for merchandise for resale or supplies for use in their business operations.

For purposes of subsection (i)(1)(C), the term "employment" ~~shall include~~ *includes* services described in paragraphs (i) and (ii) above only if:

(a) The contract of service contemplates that substantially all of the services are to be performed personally by such individual;

(b) the individual does not have a substantial investment in facilities used in connection with the performance of the services ~~¶~~, other than in facilities for transportation); and

(c) the services are not in the nature of a single transaction that is not part of a continuing relationship with the person for whom the services are performed.

(2) The term "employment" ~~shall include~~ *includes* an individual's entire service within the United States, even though performed entirely outside this state if:

(A) The service is not localized in any state;

(B) the individual is one of a class of employees who are required to travel outside this state in performance of their duties; and

(C) the individual's base of operations is in this state, or if there is no base of operations, then the place ~~from which~~ *where* service is directed or controlled is in this state.

(3) The term "employment" ~~shall also include~~ *includes*:

(A) Services performed within this state but not covered by the provisions of subsection (i)(1) or subsection (i)(2) shall be deemed to be employment subject to this act if contributions are not required and paid with respect to such services under an unemployment compensation law of any other state or of the federal government.

(B) Services performed entirely without this state, with respect to no part of which contributions are required and paid under an unemployment compensation law of any other state or of the federal government, shall be deemed to be employment subject to this act only if the individual performing such services is a resident of this state and the secretary approved the election of the employing unit for whom such services are performed that the entire service of such individual shall be deemed to be employment subject to this act.

(C) Services covered by an arrangement pursuant to ~~subsection (f) of K.S.A. 44-714(j)~~, and amendments thereto, between the secretary and the agency charged with the administration of any other state or federal unemployment compensation law, pursuant to which all services performed by an individual for an employing unit are deemed to be performed entirely within this state, shall be deemed to be employment if the secretary has approved an election of the employing unit for whom such services are performed, pursuant to which the entire service of such individual during the period covered by such election is deemed to be insured work.

(D) Services performed by an individual for wages or under any contract of hire shall be deemed to be employment subject to this act if the business for which activities of the individual are performed retains not only the right to control the end result of the activities performed, but the manner and means by which the end result is accomplished.

(E) ~~Service Services~~ performed by an individual in the employ of this state or any instrumentality thereof, any political subdivision of this state or any instrumentality thereof, or in the employ of an Indian tribe, as defined pursuant to section 3306(u) of the federal unemployment tax act, any instrumentality of more than one of the foregoing or any instrumentality ~~which that~~ is jointly owned by this state or a political subdivision thereof or Indian tribes and one or more other

states or political subdivisions of this or other states, provided that such service is excluded from "employment" as defined in the federal unemployment tax act by reason of section 3306(c)(7) of that act and is not excluded from "employment" under subsection (i)(4)(A) of this section. For purposes of this section, the exclusions from employment in subsections (i)(4)(A) and (i)(4)(L) shall also be applicable to services performed in the employ of an Indian tribe.

(F) ~~Service Services~~ performed by an individual in the employ of a religious, charitable, educational or other organization ~~which that~~ is excluded from the term "employment" as defined in the federal unemployment tax act solely by reason of section 3306(c)(8) of that act, and is not excluded from employment under ~~paragraphs (f) through (M)~~ of subsection (i)(4)(I) through (M).

(G) The term "employment" ~~shall include~~ *includes* the ~~service services~~ of an individual who is a citizen of the United States, performed outside the United States except in Canada, in the employ of an American employer ~~¶~~, other than service ~~which that~~ is deemed "employment" under the provisions of subsection (i)(2) or subsection (i)(3) or the parallel provisions of another state's law), if:

(i) The employer's principal place of business in the United States is located in this state; or

(ii) the employer has no place of business in the United States, but:

(a) The employer is an individual who is a resident of this state;

(b) the employer is a corporation which is organized under the laws of this state; or

(c) the employer is a partnership or a trust and the number of the partners or trustees who are residents of this state is greater than the number who are residents of any other state; or

(iii) none of the criteria of ~~paragraphs (i) and (ii) above of this subsection~~ (i)(3)(G)(i) and (ii) are met but the employer has elected coverage in this state or, the employer having failed to elect coverage in any state, the individual has filed a claim for benefits, based on such service, under the law of this state.

(H) An "American employer," for purposes of subsection (i)(3)(G), means a person who is:

(i) An individual who is a resident of the United States;

(ii) a partnership if $\frac{2}{3}$ or more of the partners are residents of the United States;

(iii) a trust, if all of the trustees are residents of the United States; or

(iv) a corporation organized under the laws of the United States or of any state.

(I) Notwithstanding subsection (i)(2) ~~of this section~~, all ~~service services~~ performed by an officer or member of the crew of an American vessel or American aircraft on or in connection with such vessel or aircraft, if the operating office, from which the operations of such vessel or aircraft operating within, or within and without, the United States are ordinarily and regularly supervised, managed, directed and controlled is within this state.

(J) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this subsection (i), ~~service services~~ with respect to which a tax is required to be paid under any federal law imposing a tax against which credit may be taken for contributions required to be paid into a state unemployment compensation fund or ~~which that~~ as a condition for full tax credit against the tax imposed by the federal unemployment tax act is required to be covered under this act.

(K) Domestic service in a private home, local college club or local chapter of a college fraternity or sorority performed for a person who paid cash remuneration of \$1,000 or more in any calendar quarter in the current calendar year or the preceding calendar year to individuals employed in such domestic service.

(4) The term "employment" ~~shall does~~ not include: (A) ~~Service Services~~ performed in the employ of an employer specified in subsection (h)(3) ~~of this section~~ if such service is performed by an individual in the exercise of duties:

(i) As an elected official;

(ii) as a member of a legislative body, or a member of the judiciary, of a state, political subdivision or of an Indian tribe;

(iii) as a member of the state national guard or air national guard;

(iv) as an employee serving on a temporary basis in case of fire, storm, snow, earthquake, flood or similar emergency;

(v) in a position ~~which that~~, under or pursuant to the laws of this state or tribal law, is designated as a major nontenured policymaking or advisory position or as a policymaking or advisory position the performance of the duties of which ordinarily does not require more than eight hours per week;

(continued)

(B) ~~services~~ performed with respect to which unemployment compensation is payable under an unemployment compensation system established by an act of congress;

(C) ~~services~~ performed by an individual in the employ of such individual's son, daughter or spouse, and ~~services~~ performed by a child under the age of 21 years in the employ of such individual's father or mother;

(D) ~~services~~ performed in the employ of the United States government or an instrumentality of the United States exempt under the constitution of the United States from the contributions imposed by this act, except that to the extent that the congress of the United States shall permit states to require any instrumentality of the United States to make payments into an unemployment fund under a state unemployment compensation law, all of the provisions of this act shall be applicable to such instrumentalities, and to services performed for such instrumentalities, in the same manner, to the same extent and on the same terms as to all other employers, employing units, individuals and services. If this state shall not be certified for any year by the federal security agency under section 3304(c) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, the payments required of such instrumentalities with respect to such year shall be refunded by the secretary from the fund in the same manner and within the same period as is provided in ~~subsection (f) of K.S.A. 44-717(h)~~, and amendments thereto, with respect to contributions erroneously collected;

(E) ~~services~~ performed by an arrangement between the secretary and the agency charged with the administration of any other state or federal unemployment compensation law pursuant to which all services performed by an individual for an employing unit during the period covered by such employing unit's duly approved election, are deemed to be performed entirely within the jurisdiction of such other state or federal agency;

(F) ~~services~~ performed by an individual under the age of 18 in the delivery or distribution of newspapers or shopping news, not including delivery or distribution to any point for subsequent delivery or distribution;

(G) ~~services~~ performed by an individual for an employing unit as an insurance agent or as an insurance solicitor, if all such service performed by such individual for such employing unit is performed for remuneration solely by way of commission;

(H) ~~services~~ performed in any calendar quarter in the employ of any organization exempt from income tax under section 501(a) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986~~7~~, other than an organization described in section 401(a) or under section 521 of such code), if the remuneration for such service is less than \$50. In construing the application of the term "employment," if services performed during ½ or more of any pay period by an individual for the person employing such individual constitute employment, all the services of such individual for such period shall be deemed to be employment; but if the services performed during more than ½ of any such pay period by an individual for the person employing such individual do not constitute employment, then none of the services of such individual for such period shall be deemed to be employment. As used in this subsection (i)(4)(H) the term "pay period" means a period~~7~~, of not more than 31 consecutive days; for which a payment of remuneration is ordinarily made to the individual by the person employing such individual. This subsection (i)(4)(H) shall not be applicable with respect to services with respect to which unemployment compensation is payable under an unemployment compensation system established by an act of congress;

(I) services performed in the employ of a church or convention or association of churches, or an organization which is operated primarily for religious purposes and which is operated, supervised, controlled, or principally supported by a church or convention or association of churches;

(J) ~~services~~ performed by a duly ordained, commissioned, or licensed minister of a church in the exercise of such individual's ministry or by a member of a religious order in the exercise of duties required by such order;

(K) ~~services~~ performed in a facility conducted for the purpose of carrying out a program of:

(i) Rehabilitation for individuals whose earning capacity is impaired by age or physical or mental deficiency or injury; or

(ii) providing remunerative work for individuals who because of their impaired physical or mental capacity cannot be readily absorbed in the competitive labor market, by an individual receiving such rehabilitation or remunerative work;

(L) ~~services~~ performed as part of an employment work-relief or work-training program assisted or financed in whole or in part by any federal agency or an agency of a state or political subdivision thereof or of an Indian tribe, by an individual receiving such work relief or work training;

(M) ~~services~~ performed by an inmate of a custodial or correctional institution;

(N) ~~services~~ performed, in the employ of a school, college, or university, if such service is performed by a student who is enrolled and is regularly attending classes at such school, college or university;

(O) ~~services~~ performed by an individual who is enrolled at a nonprofit or public educational institution ~~which that~~ normally maintains a regular faculty and curriculum and normally has a regularly organized body of students in attendance at the place where its educational activities are carried on as a student in a full-time program, taken for credit at such institution, ~~which that~~ combines academic instruction with work experience, if such service is an integral part of such program, and such institution has so certified to the employer, except that this subsection (i)(4)(O) shall not apply to service performed in a program established for or on behalf of an employer or group of employers;

(P) ~~services~~ performed in the employ of a hospital licensed, certified or approved by the secretary of health and environment, if such service is performed by a patient of the hospital;

(Q) services performed as a qualified real estate agent. As used in this subsection (i)(4)(Q) the term "qualified real estate agent" means any individual who is licensed by the Kansas real estate commission as a salesperson under the real estate brokers' and salespersons' license act and for whom:

(i) Substantially all of the remuneration, whether or not paid in cash, for the services performed by such individual as a real estate salesperson is directly related to sales or other output, including the performance of services, rather than to the number of hours worked; and

(ii) the services performed by the individual are performed pursuant to a written contract between such individual and the person for whom the services are performed and such contract provides that the individual will not be treated as an employee with respect to such services for state tax purposes;

(R) services performed for an employer by an extra in connection with any phase of motion picture or television production or television commercials for less than 14 days during any calendar year. As used in this subsection, the term "extra" means an individual who pantomimes in the background, adds atmosphere to the set and performs such actions without speaking and "employer" shall not include any employer ~~which that~~ is a governmental entity or any employer described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 ~~which that~~ is exempt from income taxation under section 501(a) of the code;

(S) services performed by an oil and gas contract pumper. As used in this subsection (i)(4)(S), "oil and gas contract pumper" means a person performing pumping and other services on one or more oil or gas leases, or on both oil and gas leases, relating to the operation and maintenance of such oil and gas leases, on a contractual basis for the operators of such oil and gas leases and "services" shall not include services performed for a governmental entity or any organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 ~~which that~~ is exempt from income taxation under section 501(a) of the code;

(T) service not in the course of the employer's trade or business performed in any calendar quarter by an employee, unless the cash remuneration paid for such service is \$200 or more and such service is performed by an individual who is regularly employed by such employer to perform such service. For purposes of this paragraph, an individual shall be deemed to be regularly employed by an employer during a calendar quarter only if:

(i) On each of some 24 days during such quarter such individual performs for such employer for some portion of the day service not in the course of the employer's trade or business; or

(ii) such individual was regularly employed, as determined under subparagraph (i), by such employer in the performance of such service during the preceding calendar quarter.

Such excluded service shall not include any services performed for an employer ~~which that~~ is a governmental entity or any employer described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 ~~which that~~ is exempt from income taxation under section 501(a) of the code;

(U) service which is performed by any person who is a member of a limited liability company and ~~which that~~ is performed as a member or manager of that limited liability company; and

(V) services performed as a qualified direct seller. The term "direct seller" means any person if:

- (i) Such person:
 - (a) Is engaged in the trade or business of selling or soliciting the sale of consumer products to any buyer on a buy-sell basis or a deposit-commission basis for resale, by the buyer or any other person, in the home or otherwise rather than in a permanent retail establishment; or
 - (b) is engaged in the trade or business of selling or soliciting the sale of consumer products in the home or otherwise than in a permanent retail establishment;
 - (ii) substantially all the remuneration whether or not paid in cash for the performance of the services described in subparagraph (i) is directly related to sales or other output including the performance of services rather than to the number of hours worked;
 - (iii) the services performed by the person are performed pursuant to a written contract between such person and the person for whom the services are performed and such contract provides that the person will not be treated as an employee for federal and state tax purposes;
 - (iv) for purposes of this act, a sale or a sale resulting exclusively from a solicitation made by telephone, mail, or other telecommunications method, or other nonpersonal method does not satisfy the requirements of this subsection;

(W) ~~services~~ services performed as an election official or election worker, if the amount of remuneration received by the individual during the calendar year for services as an election official or election worker is less than \$1,000;

(X) ~~services~~ services performed by agricultural workers who are aliens admitted to the United States to perform labor pursuant to section 1101 (a)(15)(H)(ii)(a) of the immigration and nationality act; ~~and~~

(Y) ~~services~~ services performed by an owner-operator of a motor vehicle that is leased or contracted to a licensed motor carrier with the services of a driver and is not treated under the terms of the lease agreement or contract with the licensed motor carrier as an employee for purposes of the federal insurance contribution act, 26 U.S.C. § 3101 et seq., the federal social security act, 42 U.S.C. § 301 et seq., the federal unemployment tax act, 26 U.S.C. § 3301 et seq., and the federal statutes prescribing income tax withholding at the source, 26 U.S.C. § 3401 et seq. Employees or agents of the owner-operator shall not be considered employees of the licensed motor carrier for purposes of employment security taxation or compensation. As used in this subsection (Y), the following definitions apply: (i) "Motor vehicle" means any automobile, truck-trailer, semitrailer, tractor, motor bus or any other self-propelled or motor-driven vehicle used upon any of the public highways of Kansas for the purpose of transporting persons or property; (ii) "licensed motor carrier" means any person, firm, corporation or other business entity that holds a certificate of convenience and necessity or a certificate of public service from the state corporation commission or is required to register motor carrier equipment pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 14504; and (iii) "owner-operator" means a person, firm, corporation or other business entity that is the owner of a single motor vehicle that is driven exclusively by the owner under a lease agreement or contract with a licensed motor carrier; *and*

(Z) *services performed by a petroleum landman on a contractual basis. As used in this subparagraph, "petroleum landman" means an individual performing services on a contractual basis who is not an individual who is an active officer of a corporation as described in subsection (i)(1)(A) that may include:*

- (i) *Negotiating for the acquisition or divestiture of mineral rights;*
- (ii) *negotiating business agreements that provide exploration for or development of minerals;*
- (iii) *determining ownership in minerals through the research of public and private records;*
- (iv) *reviewing the status of title, curing title defects, providing title due diligence and otherwise reducing title risk associated with ownership in minerals or the acquisition and divestiture of mineral properties;*
- (v) *managing rights or obligations derived from ownership of interests in minerals; or*
- (vi) *unitizing or pooling of interests in minerals. For purposes of this subparagraph, "minerals" includes oil, natural gas or petroleum. "Services" does not include services performed for a governmental entity or any organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, or a federally recognized Indian tribe that is exempt from income taxation under section 501(a) of the code.*

(j) "Employment office" means any office operated by this state and maintained by the secretary of labor for the purpose of assisting persons to become employed.

(k) "Fund" means the employment security fund established by this act, to which all contributions and reimbursement payments required and from which all benefits provided under this act shall be paid and including all money received from the federal government as reimbursements pursuant to section 204 of the federal-state extended compensation act of 1970, and amendments thereto.

(l) "State" includes, in addition to the states of the United States of America, any dependency of the United States, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the District of Columbia and the Virgin Islands.

(m) "Unemployment." An individual shall be deemed "unemployed" with respect to any week during which such individual performs no services and with respect to which no wages are payable to such individual, or with respect to any week of less than full-time work if the wages payable to such individual with respect to such week are less than such individual's weekly benefit amount.

(n) "Employment security administration fund" means the fund established by this act, from which administrative expenses under this act shall be paid.

(o) "Wages" means all compensation for services, including commissions, bonuses, back pay and the cash value of all remuneration, including benefits, paid in any medium other than cash. The reasonable cash value of remuneration in any medium other than cash, shall be estimated and determined in accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by the secretary. Compensation payable to an individual ~~which that~~ has not been actually received by that individual within 21 days after the end of the pay period in which the compensation was earned shall be considered to have been paid on the 21st day after the end of that pay period. Effective January 1, 1986, gratuities, including tips received from persons other than the employing unit, shall be considered wages when reported in writing to the employer by the employee. Employees must furnish a written statement to the employer, reporting all tips received if they total \$20 or more for a calendar month whether the tips are received directly from a person other than the employer or are paid over to the employee by the employer. This includes amounts designated as tips by a customer who uses a credit card to pay the bill. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this subsection (o), wages paid in back pay awards or settlements shall be allocated to the week or weeks and reported in the manner as specified in the award or agreement, or, in the absence of such specificity in the award or agreement, such wages shall be allocated to the week or weeks in which such wages, in the judgment of the secretary, would have been paid. The term "wages" shall not include:

(1) That part of the remuneration ~~which that~~ has been paid in a calendar year to an individual by an employer or such employer's predecessor in excess of \$3,000 for all calendar years prior to 1972, in excess of \$4,200 for the calendar years 1972 to 1977, inclusive, in excess of \$6,000 for calendar years 1978 to 1982, inclusive, in excess of \$7,000 for the calendar year 1983, in excess of \$8,000 for the calendar years 1984 to 2014, inclusive, and in excess of \$12,000 with respect to employment during calendar year 2015, and in excess of \$14,000 with respect to all calendar years thereafter, except that if the definition of the term "wages" as contained in the federal unemployment tax act is amended to include remuneration paid to an individual by an employer under the federal act in excess of \$8,000 for the calendar years 1984-2014, inclusive, and in excess of \$12,000 with respect to employment during calendar year 2015, and in excess of \$14,000 with respect to all calendar years thereafter, wages shall include remuneration paid in a calendar year to an individual by an employer subject to this act or such employer's predecessor with respect to employment during any calendar year up to an amount equal to the dollar limitation specified in the federal unemployment tax act. For the purposes of this subsection (o)(1), the term "employment" shall include service constituting employment under any employment security law of another state or of the federal government;

(2) the amount of any payment ~~including any amount~~ paid by an employing unit for insurance or annuities, or into a fund, to provide for any such payment, made to, or on behalf of, an employee or any of such employee's dependents under a plan or system established by an employer ~~which that~~ makes provisions for employees generally, for a class or classes of employees or for such employees or a class or classes of employees and their dependents, on account of: (A) Sickness or accident disability, except in the case of any payment made to an employee or such employee's dependents, this subparagraph shall exclude from the term "wages" only payments ~~which that~~ are received under a workers compensation law. Any third party ~~which that~~ makes a payment included as wages by reason of this subparagraph (2)(A) shall be treat-

(continued)

ed as the employer with respect to such wages; or (B) medical and hospitalization expenses in connection with sickness or accident disability; or (C) death;

(3) any payment on account of sickness or accident disability, or medical or hospitalization expenses in connection with sickness or accident disability, made by an employer to, or on behalf of, an employee after the expiration of six calendar months following the last calendar month in which the employee worked for such employer;

(4) any payment made to, or on behalf of, an employee or such employee's beneficiary:

(A) From or to a trust described in section 401(a) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 ~~which that~~ is exempt from tax under section 501(a) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 at the time of such payment unless such payment is made to an employee of the trust as remuneration for services rendered as such employee and not as a beneficiary of the trust;

(B) under or to an annuity plan ~~which that~~, at the time of such payment, is a plan described in section 403(a) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986;

(C) under a simplified employee pension as defined in section 408(k)(1) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, other than any contribution described in section 408(k)(6) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986;

(D) under or to an annuity contract described in section 403(b) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, other than a payment for the purchase of such contract ~~which that~~ was made by reason of a salary reduction agreement whether evidenced by a written instrument or otherwise;

(E) under or to an exempt governmental deferred compensation plan as defined in section 3121(v)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986;

(F) to supplement pension benefits under a plan or trust described in any of the foregoing provisions of this subparagraph to take into account some portion or all of the increase in the cost of living, as determined by the secretary of labor, since retirement but only if such supplemental payments are under a plan ~~which that~~ is treated as a welfare plan under section 3(2)(B)(ii) of the federal employee retirement income security act of 1974; or

(G) under a cafeteria plan within the meaning of section 125 of the federal internal revenue code of 1986;

(5) the payment by an employing unit ~~(~~, without deduction from the remuneration of the employee), of the tax imposed upon an employee under section 3101 of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 with respect to remuneration paid to an employee for domestic service in a private home of the employer or for agricultural labor;

(6) remuneration paid in any medium other than cash to an employee for service not in the course of the employer's trade or business;

(7) remuneration paid to or on behalf of an employee if and to the extent that at the time of the payment of such remuneration it is reasonable to believe that a corresponding deduction is allowable under section 217 of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 relating to moving expenses;

(8) any payment or series of payments by an employer to an employee or any of such employee's dependents ~~which that~~ is paid:

(A) Upon or after the termination of an employee's employment relationship because of (i) death or (ii) retirement for disability; and

(B) under a plan established by the employer ~~which that~~ makes provisions for employees generally, a class or classes of employees or for such employees or a class or classes of employees and their dependents, other than any such payment or series of payments ~~which that~~ would have been paid if the employee's employment relationship had not been so terminated;

(9) remuneration for agricultural labor paid in any medium other than cash;

(10) any payment made, or benefit furnished, to or for the benefit of an employee if at the time of such payment or such furnishing it is reasonable to believe that the employee will be able to exclude such payment or benefit from income under section 129 of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 ~~which that~~ relates to dependent care assistance programs;

(11) the value of any meals or lodging furnished by or on behalf of the employer if at the time of such furnishing it is reasonable to believe that the employee will be able to exclude such items from income under section 119 of the federal internal revenue code of 1986;

(12) any payment made by an employer to a survivor or the estate of a former employee after the calendar year in which such employee died;

(13) any benefit provided to or on behalf of an employee if at the time such benefit is provided it is reasonable to believe that the employee will be able to exclude such benefit from income under section 74(c), 117 or 132 of the federal internal revenue code of 1986;

(14) any payment made, or benefit furnished, to or for the benefit of an employee, if at the time of such payment or such furnishing it is reasonable to believe that the employee will be able to exclude such payment or benefit from income under section 127 of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 relating to educational assistance to the employee; or

(15) any payment made to or for the benefit of an employee if at the time of such payment it is reasonable to believe that the employee will be able to exclude such payment from income under section 106(d) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 relating to health savings accounts.

Nothing in any paragraph of subsection (o), other than paragraph (1), shall exclude from the term "wages": (1) Any employer contribution under a qualified cash or deferred arrangement, as defined in section 401(k) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, to the extent that such contribution is not included in gross income by reason of section 402(a)(8) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986; or (2) any amount treated as an employer contribution under section 414(h)(2) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986.

Any amount deferred under a nonqualified deferred compensation plan shall be taken into account for purposes of this section as of the later of when the services are performed or when there is no substantial risk of forfeiture of the rights to such amount. Any amount taken into account as wages by reason of this paragraph, and the income attributable thereto, shall not thereafter be treated as wages for purposes of this section. For purposes of this paragraph, the term "nonqualified deferred compensation plan" means any plan or other arrangement for deferral of compensation other than a plan described in subsection (o)(4).

(p) "Week" means such period or periods of seven consecutive calendar days, as the secretary may by rules and regulations prescribe.

(q) "Calendar quarter" means the period of three consecutive calendar months ending March 31, June 30, September 30 or December 31, or the equivalent thereof as the secretary may by rules and regulations prescribe.

(r) "Insured work" means employment for employers.

(s) "Approved training" means any vocational training course or course in basic education skills, including a job training program authorized under the federal workforce investment act of 1998, approved by the secretary or a person or persons designated by the secretary.

(t) "American vessel" or "American aircraft" means any vessel or aircraft documented or numbered or otherwise registered under the laws of the United States; and any vessel or aircraft ~~which that~~ is neither documented or numbered or otherwise registered under the laws of the United States nor documented under the laws of any foreign country, if its crew performs service solely for one or more citizens or residents of the United States or corporations organized under the laws of the United States or of any state.

(u) "Institution of higher education," for the purposes of this section, means an educational institution ~~which that~~:

(1) Admits as regular students only individuals having a certificate of graduation from a high school, or the recognized equivalent of such a certificate;

(2) is legally authorized in this state to provide a program of education beyond high school;

(3) provides an educational program for which it awards a bachelor's or higher degree, or provides a program ~~which that~~ is acceptable for full credit toward such a degree, a program of postgraduate or postdoctoral studies, or a program of training to prepare students for gainful employment in a recognized occupation; and

(4) is a public or other nonprofit institution.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing provisions of this subsection (u), all colleges and universities in this state are institutions of higher education for purposes of this section, except that no college, university, junior college or other postsecondary school or institution ~~which that~~ is operated by the federal government or any agency thereof shall be an institution of higher education for purposes of the employment security law.

(v) "Educational institution" means any institution of higher education, as defined in subsection (u) ~~of this section~~, or any institution, except private for profit institutions, in which participants, trainees or students are offered an organized course of study or training designed to transfer to them knowledge, skills, information, doctrines, attitudes

or abilities from, by or under the guidance of an instructor or teacher and ~~which that~~ is approved, licensed or issued a permit to operate as a school by the state department of education or other government agency that is authorized within the state to approve, license or issue a permit for the operation of a school or to an Indian tribe in the operation of an educational institution. The courses of study or training ~~which that~~ an educational institution offers may be academic, technical, trade or preparation for gainful employment in a recognized occupation.

(w) (1) "Agricultural labor" means any remunerated service:

(A) On a farm, in the employ of any person, in connection with cultivating the soil, or in connection with raising or harvesting any agricultural or horticultural commodity, including the raising, shearing, feeding, caring for, training, and management of livestock, bees, poultry, and furbearing animals and wildlife.

(B) In the employ of the owner or tenant or other operator of a farm, in connection with the operating, management, conservation, improvement, or maintenance of such farm and its tools and equipment, or in salvaging timber or clearing land of brush and other debris left by a hurricane, if the major part of such service is performed on a farm.

(C) In connection with the production or harvesting of any commodity defined as an agricultural commodity in section (15)(g) of the agricultural marketing act, as amended ~~¶~~ 46 Stat. 1500, sec. 3; 12 U.S.C. § 1141j), or in connection with the ginning of cotton, or in connection with the operation or maintenance of ditches, canals, reservoirs or waterways, not owned or operated for profit, used exclusively for supplying and storing water for farming purposes.

(D) (i) In the employ of the operator of a farm in handling, planting, drying, packing, packaging, processing, freezing, grading, storing, or delivering to storage or to market or to a carrier for transportation to market, in its unmanufactured state, any agricultural or horticultural commodity; but only if such operator produced more than ½ of the commodity with respect to which such service is performed;

(ii) in the employ of a group of operators of farms ~~¶~~, or a cooperative organization of which such operators are members), in the performance of ~~service services~~ described in paragraph (i) ~~above of this subsection (w)(1)(D)~~, but only if such operators produced more than ½ of the commodity with respect to which such service is performed;

(iii) the provisions of paragraphs (i) and (ii) ~~above of this subsection (w)(1)(D)~~ shall not be deemed to be applicable with respect to ~~service services~~ performed in connection with commercial canning or commercial freezing or in connection with any agricultural or horticultural commodity after its delivery to a terminal market for distribution for consumption.

(E) On a farm operated for profit if such service is not in the course of the employer's trade or business.

(2) "Agricultural labor" does not include ~~service services~~ performed prior to January 1, 1980, by an individual who is an alien admitted to the United States to perform service in agricultural labor pursuant to sections 214(c) and 101(a)(15)(H) of the federal immigration and nationality act.

(3) As used in this subsection ~~(w)~~, the term "farm" includes stock, dairy, poultry, fruit, fur-bearing animal, and truck farms, plantations, ranches, nurseries, ranges, greenhouses, or other similar structures used primarily for the raising of agricultural or horticultural commodities, and orchards.

(4) For the purpose of this section, if an employing unit does not maintain sufficient records to separate agricultural labor from other employment, all services performed during any pay period by an individual for the person employing such individual shall be deemed to be agricultural labor if services performed during ½ or more of such pay period constitute agricultural labor; but if the services performed during more than ½ of any such pay period by an individual for the person employing such individual do not constitute agricultural labor, then none of the services of such individual for such period shall be deemed to be agricultural labor. As used in this subsection ~~(w)~~, the term "pay period" means a period of not more than 31 consecutive days for which a payment of remuneration is ordinarily made to the individual by the person employing such individual.

(x) "Reimbursing employer" means any employer who makes payments in lieu of contributions to the employment security fund as provided in ~~subsection (e) of~~ K.S.A. 44-710(e), and amendments thereto.

(y) "Contributing employer" means any employer other than a reimbursing employer or rated governmental employer.

(z) "Wage combining plan" means a uniform national arrangement approved by the United States secretary of labor in consultation with the state unemployment compensation agencies and in which this state

shall participate, whereby wages earned in one or more states are transferred to another state, called the "paying state," and combined with wages in the paying state, if any, for the payment of benefits under the laws of the paying state and as provided by an arrangement so approved by the United States secretary of labor.

(aa) "Domestic service" means any ~~service services~~ for a person in the operation and maintenance of a private household, local college club or local chapter of a college fraternity or sorority, as distinguished from service as an employee in the pursuit of an employer's trade, occupation, profession, enterprise or vocation.

(bb) "Rated governmental employer" means any governmental entity ~~which that~~ elects to make payments as provided by K.S.A. 44-710d, and amendments thereto.

(cc) "Benefit cost payments" means payments made to the employment security fund by a governmental entity electing to become a rated governmental employer.

(dd) "Successor employer" means any employer, as described in subsection (h) ~~of this section, which that~~ acquires or in any manner succeeds to: (1) Substantially all of the employing enterprises, organization, trade or business of another employer; or (2) substantially all the assets of another employer.

(ee) "Predecessor employer" means an employer, as described in subsection (h) ~~of this section~~, who has previously operated a business or portion of a business with employment to which another employer has succeeded.

(ff) "Lessor employing unit" means any independently established business entity ~~which that~~ engages in the business of providing leased employees to a client lessee.

(gg) "Client lessee" means any individual, organization, partnership, corporation or other legal entity leasing employees from a lessor employing unit.

(hh) "Qualifying injury" means a personal injury by accident arising out of and in the course of employment within the coverage of the Kansas workers compensation act, K.S.A. 44-501 et seq., and amendments thereto.

Sec. 12. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-704 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-704. (a) *Payment of benefits.* All benefits provided herein shall be payable from the fund. All benefits shall be paid through the secretary of labor, in accordance with such rules and regulations as the secretary may adopt. Benefits based on service in employment defined in K.S.A. 44-703(i)(3)(E) and (i)(3)(F), and amendments thereto, shall be payable in the same amount, on the same terms and subject to the same conditions as compensation payable on the basis of other service subject to this act except as provided in K.S.A. 44-705(e) and 44-711(e), and amendments thereto.

(b) *Determined weekly benefit amount.* An individual's determined weekly benefit amount shall be an amount equal to 4.25% of the individual's total wages for insured work paid during that calendar quarter of the individual's base period that such total wages were highest, subject to the following limitations:

(1) If an individual's determined weekly benefit amount is less than the minimum weekly benefit amount, it shall be raised to such minimum weekly benefit amount;

(2) if the individual's determined weekly benefit amount is more than the maximum weekly benefit amount, it shall be reduced to the maximum weekly benefit amount; and

(3) if the individual's determined weekly benefit amount is not a multiple of \$1, it shall be reduced to the next lower multiple of \$1.

(c) *Maximum weekly benefit amount.* (1) For initial claims effective prior to July 1, 2015, the maximum weekly benefit amount shall be determined as follows: On July 1 of each year, the secretary shall determine the maximum weekly benefit amount by computing 60% of the average weekly wages paid to employees in insured work during the previous calendar year and shall, prior to that date, announce the maximum weekly benefit amount so determined, by publication in the Kansas register. Such computation shall be made by dividing the gross wages reported as paid for insured work during the previous calendar year by the product of the average of mid-month employment during such calendar year multiplied by 52. The maximum weekly benefit amount so determined and announced for the twelve-month period shall apply only to those claims filed in that period qualifying for maximum payment under the foregoing formula. All claims qualifying for payment at the maximum weekly benefit amount shall be paid at the maximum weekly benefit amount in effect when the benefit year to

(continued)

which the claim relates was first established, notwithstanding a change in the maximum benefit amount for a subsequent twelve-month period. If the computed maximum weekly benefit amount is not a multiple of \$1, then the computed maximum weekly benefit amount shall be reduced to the next lower multiple of \$1.

(2) For initial claims effective on or after July 1, 2015, the maximum weekly benefit amount shall be determined as follows: On July 1 of each year, the secretary shall determine the maximum weekly benefit amount by computing 55% of the average weekly wages paid to employees in insured work during the previous calendar year, but not to be less than \$474, and shall, prior to that date, announce the maximum weekly benefit amount so determined by publication in the Kansas register. Such computation shall be made by dividing the gross wages reported as paid for insured work during the previous calendar year by the product of the average of mid-month employment during such calendar year multiplied by 52. The maximum weekly benefit amount so determined and announced for the 12-month period shall apply only to those claims filed in that period qualifying for maximum payment under the foregoing formula. All claims qualifying for payment at the maximum weekly benefit amount shall be paid at the maximum weekly benefit amount in effect when the benefit year to which the claim relates was first established, notwithstanding a change in the maximum benefit amount for a subsequent 12-month period. If the computed maximum weekly benefit amount is not a multiple of \$1, then the computed maximum weekly benefit amount shall be reduced to the next lower multiple of \$1.

(d) *Minimum weekly benefit amount.* The minimum weekly benefit amount payable to any individual shall be 25% of the maximum weekly benefit amount effective as of the beginning of the individual's benefit year. If the minimum weekly benefit amount is not a multiple of \$1 it shall be reduced to the next lower multiple of \$1. The minimum weekly benefit amount shall apply through the benefit year, notwithstanding a change in the minimum weekly benefit amount.

(e) All claims qualifying for payment at the maximum weekly benefit amount shall be paid at the maximum weekly benefit amount in effect when the benefit year to which the claim relates was first established, notwithstanding a subsequent change in the maximum weekly benefit amount.

(f) *Weekly benefit payable.* Each eligible individual who is unemployed with respect to any week, except as to final payment, shall be paid with respect to such week a benefit in an amount equal to such individual's determined weekly benefit amount, less that part of the wage, if any, payable to such individual with respect to such week that is in excess of the amount that is equal to 25% of such individual's determined weekly benefit amount, and if the resulting amount is not a multiple of \$1, it shall be reduced to the next lower multiple of \$1.

(1) For the purposes of this section, remuneration received under the following circumstances shall be construed as wages:

(A) Vacation or holiday pay that was attributable to a week that the individual claimed benefits; and

(B) severance pay, if paid as scheduled, and all other employment benefits within the employer's control, as defined in subsection (f)(3), if continued as though the severance had not occurred, except as set out in subsection (f)(2)(C).

(2) For the purposes of this section, remuneration received under the following circumstances shall not be construed as wages:

(A) Remuneration received for services performed on a public assistance work project;

(B) severance pay, in lieu of notice, under the provisions of public law 100-379, the federal worker adjustment and retraining notification act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 2101 through 2109;

(C) all other severance pay, separation pay, bonuses, wages in lieu of notice or remuneration of a similar nature that is payable after the severance of the employment relationship, except as set out in subsection (f)(1)(B); and

(D) moneys received as federal social security payments.

(3) For the purposes of this subsection, "employment benefits within the employer's control" means benefits offered by the employer to employees that are employee benefit plans as defined by section 3 of the federal employee retirement income security act of 1974, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 1002, and that the employer has the option to continue to provide to the employee after the last day that the employee worked for that employer.

(g) *Duration of benefits.* Any otherwise eligible individual shall be entitled during any benefit year to a total amount of benefits equal to whichever is the lesser of 26 times such individual's weekly benefit

amount, or 1/3 of such individual's wages for insured work paid during such individual's base period. Such total amount of benefits, if not a multiple of \$1, shall be reduced to the next lower multiple of \$1.

(h) For the purposes of this section, wages shall be counted as "wages for insured work" for benefit purposes with respect to any benefit year only if such benefit year begins subsequent to the date when the employing unit by whom such wages were paid has satisfied the conditions of K.S.A. 44-703(h), and amendments thereto, with respect to becoming an employer.

(i) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this section to the contrary, any benefit otherwise payable for any week shall be reduced by the amount of any separation, termination, severance or other similar payment paid to a claimant at the time of or after the claimant's separation from employment during the benefit year.

(1) If any payment pursuant to this subsection is paid with respect to a month, then the amount deemed to be received with respect to any week during such month shall be computed by multiplying such monthly amount by 12 and dividing the product by 52. If there is no designation of the period with respect to which payments to an individual are made under this section, then an amount equal to such individual's normal weekly wage shall be attributed to and deemed paid with respect to the first and each succeeding week following payment of the separation pay to the individual until such amount so paid is exhausted.

(2) If benefits for any week, when reduced as provided in this subsection, result in an amount that is not a multiple of \$1, such benefits shall be rounded to the next lower multiple of \$1.

(3) Notwithstanding the reemployment provisions of K.S.A. 44-705(e), and amendments thereto, any individual whose benefit amount is completely reduced under this subsection for 52 or more weeks shall, upon exhaustion of the separation pay, be entitled to a new benefit year based upon entitlement from the base period of the claim that was reduced.

(j) Except as provided in subsection (k), for weeks commencing on and after January 1, 2014, and ending before September 5, 2021, if at the beginning of the benefit year, the three-month seasonally adjusted average unemployment rate for the state of Kansas is: (1) Less than 4.5%, a claimant shall be eligible for a maximum of 16 weeks of benefits; (2) at least 4.5% but less than 6%, a claimant shall be eligible for a maximum of 20 weeks of benefits; or (3) at least 6%, a claimant shall be eligible for a maximum of 26 weeks of benefits.

(k) On and after the effective date of this act, a claimant shall be eligible for a maximum of 26 weeks of benefits. A claimant who filed a new claim on or after January 1, 2020, and before the effective date of this act shall be eligible for a maximum of 26 weeks of benefits including the number of weeks of benefits received after January 1, 2020, and before the effective date of this act. This subsection shall not apply to initial claims effective on and after ~~April 1~~ September 5, 2021.

(l) For weeks commencing on and after September 5, 2021, if at the beginning of the benefit year, the three-month seasonally adjusted average unemployment rate for the state of Kansas is: (1) Less than 5%, a claimant shall be eligible for a maximum of 16 weeks of benefits; (2) at least 5% but less than 6%, a claimant shall be eligible for a maximum of 20 weeks of benefits; or (3) at least 6%, a claimant shall be eligible for a maximum of 26 weeks of benefits.

(m) Upon the secretary of labor's receipt of notification that the claimant has become employed, the secretary shall notify the secretary of the department for children and families in order that the secretary for children and families may determine the claimant's eligibility for state or federal benefits provided or facilitated by the department for children and families. The department of labor and the department for children and families shall enter into a memorandum of understanding that shall provide for the transfer of information as provided in this subsection.

Sec. 13. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-705 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-705. Except as provided by K.S.A. 44-757, and amendments thereto, an unemployed individual shall be eligible to receive benefits with respect to any week only if the secretary, or a person or persons designated by the secretary, finds that:

(a) The claimant has registered for work at and thereafter continued to report at an employment office in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary, except that, subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 44-704(a), and amendments thereto, the secretary may adopt rules and regulations that waive or alter either or both of the requirements of this subsection.

(b) The claimant has made a claim for benefits with respect to such week in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary.

(c) (1) The claimant is able to perform the duties of such claimant's customary occupation or the duties of other occupations that the claimant is reasonably fitted by training or experience, and is available for work, as demonstrated by the claimant's pursuit of the full course of action most reasonably calculated to result in the claimant's reemployment except that, notwithstanding any other provisions of this section, an unemployed claimant otherwise eligible for benefits shall not become ineligible for benefits:

(1)(A) Because of the claimant's enrollment in and satisfactory pursuit of approved training, including training approved under section 236(a)(1) of the trade act of 1974;

(2)(B) solely because such individual is seeking only part-time employment if the individual is available for a number of hours per week that are comparable to the individual's part-time work experience in the base period; or

(3)(C) because a claimant is not actively seeking work:

(i) During a state of disaster emergency proclaimed by the governor pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924 and 48-925, and amendments thereto;

(ii) in response to the spread of the public health emergency of COVID-19; and

(iii) the state's temporary waiver of the work search requirement under the employment security law for such claimant is in compliance with the families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127.

(2) *The secretary shall develop and implement procedures to address claimants who refuse to return to suitable work or refuse to accept an offer of suitable work without good cause. Such procedures shall include the receipt and processing of job refusal reports from employers, the evaluation of such reports in consideration of the claimant's work history and skills and suitability of the offered employment and guidelines for a determination of whether the claimant shall remain eligible for unemployment benefits or has failed to meet the work search requirements of this subsection or the requirements of K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-706(c), and amendments thereto. In determining whether the employment offered is suitable, the secretary's considerations shall include whether the employment offers wages comparable to the claimant's recent employment and work duties that correspond to the claimant's education level and previous work experience. The secretary shall also consider whether the employment offers wages of at least the amount of the claimant's maximum weekly benefits.*

(3) *To facilitate the requirements of paragraph (2), the secretary shall provide readily accessible means for employers to notify the department when a claimant refuses to return to work or refuses an offer of employment, including by telephone, email or an online web portal. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as to require an employer to report such job refusals to the department.*

(4) *At the time of receipt of notice from an employer pursuant to paragraph (3), the secretary shall, within 10 business days of receipt of such notice from the employer, provide a notice to the claimant who has refused to return to work or to accept an offer of suitable work without good cause. The method of providing the notice to the claimant shall be consistent with other correspondence from the department to the claimant and may include mail, telephone, email or through an online web portal. The notice shall, at minimum, include the following information:*

(A) *A summary of state employment security law regarding a claimant's duties to return to work or accept suitable work;*

(B) *a statement that the claimant has been or may be disqualified and the claimant's right to collect benefits has been or may be terminated for refusal to return to work or accept suitable work without good cause, as provided by this subsection and K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-706(c), and amendments thereto;*

(C) *an explanation of what constitutes suitable work under the employment security law; and*

(D) *instructions for contesting a denial of a claim if the denial is based upon a report by an employer that the claimant has refused to return to work or has refused to accept an offer of suitable work.*

(5) For the purposes of this subsection, an inmate of a custodial or correctional institution shall be deemed to be unavailable for work and not eligible to receive unemployment compensation while incarcerated.

(d) (1) Except as provided further, the claimant has been unemployed for a waiting period of one week or the claimant is unemployed and has satisfied the requirement for a waiting period of one week under the shared work unemployment compensation program as provided in K.S.A. 44-757(k)(4), and amendments thereto, and that period of one week, in either case, occurs within the benefit year that includes the week for which the claimant is claiming benefits. No week shall be counted as a week of unemployment for the purposes of this subsection:

(A) If benefits have been paid for such week;

(B) if the individual fails to meet with the other eligibility requirements of this section; or

(C) if an individual is seeking unemployment benefits under the unemployment compensation law of any other state or of the United States, except that if the appropriate agency of such state or of the United States finally determines that the claimant is not entitled to unemployment benefits under such other law, this subparagraph shall not apply.

(2) (A) The waiting week requirement of paragraph (1) shall not apply to:

(i) New claims by claimants who become unemployed as a result of an employer terminating business operations within this state, declaring bankruptcy or initiating a work force reduction pursuant to public law 100-379, the federal worker adjustment and retraining notification act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 2101 through 2109, as amended; or

(ii) new claims filed on or after April 5, 2020, through December 26, 2020, in accordance with the families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127 and the federal CARES act, public law 116-136.

(B) The secretary shall adopt rules and regulations to administer the provisions of this paragraph.

(3) If the waiting week requirement of paragraph (1) applies, a claimant shall become eligible to receive compensation for the waiting period of one week, pursuant to paragraph (1), upon completion of three weeks of unemployment consecutive to such waiting period. This paragraph shall not apply to initial claims effective on and after April 1, 2021.

(e) For benefit years established on and after the effective date of this act, the claimant has been paid total wages for insured work in the claimant's base period of not less than 30 times the claimant's weekly benefit amount and has been paid wages in more than one quarter of the claimant's base period, except that the wage credits of an individual earned during the period commencing with the end of a prior base period and ending on the date that such individual filed a valid initial claim shall not be available for benefit purposes in a subsequent benefit year unless, in addition thereto, such individual has returned to work and subsequently earned wages for insured work in an amount equal to at least eight times the claimant's current weekly benefit amount.

(f) The claimant participates in reemployment services, such as job search assistance services, if the individual has been determined to be likely to exhaust regular benefits and needs reemployment services pursuant to a profiling system established by the secretary, unless the secretary determines that: (1) the individual has completed such services; or (2) there is justifiable cause for the claimant's failure to participate in such services.

(g) The claimant is returning to work after a qualifying injury and has been paid total wages for insured work in the claimant's alternative base period of not less than 30 times the claimant's weekly benefit amount and has been paid wages in more than one quarter of the claimant's alternative base period if:

(1) The claimant has filed for benefits within four weeks of being released to return to work by a licensed and practicing health care provider;

(2) the claimant files for benefits within 24 months of the date the qualifying injury occurred; and

(3) the claimant attempted to return to work with the employer where the qualifying injury occurred, but the individual's regular work or comparable and suitable work was not available.

Sec. 14. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-706 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-706. The secretary shall examine whether an individual has separated from employment for each week claimed. The secretary shall apply the provisions of this section to the individual's most recent employment prior to the week claimed. An individual shall be disqualified for benefits:

(a) If the individual left work voluntarily without good cause attributable to the work or the employer, subject to the other provisions of this subsection. For purposes of this subsection, "good cause" is cause of such gravity that would impel a reasonable, not supersensitive, individual exercising ordinary common sense to leave employment. Good cause requires a showing of good faith of the individual leaving work, including the presence of a genuine desire to work. Failure to return to work after expiration of approved personal or medical leave, or both, shall be considered a voluntary resignation. After a temporary job assignment, failure of an individual to affirmatively request an additional assignment on the next succeeding workday, if required by the

(continued)

employment agreement, after completion of a given work assignment, shall constitute leaving work voluntarily. The disqualification shall begin the day following the separation and shall continue until after the individual has become reemployed and has had earnings from insured work of at least three times the individual's weekly benefit amount. An individual shall not be disqualified under this subsection if:

(1) The individual was forced to leave work because of illness or injury upon the advice of a licensed and practicing health care provider and, upon learning of the necessity for absence, immediately notified the employer thereof, or the employer consented to the absence, and after recovery from the illness or injury, when recovery was certified by a practicing health care provider, the individual returned to the employer and offered to perform services and the individual's regular work or comparable and suitable work was not available. As used in this paragraph "health care provider" means any person licensed by the proper licensing authority of any state to engage in the practice of medicine and surgery, osteopathy, chiropractic, dentistry, optometry, podiatry or psychology;

(2) the individual left temporary work to return to the regular employer;

(3) the individual left work to enlist in the armed forces of the United States, but was rejected or delayed from entry;

(4) the spouse of an individual who is a member of the armed forces of the United States who left work because of the voluntary or involuntary transfer of the individual's spouse from one job to another job, which is for the same employer or for a different employer, at a geographic location which makes it unreasonable for the individual to continue work at the individual's job. For the purposes of this provision the term "armed forces" means active duty in the army, navy, marine corps, air force, coast guard or any branch of the military reserves of the United States;

(5) the individual left work because of hazardous working conditions; in determining whether or not working conditions are hazardous for an individual, the degree of risk involved to the individual's health, safety and morals, the individual's physical fitness and prior training and the working conditions of workers engaged in the same or similar work for the same and other employers in the locality shall be considered; as used in this paragraph, "hazardous working conditions" means working conditions that could result in a danger to the physical or mental well-being of the individual; each determination as to whether hazardous working conditions exist shall include, but shall not be limited to, a consideration of: (A) The safety measures used or the lack thereof; and (B) the condition of equipment or lack of proper equipment; no work shall be considered hazardous if the working conditions surrounding the individual's work are the same or substantially the same as the working conditions generally prevailing among individuals performing the same or similar work for other employers engaged in the same or similar type of activity;

(6) the individual left work to enter training approved under section 236(a)(1) of the federal trade act of 1974, provided the work left is not of a substantially equal or higher skill level than the individual's past adversely affected employment, as defined for purposes of the federal trade act of 1974, and wages for such work are not less than 80% of the individual's average weekly wage as determined for the purposes of the federal trade act of 1974;

(7) the individual left work because of unwelcome harassment of the individual by the employer or another employee of which the employing unit had knowledge and that would impel the average worker to give up such worker's employment;

(8) the individual left work to accept better work; each determination as to whether or not the work accepted is better work shall include, but shall not be limited to, consideration of: (A) The rate of pay, the hours of work and the probable permanency of the work left as compared to the work accepted; (B) the cost to the individual of getting to the work left in comparison to the cost of getting to the work accepted; and (C) the distance from the individual's place of residence to the work accepted in comparison to the distance from the individual's residence to the work left;

(9) the individual left work as a result of being instructed or requested by the employer, a supervisor or a fellow employee to perform a service or commit an act in the scope of official job duties which is in violation of an ordinance or statute;

(10) the individual left work because of a substantial violation of the work agreement by the employing unit and, before the individual left, the individual had exhausted all remedies provided in such agreement for the settlement of disputes before terminating. For the

purposes of this paragraph, a demotion based on performance does not constitute a violation of the work agreement;

(11) after making reasonable efforts to preserve the work, the individual left work due to a personal emergency of such nature and compelling urgency that it would be contrary to good conscience to impose a disqualification; or

(12) (A) the individual left work due to circumstances resulting from domestic violence, including:

(i) The individual's reasonable fear of future domestic violence at or en route to or from the individual's place of employment;

(ii) the individual's need to relocate to another geographic area in order to avoid future domestic violence;

(iii) the individual's need to address the physical, psychological and legal impacts of domestic violence;

(iv) the individual's need to leave employment as a condition of receiving services or shelter from an agency which provides support services or shelter to victims of domestic violence; or

(v) the individual's reasonable belief that termination of employment is necessary to avoid other situations which may cause domestic violence and to provide for the future safety of the individual or the individual's family.

(B) An individual may prove the existence of domestic violence by providing one of the following:

(i) A restraining order or other documentation of equitable relief by a court of competent jurisdiction;

(ii) a police record documenting the abuse;

(iii) documentation that the abuser has been convicted of one or more of the offenses enumerated in articles 34 and 35 of chapter 21 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, prior to their repeal, or articles 54 or 55 of chapter 21 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, or K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 21-6104, 21-6325, 21-6326 or 21-6418 through 21-6422, and amendments thereto, where the victim was a family or household member;

(iv) medical documentation of the abuse;

(v) a statement provided by a counselor, social worker, health care provider, clergy, shelter worker, legal advocate, domestic violence or sexual assault advocate or other professional who has assisted the individual in dealing with the effects of abuse on the individual or the individual's family; or

(vi) a sworn statement from the individual attesting to the abuse.

(C) No evidence of domestic violence experienced by an individual, including the individual's statement and corroborating evidence, shall be disclosed by the department of labor unless consent for disclosure is given by the individual.

(b) If the individual has been discharged or suspended for misconduct connected with the individual's work. The disqualification shall begin the day following the separation and shall continue until after the individual becomes reemployed and in cases where the disqualification is due to discharge for misconduct has had earnings from insured work of at least three times the individual's determined weekly benefit amount, except that if an individual is discharged for gross misconduct connected with the individual's work, such individual shall be disqualified for benefits until such individual again becomes employed and has had earnings from insured work of at least eight times such individual's determined weekly benefit amount. In addition, all wage credits attributable to the employment from which the individual was discharged for gross misconduct connected with the individual's work shall be canceled. No such cancellation of wage credits shall affect prior payments made as a result of a prior separation.

(1) For the purposes of this subsection, "misconduct" is defined as a violation of a duty or obligation reasonably owed the employer as a condition of employment including, but not limited to, a violation of a company rule, including a safety rule, if: (A) The individual knew or should have known about the rule; (B) the rule was lawful and reasonably related to the job; and (C) the rule was fairly and consistently enforced.

(2) (A) Failure of the employee to notify the employer of an absence and an individual's leaving work prior to the end of such individual's assigned work period without permission shall be considered prima facie evidence of a violation of a duty or obligation reasonably owed the employer as a condition of employment.

(B) For the purposes of this subsection, misconduct shall include, but not be limited to, violation of the employer's reasonable attendance expectations if the facts show:

(i) The individual was absent or tardy without good cause;

(ii) the individual had knowledge of the employer's attendance expectation; and

(iii) the employer gave notice to the individual that future absence or tardiness may or will result in discharge.

(C) For the purposes of this subsection, if an employee disputes being absent or tardy without good cause, the employee shall present evidence that a majority of the employee's absences or tardiness were for good cause. If the employee alleges that the employee's repeated absences or tardiness were the result of health related issues, such evidence shall include documentation from a licensed and practicing health care provider as defined in subsection (a)(1).

(3) (A) The term "gross misconduct" as used in this subsection shall be construed to mean conduct evincing extreme, willful or wanton misconduct as defined by this subsection. Gross misconduct shall include, but not be limited to: (i) Theft; (ii) fraud; (iii) intentional damage to property; (iv) intentional infliction of personal injury; or (v) any conduct that constitutes a felony.

(B) For the purposes of this subsection, the following shall be conclusive evidence of gross misconduct:

(i) The use of alcoholic liquor, cereal malt beverage or a nonprescribed controlled substance by an individual while working;

(ii) the impairment caused by alcoholic liquor, cereal malt beverage or a nonprescribed controlled substance by an individual while working;

(iii) a positive breath alcohol test or a positive chemical test, provided:

(a) The test was either:

(1) Required by law and was administered pursuant to the drug free workplace act, 41 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.;

(2) administered as part of an employee assistance program or other drug or alcohol treatment program in which the employee was participating voluntarily or as a condition of further employment;

(3) requested pursuant to a written policy of the employer of which the employee had knowledge and was a required condition of employment;

(4) required by law and the test constituted a required condition of employment for the individual's job; or

(5) there was reasonable suspicion to believe that the individual used, had possession of, or was impaired by alcoholic liquor, cereal malt beverage or a nonprescribed controlled substance while working;

(b) the test sample was collected either:

(1) As prescribed by the drug free workplace act, 41 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.;

(2) as prescribed by an employee assistance program or other drug or alcohol treatment program in which the employee was participating voluntarily or as a condition of further employment;

(3) as prescribed by the written policy of the employer of which the employee had knowledge and which constituted a required condition of employment;

(4) as prescribed by a test which was required by law and which constituted a required condition of employment for the individual's job; or

(5) at a time contemporaneous with the events establishing probable cause;

(c) the collecting and labeling of a chemical test sample was performed by a licensed health care professional or any other individual certified pursuant to paragraph (b)(3)(A)(iii)(f) or authorized to collect or label test samples by federal or state law, or a federal or state rule or regulation having the force or effect of law, including law enforcement personnel;

(d) the chemical test was performed by a laboratory approved by the United States department of health and human services or licensed by the department of health and environment, except that a blood sample may be tested for alcohol content by a laboratory commonly used for that purpose by state law enforcement agencies;

(e) the chemical test was confirmed by gas chromatography, gas chromatography-mass spectroscopy or other comparably reliable analytical method, except that no such confirmation is required for a blood alcohol sample or a breath alcohol test;

(f) the breath alcohol test was administered by an individual trained to perform breath tests, the breath testing instrument used was certified and operated strictly according to a description provided by the manufacturers and the reliability of the instrument performance was assured by testing with alcohol standards; and

(g) the foundation evidence establishes, beyond a reasonable doubt, that the test results were from the sample taken from the individual;

(iv) an individual's refusal to submit to a chemical test or breath alcohol test, provided:

(a) The test meets the standards of the drug free workplace act, 41 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.;

(b) the test was administered as part of an employee assistance program or other drug or alcohol treatment program in which the employee was participating voluntarily or as a condition of further employment;

(c) the test was otherwise required by law and the test constituted a required condition of employment for the individual's job;

(d) the test was requested pursuant to a written policy of the employer of which the employee had knowledge and was a required condition of employment; or

(e) there was reasonable suspicion to believe that the individual used, possessed or was impaired by alcoholic liquor, cereal malt beverage or a nonprescribed controlled substance while working;

(v) an individual's dilution or other tampering of a chemical test.

(C) For purposes of this subsection:

(i) "Alcohol concentration" means the number of grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath;

(ii) "alcoholic liquor" ~~shall be defined~~ means the same as provided in K.S.A. 41-102, and amendments thereto;

(iii) "cereal malt beverage" ~~shall be defined~~ means the same as provided in K.S.A. 41-2701, and amendments thereto;

(iv) "chemical test" ~~shall include~~ includes, but is not limited to, tests of urine, blood or saliva;

(v) "controlled substance" ~~shall be defined~~ means the same as provided in K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 21-5701, and amendments thereto;

(vi) "required by law" means required by a federal or state law, a federal or state rule or regulation having the force and effect of law, a county resolution or municipal ordinance, or a policy relating to public safety adopted in an open meeting by the governing body of any special district or other local governmental entity;

(vii) "positive breath test" ~~shall mean~~ means a test result showing an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater, or the levels listed in 49 C.F.R. part 40, if applicable, unless the test was administered as part of an employee assistance program or other drug or alcohol treatment program in which the employee was participating voluntarily or as a condition of further employment, in which case "positive chemical test" shall mean a test result showing an alcohol concentration at or above the levels provided for in the assistance or treatment program;

(viii) "positive chemical test" ~~shall mean~~ means a chemical result showing a concentration at or above the levels listed in K.S.A. 44-501, and amendments thereto, or 49 C.F.R. part 40, as applicable, for the drugs or abuse listed therein, unless the test was administered as part of an employee assistance program or other drug or alcohol treatment program in which the employee was participating voluntarily or as a condition of further employment, in which case "positive chemical test" shall mean means a chemical result showing a concentration at or above the levels provided for in the assistance or treatment program.

(4) An individual shall not be disqualified under this subsection if the individual is discharged under the following circumstances:

(A) The employer discharged the individual after learning the individual was seeking other work or when the individual gave notice of future intent to quit, except that the individual shall be disqualified after the time at which such individual intended to quit and any individual who commits misconduct after such individual gives notice to such individual's intent to quit shall be disqualified;

(B) the individual was making a good-faith effort to do the assigned work but was discharged due to:

(i) Inefficiency;

(ii) unsatisfactory performance due to inability, incapacity or lack of training or experience;

(iii) isolated instances of ordinary negligence or inadvertence;

(iv) good-faith errors in judgment or discretion; or

(v) unsatisfactory work or conduct due to circumstances beyond the individual's control; or

(C) the individual's refusal to perform work in excess of the contract of hire.

(c) If the individual has failed, without good cause, to either apply for suitable work when so directed by the employment office of the secretary of labor, or to accept suitable work when offered to the individual by the employment office, the secretary of labor, or an employer, such disqualification shall begin with the week in which such failure occurred and shall continue until the individual becomes reemployed and has had earnings from insured work of at least three times such individual's determined weekly benefit amount. In determining whether

(continued)

or not any work is suitable for an individual, the secretary of labor, or a person or persons designated by the secretary, shall consider the degree of risk involved to health, safety and morals, physical fitness and prior training, experience and prior earnings, length of unemployment and prospects for securing local work in the individual's customary occupation or work for which the individual is reasonably fitted by training or experience, and the distance of the available work from the individual's residence. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this act, an otherwise eligible individual shall not be disqualified for refusing an offer of suitable employment, or failing to apply for suitable employment when notified by an employment office, or for leaving the individual's most recent work accepted during approved training, including training approved under section 236(a)(1) of the trade act of 1974, if the acceptance of or applying for suitable employment or continuing such work would require the individual to terminate approved training and no work shall be deemed suitable and benefits shall not be denied under this act to any otherwise eligible individual for refusing to accept new work under any of the following conditions: (1) If the position offered is vacant due directly to a strike, lockout or other labor dispute; (2) if the remuneration, hours or other conditions of the work offered are substantially less favorable to the individual than those prevailing for similar work in the locality; (3) if as a condition of being employed, the individual would be required to join or to resign from or refrain from joining any labor organization; and (4) if the individual left employment as a result of domestic violence, and the position offered does not reasonably accommodate the individual's physical, psychological, safety, or legal needs relating to such domestic violence.

(d) For any week with respect to which the secretary of labor, or a person or persons designated by the secretary, finds that the individual's unemployment is due to a stoppage of work which exists because of a labor dispute or there would have been a work stoppage had normal operations not been maintained with other personnel previously and currently employed by the same employer at the factory, establishment or other premises at which the individual is or was last employed, except that this subsection (d) shall not apply if it is shown to the satisfaction of the secretary of labor, or a person or persons designated by the secretary, that: (1) The individual is not participating in or financing or directly interested in the labor dispute which caused the stoppage of work; and (2) the individual does not belong to a grade or class of workers of which, immediately before the commencement of the stoppage, there were members employed at the premises at which the stoppage occurs any of whom are participating in or financing or directly interested in the dispute. If in any case separate branches of work which are commonly conducted as separate businesses in separate premises are conducted in separate departments of the same premises, each such department shall, for the purpose of this subsection be deemed to be a separate factory, establishment or other premises. For the purposes of this subsection, failure or refusal to cross a picket line or refusal for any reason during the continuance of such labor dispute to accept the individual's available and customary work at the factory, establishment or other premises where the individual is or was last employed shall be considered as participation and interest in the labor dispute.

(e) For any week with respect to which or a part of which the individual has received or is seeking unemployment benefits under the unemployment compensation law of any other state or of the United States, except that if the appropriate agency of such other state or the United States finally determines that the individual is not entitled to such unemployment benefits, this disqualification shall not apply.

(f) For any week with respect to which the individual is entitled to receive any unemployment allowance or compensation granted by the United States under an act of congress to ex-service men and women in recognition of former service with the military or naval services of the United States.

(g) For the period of five years beginning with the first day following the last week of unemployment for which the individual received benefits, or for five years from the date the act was committed, whichever is the later, if the individual, or another in such individual's behalf with the knowledge of the individual, has knowingly made a false statement or representation, or has knowingly failed to disclose a material fact to obtain or increase benefits under this act or any other unemployment compensation law administered by the secretary of labor, unless the individual has repaid the full amount of the overpayment as determined by the secretary or the secretary's designee, including, but not limited to, the total amount of money erroneously paid as benefits or unlawfully obtained, interest, penalties and any other costs or fees provided by law. If the individual has made such repayment, the individual shall be disqualified for a period of one year for the first occurrence

or five years for any subsequent occurrence, beginning with the first day following the date the department of labor confirmed the individual has successfully repaid the full amount of the overpayment. In addition to the penalties set forth in K.S.A. 44-719, and amendments thereto, an individual who has knowingly made a false statement or representation or who has knowingly failed to disclose a material fact to obtain or increase benefits under this act or any other unemployment compensation law administered by the secretary of labor shall be liable for a penalty in the amount equal to 25% of the amount of benefits unlawfully received. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, such penalty shall be deposited into the employment security trust fund. No person who is a victim of identity theft shall be subject to the provisions of this subsection. The secretary shall investigate all cases of an alleged false statement or representation or failure to disclose a material fact to ensure no victim of identity theft is disqualified, required to repay or subject to any penalty as provided by this subsection as a result of identity theft.

(h) For any week with respect to which the individual is receiving compensation for temporary total disability or permanent total disability under the workmen's compensation law of any state or under a similar law of the United States.

(i) For any week of unemployment on the basis of service in an instructional, research or principal administrative capacity for an educational institution as defined in K.S.A. 44-703(v), and amendments thereto, if such week begins during the period between two successive academic years or terms or, when an agreement provides instead for a similar period between two regular but not successive terms during such period or during a period of paid sabbatical leave provided for in the individual's contract, if the individual performs such services in the first of such academic years or terms and there is a contract or a reasonable assurance that such individual will perform services in any such capacity for any educational institution in the second of such academic years or terms.

(j) For any week of unemployment on the basis of service in any capacity other than service in an instructional, research, or administrative capacity in an educational institution, as defined in K.S.A. 44-703(v), and amendments thereto, if such week begins during the period between two successive academic years or terms if the individual performs such services in the first of such academic years or terms and there is a reasonable assurance that the individual will perform such services in the second of such academic years or terms, except that if benefits are denied to the individual under this subsection and the individual was not offered an opportunity to perform such services for the educational institution for the second of such academic years or terms, such individual shall be entitled to a retroactive payment of benefits for each week for which the individual filed a timely claim for benefits and for which benefits were denied solely by reason of this subsection.

(k) For any week of unemployment on the basis of service in any capacity for an educational institution as defined in K.S.A. 44-703(v), and amendments thereto, if such week begins during an established and customary vacation period or holiday recess, if the individual performs services in the period immediately before such vacation period or holiday recess and there is a reasonable assurance that such individual will perform such services in the period immediately following such vacation period or holiday recess.

(l) For any week of unemployment on the basis of any services, substantially all of which consist of participating in sports or athletic events or training or preparing to so participate, if such week begins during the period between two successive sport seasons or similar period if such individual performed services in the first of such seasons or similar periods and there is a reasonable assurance that such individual will perform such services in the later of such seasons or similar periods.

(m) For any week on the basis of services performed by an alien unless such alien is an individual who was lawfully admitted for permanent residence at the time such services were performed, was lawfully present for purposes of performing such services, or was permanently residing in the United States under color of law at the time such services were performed, including an alien who was lawfully present in the United States as a result of the application of the provisions of section 212(d)(5) of the federal immigration and nationality act. Any data or information required of individuals applying for benefits to determine whether benefits are not payable to them because of their alien status shall be uniformly required from all applicants for benefits. In the case of an individual whose application for benefits would otherwise be approved, no determination that benefits to such individual are not payable because of such individual's alien status shall be made except upon a preponderance of the evidence.

(n) For any week in which an individual is receiving a governmental or other pension, retirement or retired pay, annuity or other similar periodic payment under a plan maintained by a base period employer and to which the entire contributions were provided by such employer, except that: (1) If the entire contributions to such plan were provided by the base period employer but such individual's weekly benefit amount exceeds such governmental or other pension, retirement or retired pay, annuity or other similar periodic payment attributable to such week, the weekly benefit amount payable to the individual shall be reduced, but not below zero, by an amount equal to the amount of such pension, retirement or retired pay, annuity or other similar periodic payment which is attributable to such week; or (2) if only a portion of contributions to such plan were provided by the base period employer, the weekly benefit amount payable to such individual for such week shall be reduced, but not below zero, by the prorated weekly amount of the pension, retirement or retired pay, annuity or other similar periodic payment after deduction of that portion of the pension, retirement or retired pay, annuity or other similar periodic payment that is directly attributable to the percentage of the contributions made to the plan by such individual; or (3) if the entire contributions to the plan were provided by such individual, or by the individual and an employer, or any person or organization, who is not a base period employer, no reduction in the weekly benefit amount payable to the individual for such week shall be made under this subsection; or (4) whatever portion of contributions to such plan were provided by the base period employer, if the services performed for the employer by such individual during the base period, or remuneration received for the services, did not affect the individual's eligibility for, or increased the amount of, such pension, retirement or retired pay, annuity or other similar periodic payment, no reduction in the weekly benefit amount payable to the individual for such week shall be made under this subsection. No reduction shall be made for payments made under the social security act or railroad retirement act of 1974.

(o) For any week of unemployment on the basis of services performed in any capacity and under any of the circumstances described in subsection (i), (j) or (k) ~~which~~ that an individual performed in an educational institution while in the employ of an educational service agency. For the purposes of this subsection, the term "educational service agency" means a governmental agency or entity which is established and operated exclusively for the purpose of providing such services to one or more educational institutions.

(p) For any week of unemployment on the basis of service as a school bus or other motor vehicle driver employed by a private contractor to transport pupils, students and school personnel to or from school-related functions or activities for an educational institution, as defined in K.S.A. 44-703(v), and amendments thereto, if such week begins during the period between two successive academic years or during a similar period between two regular terms, whether or not successive, if the individual has a contract or contracts, or a reasonable assurance thereof, to perform services in any such capacity with a private contractor for any educational institution for both such academic years or both such terms. An individual shall not be disqualified for benefits as provided in this subsection for any week of unemployment on the basis of service as a bus or other motor vehicle driver employed by a private contractor to transport persons to or from nonschool-related functions or activities.

(q) For any week of unemployment on the basis of services performed by the individual in any capacity and under any of the circumstances described in subsection (i), (j), (k) or (o) which are provided to or on behalf of an educational institution, as defined in K.S.A. 44-703(v), and amendments thereto, while the individual is in the employ of an employer which is a governmental entity, Indian tribe or any employer described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 which is exempt from income under section 501(a) of the code.

(r) For any week in which an individual is registered at and attending an established school, training facility or other educational institution, or is on vacation during or between two successive academic years or terms. An individual shall not be disqualified for benefits as provided in this subsection provided:

(1) The individual was engaged in full-time employment concurrent with the individual's school attendance;

(2) the individual is attending approved training as defined in K.S.A. 44-703(s), and amendments thereto; or

(3) the individual is attending evening, weekend or limited day time classes, which would not affect availability for work, and is otherwise eligible under K.S.A. 44-705(c), and amendments thereto.

(s) For any week with respect to which an individual is receiving or has received remuneration in the form of a back pay award or settlement. The remuneration shall be allocated to the week or weeks in the manner as specified in the award or agreement, or in the absence of such specificity in the award or agreement, such remuneration shall be allocated to the week or weeks in which such remuneration, in the judgment of the secretary, would have been paid.

(1) For any such weeks that an individual receives remuneration in the form of a back pay award or settlement, an overpayment will be established in the amount of unemployment benefits paid and shall be collected from the claimant.

(2) If an employer chooses to withhold from a back pay award or settlement, amounts paid to a claimant while they claimed unemployment benefits, such employer shall pay the department the amount withheld. With respect to such amount, the secretary shall have available all of the collection remedies authorized or provided in K.S.A. 44-717, and amendments thereto.

(t) (1) Any applicant for or recipient of unemployment benefits who tests positive for unlawful use of a controlled substance or controlled substance analog shall be required to complete a substance abuse treatment program approved by the secretary of labor, secretary of commerce or secretary for children and families, and a job skills program approved by the secretary of labor, secretary of commerce or the secretary for children and families. Subject to applicable federal laws, any applicant for or recipient of unemployment benefits who fails to complete or refuses to participate in the substance abuse treatment program or job skills program as required under this subsection shall be ineligible to receive unemployment benefits until completion of such substance abuse treatment and job skills programs. Upon completion of both substance abuse treatment and job skills programs, such applicant for or recipient of unemployment benefits may be subject to periodic drug screening, as determined by the secretary of labor. Upon a second positive test for unlawful use of a controlled substance or controlled substance analog, an applicant for or recipient of unemployment benefits shall be ordered to complete again a substance abuse treatment program and job skills program, and shall be terminated from unemployment benefits for a period of 12 months, or until such applicant for or recipient of unemployment benefits completes both substance abuse treatment and job skills programs, whichever is later. Upon a third positive test for unlawful use of a controlled substance or controlled substance analog, an applicant for or a recipient of unemployment benefits shall be terminated from receiving unemployment benefits, subject to applicable federal law.

(2) Any individual who has been discharged or refused employment for failing a preemployment drug screen required by an employer may request that the drug screening specimen be sent to a different drug testing facility for an additional drug screening. Any such individual who requests an additional drug screening at a different drug testing facility shall be required to pay the cost of drug screening.

(u) If the individual was found not to have a disqualifying adjudication or conviction under K.S.A. 39-970 or 65-5117, and amendments thereto, was hired and then was subsequently convicted of a disqualifying felony under K.S.A. 39-970 or 65-5117, and amendments thereto, and discharged pursuant to K.S.A. 39-970 or 65-5117, and amendments thereto. The disqualification shall begin the day following the separation and shall continue until after the individual becomes reemployed and has had earnings from insured work of at least three times the individual's determined weekly benefit amount.

(v) Notwithstanding the provisions of any subsection, an individual shall not be disqualified for such week of part-time employment in a substitute capacity for an educational institution if such individual's most recent employment prior to the individual's benefit year begin date was for a non-educational institution and such individual demonstrates application for work in such individual's customary occupation or for work for which the individual is reasonably fitted by training or experience.

Sec. 15. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-709 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-709. (a) *Filing*. Claims for benefits shall be made in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary. The secretary shall furnish a copy of such rules and regulations to any individual requesting them. Each employer shall: (1) Post and maintain printed statements furnished by the secretary without cost to the employer in places readily accessible to individuals in the service of the employer; and (2) provide any other notification to individuals in the service of

(continued)

the employer as required by the secretary pursuant to the families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127.

(b) *Determination.* (1) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, a representative designated by the secretary, and hereinafter referred to as an examiner, shall promptly examine the claim and, on the basis of the facts found by the examiner, shall determine whether or not the claim is valid. If the examiner determines that the claim is valid, the examiner shall determine the first day of the benefit year, the weekly benefit amount and the total amount of benefits payable with respect to the benefit year. If the claim is determined to be valid, the examiner shall send a notice to the last employing unit who shall respond within 10 days by providing the examiner all requested information including all information required for a decision under K.S.A. 44-706, and amendments thereto. The information may be submitted by the employing unit in person at an employment office of the secretary or by mail, by telefacsimile machine or by electronic mail. If the required information is not submitted or postmarked within a response time limit of 10 days after the examiner's notice was sent, the employing unit shall be deemed to have waived its standing as a party to the proceedings arising from the claim and shall be barred from protesting any subsequent decisions about the claim by the secretary, a referee, the employment security board of review or any court, except that the employing unit's response time limit may be waived or extended by the examiner or upon appeal, if timely response was impossible due to excusable neglect. In any case in which the payment or denial of benefits will be determined by the provisions of K.S.A. 44-706(d), and amendments thereto, the examiner shall promptly transmit the claim to a special examiner designated by the secretary to make a determination on the claim after the investigation as the special examiner deems necessary. The parties shall be promptly notified of the special examiner's decision and any party aggrieved by the decision may appeal to the referee as provided in subsection (c). The claimant and the claimant's most recent employing unit shall be promptly notified of the examiner's or special examiner's decision.

(2) The examiner may for good cause reconsider the examiner's decision and shall promptly notify the claimant and the most recent employing unit of the claimant, that the decision of the examiner is to be reconsidered, except that no reconsideration shall be made after the termination of the benefit year.

(3) Notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, a decision of an examiner or special examiner shall be final unless the claimant or the most recent employing unit of the claimant files an appeal from the decision as provided in subsection (c), except that the time limit for appeal may be waived or extended by the referee or board of review if a timely response was impossible due to excusable neglect. The appeal must be filed within 16 calendar days after the mailing of notice to the last known addresses of the claimant and employing unit or, if notice is not by mail, within 16 calendar days after the delivery of the notice to the parties.

(c) *Appeals.* Unless the appeal is withdrawn, a referee, after affording the parties reasonable opportunity for fair hearing, shall affirm or modify the findings of fact and decision of the examiner or special examiner. The parties shall be duly notified of the referee's decision, together with the reasons for the decision. The decision shall be final, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, unless a further appeal to the employment security board of review is filed within 16 calendar days after the mailing of the decision to the parties' last known addresses or, if notice is not by mail, within 16 calendar days after the delivery of the decision, except that the time limit for appeal may be waived or extended by the referee or board of review if a timely response was impossible due to excusable neglect.

(d) *Referees.* The secretary shall appoint, in accordance with K.S.A. 44-714(c), and amendments thereto, one or more referees to hear and decide disputed claims.

(e) *Time, computation and extension.* In computing the period of time for an employing unit response or for appeals under this section from the examiner's or the special examiner's determination or from the referee's decision, the day of the act, event or default from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not be included. The last day of the period shall be included unless it is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, in which event the period runs until the end of the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

(f) *Board of review.* ~~(f)~~ There is hereby created an employment security board of review, hereinafter referred to as the board, ~~consisting~~

(1) (A) *Except as provided in subparagraph (B), the board shall consist of three members. Each member of the board shall be appointed for a*

term of four years as provided in this subsection. Not more than two members of the board shall belong to the same political party.

(B) *On the effective date of this act, the board shall consist of six members. The six-member board shall consist of the following: (i) Three members appointed under subparagraph (A); and (ii) three members appointed for a term that shall expire upon the expiration of this subparagraph. Each member of the board appointed under subparagraph (B)(ii) shall be appointed as provided in this subsection. Not more than four members of the six-member board shall belong to the same political party. The provisions of this subparagraph shall expire on June 30, 2024.*

(2) When a vacancy on the employment security board of review occurs, the workers compensation and employment security boards nominating committee established under K.S.A. 44-551, and amendments thereto, shall convene and submit a nominee to the governor for appointment to each vacancy on the employment security board of review, subject to confirmation by the senate as provided by K.S.A. 75-4315b, and amendments thereto. The governor shall either: (A) Accept and submit to the senate for confirmation the person nominated by the nominating committee; or (B) reject the nomination and request the nominating committee to nominate another person for that position. Except as provided by K.S.A. 46-2601, and amendments thereto, no person appointed to the employment security board of review, whose appointment is subject to confirmation by the senate, shall exercise any power, duty or function as a member until confirmed by the senate.

(3) No member of the employment security board of review shall serve more than two consecutive terms. *This paragraph shall not apply to members of the board appointed under subsection (f)(1)(B)(ii). The service of a board member appointed under subsection (f)(1)(B)(ii) shall not constitute a term as contemplated in this paragraph.*

(4) Each member of the employment security board shall serve until a successor has been appointed and confirmed. Any vacancy in the membership of the board occurring prior to expiration of a term shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term in the same manner as provided for original appointment of the member.

(5) Each member of the employment security board of review shall be entitled to receive as compensation for the member's services at the rate of \$15,000 per year, together with the member's travel and other necessary expenses actually incurred in the performance of the member's official duties in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary. Members' compensation and expenses shall be paid from the employment security administration fund.

(6) The employment security board of review shall organize annually by the election of a chairperson from among its members. The chairperson shall serve in that capacity for a term of one year and until a successor is elected. *For the purpose of hearing and determining cases, the board members may sit in panels. A board panel shall consist of three members with not more than two members belonging to the same political party. The chairperson may sit as a member of a panel and shall preside over such panel. When the chairperson is not a member of a hearing panel, the chairperson shall appoint a member of the panel to preside. The board or board panel shall meet on the first Monday of each month or on the call of the chairperson or any two members of the board at the place designated. The secretary of labor shall appoint an executive secretary of the board and the executive secretary or the executive secretary's designee shall attend the meetings of the board and board panels.*

(7) The employment security board of review or board panel, on its own motion, may affirm, modify or set aside any decision of a referee on the basis of the evidence previously submitted in the case; may direct the taking of additional evidence; or may permit any of the parties to initiate further appeal before it. The board or board panel shall permit such further appeal by any of the parties interested in a decision of a referee that overrules or modifies the decision of an examiner. The board or board panel may remove to itself the proceedings on any claim pending before a referee. Any proceedings so removed to the board or board panel shall be heard in accordance with the requirements of subsection (c). The board or board panel shall promptly notify the interested parties of its findings and decision.

(8) ~~Two~~ *A simple majority of the members of the employment security board of review or board panel shall constitute a quorum and no action of the board or board panel shall be valid unless it has the concurrence of at least two a majority of its members. A vacancy on the board shall not impair the right of a quorum to exercise all the rights and perform all the duties of the board.*

(g) *Procedure.* The manner that disputed claims are presented, the reports on claims required from the claimant and from employers and the conduct of hearings and appeals shall be in accordance with rules of

procedure prescribed by the employment security board of review for determining the rights of the parties, whether or not such rules conform to common law or statutory rules of evidence and other technical rules of procedure. A full and complete record shall be kept of all proceedings and decisions in connection with a disputed claim. All testimony at any hearing upon a disputed claim shall be recorded, but need not be transcribed unless the disputed claim is further appealed. In the performance of its official duties, the board or *board panel* shall have access to all of the records that pertain to the disputed claim and are in the custody of the secretary of labor and shall receive the assistance of the secretary upon request.

(h) *Witness fees.* Witnesses subpoenaed pursuant to this section shall be allowed fees and necessary travel expenses at rates fixed by the board. Such fees and expenses shall be deemed a part of the expense of administering this act.

(i) *Review of board action.* Any action of the employment security board of review *including that of a board panel*, may not be reconsidered after the mailing of the decision. An action of the board or *board panel* shall become final unless a petition for review in accordance with the Kansas judicial review act is filed within 16 calendar days after the date of the mailing of the decision. If an appeal has not been filed within 16 calendar days of the date of the mailing of the decision, the decision becomes final. No bond shall be required for commencing an action for such review. In addition to those persons having standing pursuant to K.S.A. 77-611, and amendments thereto, the examiner shall have standing to obtain judicial review of an action of such board or *board panel*. The review proceeding, and the questions of law certified, shall be heard in a summary manner and shall be given precedence over all other civil cases except cases arising under the workers compensation act.

(j) Any finding of fact or law, judgment, determination, conclusion or final order made by the employment security board of review or *board panel* or any examiner, special examiner, referee or other person with authority to make findings of fact or law pursuant to the employment security law is not admissible or binding in any separate or subsequent action or proceeding, between a person and a present or previous employer brought before an arbitrator, court or judge of the state or the United States, regardless of whether the prior action was between the same or related parties or involved the same facts.

(k) In any proceeding or hearing conducted under this section, a party to the proceeding or hearing may appear before a referee or the employment security board of review or *board panel* either personally or by means of a designated representative to present evidence and to state the position of the party. Hearings may be conducted in person, by telephone or other means of electronic communication. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone or other means of electronic communication if none of the parties requests an in-person hearing. ~~If only one~~ a party requests an in-person hearing, the referee or *board or board panel* shall have the discretion of ~~requiring to deny the request in the absence of good cause shown for the request by the requesting party. If a request for an in-person hearing is granted, the referee or board or board panel shall have the discretion to require~~ all parties to appear in person or allow the party not requesting an in-person hearing to appear by telephone or other means of electronic communication. The notice of hearing shall include notice to the parties of their right to request an in-person hearing and instructions on how to make the request.

Sec. 16. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-710 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-710. (a) *Payment.* Contributions shall accrue and become payable by each contributing employer for each calendar year that the contributing employer is subject to the employment security law with respect to wages paid for employment. Such contributions shall become due and be paid by each contributing employer to the secretary for the employment security fund in accordance with such rules and regulations as the secretary may adopt and shall not be deducted, in whole or in part, from the wages of individuals in such employer's employ. In the payment of any contributions, a fractional part of \$.01 shall be disregarded unless it amounts to \$.005 or more, in which case it shall be increased to \$.01. Should contributions for any calendar quarter be less than \$5, no payment shall be required.

(b) *Rates and base of contributions.* (1) Except as provided in paragraph (2) ~~of this subsection~~, each contributing employer shall pay contributions on wages paid by the contributing employer during each calendar year with respect to employment as provided in K.S.A. 44-710a, and amendments thereto. Except that, notwithstanding the federal law requiring the secretary of labor to annually recalculate the contribution rate, for calendar years 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014, the secretary

shall charge each contributing employer in rate groups 1 through 32 the contribution rate in the 2010 original tax rate computation table, with contributing employers in rate groups 33 through 51 being capped at a 5.4% contribution rate. For calendar year 2021, unemployment tax rates for eligible employers shall be limited to the standard rate schedule in K.S.A. 44-710a, and amendments thereto. Therefore, no additional solvency adjustment shall be applied.

(2) (A) If the congress of the United States either amends or repeals the Wagner-Peyser act, the federal unemployment tax act, the federal social security act, or subtitle C of chapter 23 of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, or any act or acts supplemental to or in lieu thereof, or any part or parts of any such law, or if any such law, or any part or parts thereof, are held invalid with the effect that appropriations of funds by congress and grants thereof to the state of Kansas for the payment of costs of administration of the employment security law are no longer available for such purposes; or (B) if employers in Kansas subject to the payment of tax under the federal unemployment tax act are granted full credit against such tax for contributions or taxes paid to the secretary of labor, then, and in either such case, beginning with the year that the unavailability of federal appropriations and grants for such purpose occurs or that such change in liability for payment of such federal tax occurs and for each year thereafter, the rate of contributions of each contributing employer shall be equal to the total of 0.5% and the rate of contributions as determined for such contributing employer under K.S.A. 44-710a, and amendments thereto. The amount of contributions that each contributing employer becomes liable to pay under this paragraph (2) over the amount of contributions that such contributing employer would be otherwise liable to pay shall be credited to the employment security administration fund to be disbursed and paid out under the same conditions and for the same purposes as other moneys are authorized to be paid from the employment security administration fund, except that, if the secretary determines that as of the first day of January of any year there is an excess in the employment security administration fund over the amount required to be disbursed during such year, an amount equal to such excess as determined by the secretary shall be transferred to the employment security fund.

(c) *Charging of benefit payments.* (1) The secretary shall maintain a separate account for each contributing employer, and shall credit the contributing employer's account with all the contributions paid on the contributing employer's own behalf. Nothing in the employment security law shall be construed to grant any employer or individuals in such employer's service prior claims or rights to the amounts paid by such employer into the employment security fund either on such employer's own behalf or on behalf of such individuals. Benefits paid shall be charged against the accounts of each base period employer in the proportion that the base period wages paid to an eligible individual by each such employer bears to the total wages in the base period. Benefits shall be charged to contributing employers' accounts and rated governmental employers' accounts upon the basis of benefits paid during each twelve-month period ending on the computation date.

(2) (A) Benefits paid in benefit years established by valid new claims shall not be charged to the account of a contributing employer or rated governmental employer who is a base period employer if the examiner finds that claimant was separated from the claimant's most recent employment with such employer under any of the following conditions: (i) Discharged for misconduct or gross misconduct connected with the individual's work; (ii) leaving work voluntarily without good cause attributable to the claimant's work or the employer; or (iii) discharged from an employer directly impacted by COVID-19 in accordance with the families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127.

(B) Where base period wage credits of a contributing employer or rated governmental employer represent part-time employment and the claimant continues in that part-time employment with that employer during the period for which benefits are paid, then that employer's account shall not be charged with any part of the benefits paid if the employer provides the secretary with information as required by rules and regulations. For the purposes of this subsection (c)(2)(B), "part-time employment" means any employment when an individual works less than full-time because the individual's services are not required for the customary, scheduled full-time hours prevailing at the work place or the individual does not customarily work the regularly scheduled full-time hours due to personal choice or circumstances.

(C) No contributing employer or rated governmental employer's account shall be charged with any extended benefits paid in accordance with the employment security law, except for weeks of unemployment

(continued)

beginning after December 31, 1978, all contributing governmental employers and governmental rated employers shall be charged an amount equal to all extended benefits paid.

(D) No contributing employer, rated governmental employer or reimbursing employer's account shall be charged for any additional benefits paid during the period July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004.

(E) No contributing employer or rated governmental employer's account will be charged for benefits paid a claimant while pursuing an approved training course as defined in K.S.A. 44-703(s), and amendments thereto.

(F) No contributing employer or rated governmental employer's account shall be charged with respect to the benefits paid to any individual whose base period wages include wages for services not covered by the employment security law prior to January 1, 1978, to the extent that the employment security fund is reimbursed for such benefits pursuant to section 121 of public law 94-566 (90 Stat. 2673).

(G) With respect to weeks of unemployment beginning after December 31, 1977, wages for insured work shall include wages paid for previously uncovered services. For the purposes of this subsection (c)(2)(G), the term "previously uncovered services" means services that were not covered employment, at any time during the one-year period ending December 31, 1975, except to the extent that assistance under title II of the federal emergency jobs and unemployment assistance act of 1974 was paid on the basis of such services, and that:

(i) Are agricultural labor as defined in K.S.A. 44-703(w), and amendments thereto, or domestic service as defined in K.S.A. 44-703(aa), and amendments thereto;

(ii) are services performed by an employee of this state or a political subdivision thereof, as provided in K.S.A. 44-703(i)(3)(E), and amendments thereto; or

(iii) are services performed by an employee of a nonprofit educational institution that is not an institution of higher education.

(H) No contributing employer or rated governmental employer's account shall be charged with respect to their pro rata share of benefit charges if such charges are of \$100 or less.

(I) *Contributing employers, rated governmental employers and reimbursing employers shall be held harmless for and shall not be required to reimburse the state for claims or benefits paid that have been reported by the employer to the secretary and determined by the secretary as fraudulent or as an improper payment, unless the secretary determines the claims are not fraudulent or improper as provided by K.S.A. 44-710b(b)(2)(A), and amendments thereto. The time limitation for disputing a claim or an appeal of a claim as provided by this section, or by any other provision of the employment security law, shall not apply to identifications of fraud reported to the secretary for claims or benefits paid during the period beginning on March 15, 2020, through December 31, 2022. Contributing employers, rated governmental employers and reimbursing employers shall be refunded or credited, in the discretion of the employer, as provided by K.S.A. 44-710b, and amendments thereto, for any claims or benefits paid that have been reported as fraudulent.*

(3) An employer's account shall not be relieved of charges relating to a payment that was made erroneously if the secretary determines that:

(A) The erroneous payment was made because the employer, or the agent of the employer, was at fault for failing to respond timely or adequately to a written request from the secretary for information relating to the claim for unemployment compensation; and

(B) the employer or agent has established a pattern of failing to respond timely or adequately to requests for information.

(C) For purposes of this paragraph:

(i) "Erroneous payment" means a payment that but for the failure by the employer or the employer's agent with respect to the claim for unemployment compensation, would not have been made; and

(ii) "pattern of failure" means repeated documented failure on the part of the employer or the agent of the employer to respond, taking into consideration the number of instances of failure in relation to the total volume of requests. An employer or employer's agent failing to respond as described in (c)(3)(A) shall not be determined to have engaged in a "pattern of failure" if the number of such failures during the year prior to such request is fewer than two, or less than 2%, of such requests, whichever is greater.

(D) Determinations of the secretary prohibiting the relief of charges pursuant to this section shall be subject to appeal or protest as other determinations of the agency with respect to the charging of employer accounts.

(E) This paragraph shall apply to erroneous payments established on and after the effective date of this act.

(4) The examiner shall notify any base period employer whose account will be charged with benefits paid following the filing of a valid new claim and a determination by the examiner based on all information relating to the claim contained in the records of the division of employment security. Such notice shall become final and benefits charged to the base period employer's account in accordance with the claim unless within 10 calendar days from the date the notice was sent, the base period employer requests in writing that the examiner reconsider the determination and furnishes any required information in accordance with the secretary's rules and regulations. In a similar manner, a notice of an additional claim followed by the first payment of benefits with respect to the benefit year, filed by an individual during a benefit year after a period in such year during which such individual was employed, shall be given to any base period employer of the individual who has requested such a notice within 10 calendar days from the date the notice of the valid new claim was sent to such base period employer. For purposes of this subsection (c)(3), if the required information is not submitted or postmarked within a response time limit of 10 days after the base period employer notice was sent, the base period employer shall be deemed to have waived its standing as a party to the proceedings arising from the claim and shall be barred from protesting any subsequent decisions about the claim by the secretary, a referee, the board of review or any court, except that the base period employer's response time limit may be waived or extended by the examiner or upon appeal, if timely response was impossible due to excusable neglect. The examiner shall notify the employer of the reconsidered determination, which shall be subject to appeal or further reconsideration, in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 44-709, and amendments thereto.

(5) *Time, computation and extension.* In computing the period of time for a base period employer response or appeals under this section from the examiner's or the special examiner's determination or from the referee's decision, the day of the act, event or default from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not be included. The last day of the period shall be included unless it is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, in which event the period runs until the end of the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

(d) *Pooled fund.* All contributions and payments in lieu of contributions and benefit cost payments to the employment security fund shall be pooled and available to pay benefits to any individual entitled thereto under the employment security law, regardless of the source of such contributions or payments in lieu of contributions or benefit cost payments.

(e) *Election to become reimbursing employer; payment in lieu of contributions.* (1) Any governmental entity, Indian tribes or tribal units, (subdivisions, subsidiaries or business enterprises wholly owned by such Indian tribes), for which services are performed as described in K.S.A. 44-703(i)(3)(E), and amendments thereto, or any nonprofit organization or group of nonprofit organizations described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 that is exempt from income tax under section 501(a) of such code, that becomes subject to the employment security law may elect to become a reimbursing employer under this subsection (e)(1) and agree to pay the secretary for the employment security fund an amount equal to the amount of regular benefits and ½ of the extended benefits paid that are attributable to service in the employ of such reimbursing employer, except that each reimbursing governmental employer, Indian tribes or tribal units shall pay an amount equal to the amount of regular benefits and extended benefits paid for weeks of unemployment beginning after December 31, 1978, for governmental employers and December 21, 2000, for Indian tribes or tribal units to individuals for weeks of unemployment that begin during the effective period of such election.

(A) Any employer identified in this subsection (e)(1) may elect to become a reimbursing employer for a period encompassing not less than four complete calendar years if such employer files with the secretary a written notice of such election within the 30-day period immediately following January 1 of any calendar year or within the 30-day period immediately following the date when a determination of subjectivity to the employment security law is issued, whichever occurs later.

(B) Any employer that makes an election to become a reimbursing employer in accordance with subparagraph (A) will continue to be liable for payments in lieu of contributions until such employer files with the secretary a written notice terminating its election not later than 30 days prior to the beginning of the calendar year for which such termination shall first be effective.

(C) Any employer identified in this subsection (e)(1) that has remained a contributing employer and has been paying contributions

under the employment security law for a period subsequent to January 1, 1972, may change to a reimbursing employer by filing with the secretary not later than 30 days prior to the beginning of any calendar year a written notice of election to become a reimbursing employer. Such election shall not be terminable by the employer for four complete calendar years.

(D) The secretary may for good cause extend the period within which a notice of election, or a notice of termination, must be filed and may permit an election to be retroactive but not any earlier than with respect to benefits paid after January 1 of the year such election is received.

(E) The secretary, in accordance with such rules and regulations as the secretary may adopt, shall notify each employer identified in subsection (e)(1) of any determination that the secretary may make of its status as an employer and of the effective date of any election that it makes to become a reimbursing employer and of any termination of such election. Such determinations shall be subject to reconsideration, appeal and review in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 44-710b, and amendments thereto.

(2) *Reimbursement reports and payments.* Payments in lieu of contributions shall be made in accordance with the provisions of subparagraph (A) by all reimbursing employers except the state of Kansas. Each reimbursing employer shall report total wages paid during each calendar quarter by filing quarterly wage reports with the secretary that shall be filed by the last day of the month following the close of each calendar quarter. Wage reports are deemed filed as of the date they are placed in the United States mail.

(A) At the end of each calendar quarter, or at the end of any other period as determined by the secretary, the secretary shall bill each reimbursing employer, except the state of Kansas: (i) An amount to be paid that is equal to the full amount of regular benefits plus $\frac{1}{2}$ of the amount of extended benefits paid during such quarter or other prescribed period that is attributable to service in the employ of such reimbursing employer; and (ii) for weeks of unemployment beginning after December 31, 1978, each reimbursing governmental employer and December 21, 2000, for Indian tribes or tribal units shall be certified an amount to be paid that is equal to the full amount of regular benefits and extended benefits paid during such quarter or other prescribed period that is attributable to service in the employ of such reimbursing governmental employer.

(B) Payment of any bill rendered under subparagraph (A) shall be made not later than 30 days after such bill was mailed to the last known address of the reimbursing employer, or otherwise was delivered to such reimbursing employer, unless there has been an application for review and redetermination in accordance with subparagraph (D).

(C) Payments made by any reimbursing employer under the provisions of this subsection (e)(2) shall not be deducted or deductible, in whole or in part, from the remuneration of individuals in the employ of such employer.

(D) The amount due specified in any bill from the secretary shall be conclusive on the reimbursing employer, unless, not later than 15 days after the bill was mailed to the last known address of such employer, or was otherwise delivered to such employer, the reimbursing employer files an application for redetermination in accordance with K.S.A. 44-710b, and amendments thereto.

(E) Past due payments of amounts certified by the secretary under this section shall be subject to the same interest, penalties and actions required by K.S.A. 44-717, and amendments thereto. (1) If any nonprofit organization or group of nonprofit organizations described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 or governmental reimbursing employer is delinquent in making payments of amounts certified by the secretary under this section, the secretary may terminate such employer's election to make payments in lieu of contributions as of the beginning of the next calendar year and such termination shall be effective for such next calendar year and the calendar year thereafter so that the termination is effective for two complete calendar years. (2) Failure of the Indian tribe or tribal unit to make required payments, including assessment of interest and penalty within 90 days of receipt of the bill will cause the Indian tribe to lose the option to make payments in lieu of contributions as described pursuant to paragraph (e)(1) for the following tax year unless payment in full is received before contribution rates for the next tax year are calculated. (3) Any Indian tribe that loses the option to make payments in lieu of contributions due to late payment or nonpayment, as described in paragraph (2), shall have such option reinstated, if after a period of one year, all contributions have been made on time and no contributions, payments in lieu of contributions for benefits paid, penalties or interest remain outstanding.

(F) Failure of the Indian tribe or any tribal unit thereof to make required payments, including assessments of interest and penalties, after all collection activities deemed necessary by the secretary have been exhausted, will cause services performed by such tribe to not be treated as employment for purposes of K.S.A. 44-703(i)(3)(E), and amendments thereto. If an Indian tribe fails to make payments required under this section, including assessments of interest and penalties, within 90 days of a final notice of delinquency, the secretary shall immediately notify the United States internal revenue service and the United States department of labor. The secretary may determine that any Indian tribe that loses coverage pursuant to this paragraph may have services performed on behalf of such tribe again deemed "employment" if all contributions, payments in lieu of contributions, penalties and interest have been paid.

(G) In the discretion of the secretary, any employer who elects to become liable for payments in lieu of contributions and any nonprofit organization or group of nonprofit organizations described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 or governmental reimbursing employer or Indian tribe or tribal unit who is delinquent in filing reports or in making payments of amounts certified by the secretary under this section shall be required within 60 days after the effective date of such election, in the case of an eligible employer so electing, or after the date of notification to the delinquent employer under this subsection (e)(2)(G), in the case of a delinquent employer, to execute and file with the secretary a surety bond, except that the employer may elect, in lieu of a surety bond, to deposit with the secretary money or securities as approved by the secretary or to purchase and deliver to an escrow agent a certificate of deposit to guarantee payment. The amount of the bond, deposit or escrow agreement required by this subsection (e)(2)(G) shall not exceed 5.4% of the organization's taxable wages paid for employment by the eligible employer during the four calendar quarters immediately preceding the effective date of the election or the date of notification, in the case of a delinquent employer. If the employer did not pay wages in each of such four calendar quarters, the amount of the bond or deposit shall be as determined by the secretary. Upon the failure of an employer to comply with this subsection (e)(2)(G) within the time limits imposed or to maintain the required bond or deposit, the secretary may terminate the election of such eligible employer or delinquent employer, as the case may be, to make payments in lieu of contributions, and such termination shall be effective for the current and next calendar year.

(H) The state of Kansas shall make reimbursement payments quarterly at a fiscal year rate that shall be based upon: (i) The available balance in the state's reimbursing account as of December 31 of each calendar year; (ii) the historical unemployment experience of all covered state agencies during prior years; (iii) the estimate of total covered wages to be paid during the ensuing calendar year; (iv) the applicable fiscal year rate of the claims processing and auditing fee under K.S.A. 75-3798, and amendments thereto; and (v) actuarial and other information furnished to the secretary by the secretary of administration. In accordance with K.S.A. 75-3798, and amendments thereto, the claims processing and auditing fees charged to state agencies shall be deducted from the amounts collected for the reimbursement payments under this paragraph (H) prior to making the quarterly reimbursement payments for the state of Kansas. The fiscal year rate shall be expressed as a percentage of covered total wages and shall be the same for all covered state agencies. The fiscal year rate for each fiscal year will be certified in writing by the secretary to the secretary of administration on July 15 of each year and such certified rate shall become effective on the July 1 immediately following the date of certification. A detailed listing of benefit charges applicable to the state's reimbursing account shall be furnished quarterly by the secretary to the secretary of administration and the total amount of charges deducted from previous reimbursing payments made by the state. On January 1 of each year, if it is determined that benefit charges exceed the amount of prior reimbursing payments, an upward adjustment shall be made therefor in the fiscal year rate to be certified on the ensuing July 15. If total payments exceed benefit charges, all or part of the excess may be refunded, at the discretion of the secretary, from the fund or retained in the fund as part of the payments that may be required for the next fiscal year.

(3) *Allocation of benefit costs.* The reimbursing account of each reimbursing employer shall be charged the full amount of regular benefits and $\frac{1}{2}$ of the amount of extended benefits paid except that each reimbursing governmental employer's account shall be charged the full amount of regular benefits and extended benefits paid for weeks of un-

(continued)

employment beginning after December 31, 1978, to individuals whose entire base period wage credits are from such employer. When benefits received by an individual are based upon base period wage credits from more than one employer then the reimbursing employer's or reimbursing governmental employer's account shall be charged in the same ratio as base period wage credits from such employer bear to the individual's total base period wage credits. Notwithstanding any other provision of the employment security law, no reimbursing employer's or reimbursing governmental employer's account shall be charged for payments of extended benefits that are wholly reimbursed to the state by the federal government. Payments of unemployment compensation that are wholly reimbursed to the reimbursing employer by the federal government shall be charged for the purpose of such reimbursement under the federal CARES act, public law 116-136.

(A) *Proportionate allocation (when fewer than all reimbursing base period employers are liable).* If benefits paid to an individual are based on wages paid by one or more reimbursing employers and on wages paid by one or more contributing employers or rated governmental employers, the amount of benefits payable by each reimbursing employer shall be an amount that bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid to the individual as the total base period wages paid to the individual by such employer bears to the total base period wages paid to the individual by all of such individual's base period employers.

(B) *Proportionate allocation (when all base period employers are reimbursing employers).* If benefits paid to an individual are based on wages paid by two or more reimbursing employers, the amount of benefits payable by each such employer shall be an amount that bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid to the individual as the total base period wages paid to the individual by such employer bear to the total base period wages paid to the individual by all of such individual's base period employers.

(4) *Group accounts.* Two or more reimbursing employers may file a joint application to the secretary for the establishment of a group account for the purpose of sharing the cost of benefits paid that are attributable to service in the employment of such reimbursing employers. Each such application shall identify and authorize a group representative to act as the group's agent for the purposes of this ~~subsection (e)(4) paragraph~~. Upon approval of the application, the secretary shall establish a group account for such employers effective as of the beginning of the calendar quarter in which the secretary receives the application and shall notify the group's representative of the effective date of the account. Such account shall remain in effect for not less than four years and thereafter such account shall remain in effect until terminated at the discretion of the secretary or upon application by the group. Upon establishment of the account, each member of the group shall be liable for payments in lieu of contributions with respect to each calendar quarter in the amount that bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid in such quarter that are attributable to service performed in the employ of all members of the group as the total wages paid for service in employment by such member in such quarter bear to the total wages paid during such quarter for service performed in the employ of all members of the group. The secretary shall adopt such rules and regulations as the secretary deems necessary with respect to applications for establishment, maintenance and termination of group accounts that are authorized by this ~~subsection (e)(4) paragraph~~, for addition of new members to, and withdrawal of active members from such accounts, and for the determination of the amounts that are payable under this ~~subsection (e)(4) paragraph~~ by members of the group and the time and manner of such payments.

Sec. 17. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-710a is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-710a. (a) *Classification of employers by the secretary.* The term "employer" as used in this section refers to contributing employers. The secretary shall classify employers in accordance with their actual experience in the payment of contributions on their own behalf and with respect to benefits charged against their accounts with a view of fixing such contribution rates as will reflect such experience. If, as of the date such classification of employers is made, the secretary finds that any employing unit has failed to file any report required in connection therewith, or has filed a report which the secretary finds incorrect or insufficient, the secretary shall make an estimate of the information required from such employing unit on the basis of the best evidence reasonably available to the secretary at the time, and notify the employing unit thereof by mail addressed to its last known address. Unless such employing unit shall file the report or a corrected or sufficient report as the case may be, within 15 days after the mailing of such notice, the sec-

retary shall compute such employing unit's rate of contributions on the basis of such estimates, and the rate as so determined shall be subject to increase but not to reduction on the basis of subsequently ascertained information. The secretary shall determine the contribution rate of each employer in accordance with the requirements of this section.

(1) *New employers.* (A) No employer will be eligible for a rate computation until there have been 24 consecutive calendar months immediately preceding the computation date throughout which benefits could have been charged against such employer's account.

(B) (i) (a) ~~For the rate year 2014 and each rate year thereafter,~~ Each employer who is not eligible for a rate contribution shall pay contributions equal to 2.7% of wages paid during each calendar year with regard to employment, except such employers engaged in the construction industry shall pay a rate equal to 6%.

(b) (1) ~~For the rate year 2015 and each rate year thereafter,~~ An employer who was not doing business in Kansas prior to July 1, 2014, shall be eligible for either the new employer rate under subsection (a)(1)(B) (i)(a) or the rate associated with the reserve ratio such employer experienced in the state which such employer was formerly located, but in no event less than 1% if such:

(A) Employer has been in operation in the other state or states for at least the three years immediately preceding the date such employer becomes a liable employer in Kansas;

(B) employer provides the authenticated account history from information accumulated from operations of such employer in the other state or all the other states necessary to compute a current Kansas rate; and

(C) employer's business operations established in Kansas are of the same nature, as defined by the North American industrial classification system, as conducted by such employer in the other state or states.

(2) The election authorized in subsection (a)(1)(B)(i)(b) of this section must be made in writing within 30 days after notice of Kansas liability. A rate in accordance with subsection (a)(1)(B)(i)(a) will be assigned unless a timely election has been made.

(3) If the election is made timely, the employer's account will receive the rate elected for the remainder of that rate year. The rate assigned for the next and subsequent years will be determined by the condition of the account on the computation date.

(ii) For purposes of this subsection (a), employers shall be classified by industrial activity in accordance with standard procedures as set forth in rules and regulations adopted by the secretary. Employers engaged in more than one type of industrial activity shall be classified by principal activity. All rates assigned will remain in effect for a complete calendar year. If the sale or acquisition of a new establishment would require reclassification of the employer to a different industry sector, the employer would be promptly notified, and the contribution rate applicable to the new industry sector would become effective the following January 1.

(C) "Computation date" means June 30 of each calendar year with respect to rates of contribution applicable to the calendar year beginning with the following January 1. In arriving at contribution rates for each calendar year, contributions paid on or before July 31 following the computation date for employment occurring on or prior to the computation date shall be considered for each contributing employer who has been subject to this act for a sufficient period of time to have such employer's rate computed under this subsection (a).

(2) *Eligible employers.* (A) A reserve ratio shall be computed for each eligible employer by the following method: Total benefits charged to the employer's account for all past years shall be deducted from all contributions paid by such employer for all such years. The balance, positive or negative, shall be divided by the employer's average annual payroll, and the result shall constitute the employer reserve ratio.

(B) (i) ~~For rate year 2015 and prior rate years, negative account balance employers, as defined in subsection (d), shall pay contributions at the rate of 5.4% for each calendar year.~~

(ii) ~~For rate year 2016 and rate years thereafter,~~ Negative account balance employers, as defined in subsection (d), shall pay contributions at the rate referenced in ~~section subsection (a)(4)(D)(ii)(B).~~

(C) Eligible employers, other than negative account balance employers, who do not meet the average annual payroll requirements as stated in K.S.A. 44-703(a)(2), and amendments thereto, will be issued the maximum rate indicated by the maximum rate group of standard rate schedule—standard schedule 7 in subsection (a)(4)(D)(B)(ii) ~~of this section~~ until such employer establishes a new period of 24 consecutive calendar months immediately preceding the computation date throughout which benefits could have been charged against such

employer’s account by resuming the payment of wages. Contribution rates effective for each calendar year thereafter shall be determined as prescribed below.

(D) For rate year 2015 and prior rate years, as of each computation date, the total of the taxable wages paid during the 12-month period prior to the computation date by all employers eligible for rate computation, except negative account balance employers, shall be divided into 51 approximately equal parts designated in column A of schedule I as “rate groups,” except, with regard to a year in which the taxable wage base changes. The taxable wages used in the calculation for such a year and the following year shall be an estimate of what the taxable wages would have been if the new taxable wage base had been in effect during the entire twelve-month period prior to the computation date. The lowest numbered of such rate groups shall consist of the employers with the most favorable reserve ratios, as defined in this section, whose combined taxable wages paid are less than 1.96% of all taxable wages paid by all eligible employers. Each succeeding higher numbered rate group shall consist of employers with reserve ratios that are less favorable than those of employers in the preceding lower numbered rate groups and whose taxable wages when combined with the taxable wages of employers in all lower numbered rate groups equal the appropriate percentage of total taxable wages designated in column B of schedule I. Each eligible employer, other than a negative account balance employer, shall be assigned an experience factor designated under column C of schedule I in accordance with the rate group to which the employer is assigned on the basis of the employer’s reserve ratio and taxable payroll. If an employer’s taxable payroll falls into more than one rate group the employer shall be assigned the experience factor of the lower numbered rate group. If one or more employers have reserve ratios identical to that of the last employer included in the next lower numbered rate group, all such employers shall be assigned the experience factor designated to such last employer, notwithstanding the position of their taxable payroll in column B of schedule I.

SCHEDULE I—Eligible Employers

Column A Rate group	Column B Cumulative taxable payroll	Column C Experience factor (Ratio to total wages)
1	Less than 1.96%	.025%
2	1.96 but less than 3.92	.04
3	3.92 but less than 5.88	.08
4	5.88 but less than 7.84	.12
5	7.84 but less than 9.80	.16
6	9.80 but less than 11.76	.20
7	11.76 but less than 13.72	.24
8	13.72 but less than 15.68	.28
9	15.68 but less than 17.64	.32
10	17.64 but less than 19.60	.36
11	19.60 but less than 21.56	.40
12	21.56 but less than 23.52	.44
13	23.52 but less than 25.48	.48
14	25.48 but less than 27.44	.52
15	27.44 but less than 29.40	.56
16	29.40 but less than 31.36	.60
17	31.36 but less than 33.32	.64
18	33.32 but less than 35.28	.68
19	35.28 but less than 37.24	.72
20	37.24 but less than 39.20	.76
21	39.20 but less than 41.16	.80
22	41.16 but less than 43.12	.84
23	43.12 but less than 45.08	.88
24	45.08 but less than 47.04	.92
25	47.04 but less than 49.00	.96
26	49.00 but less than 50.96	1.00
27	50.96 but less than 52.92	1.04
28	52.92 but less than 54.88	1.08
29	54.88 but less than 56.84	1.12
30	56.84 but less than 58.80	1.16
31	58.80 but less than 60.76	1.20
32	60.76 but less than 62.72	1.24
33	62.72 but less than 64.68	1.28
34	64.68 but less than 66.64	1.32
35	66.64 but less than 68.60	1.36
36	68.60 but less than 70.56	1.40
37	70.56 but less than 72.52	1.44
38	72.52 but less than 74.48	1.48

Column A Rate group	Column B Cumulative taxable payroll	Column C Experience factor (Ratio to total wages)
39	74.48 but less than 76.44	1.52
40	76.44 but less than 78.40	1.56
41	78.40 but less than 80.36	1.60
42	80.36 but less than 82.32	1.64
43	82.32 but less than 84.28	1.68
44	84.28 but less than 86.24	1.72
45	86.24 but less than 88.20	1.76
46	88.20 but less than 90.16	1.80
47	90.16 but less than 92.12	1.84
48	92.12 but less than 94.08	1.88
49	94.08 but less than 96.04	1.92
50	96.04 but less than 98.00	1.96
51	98.00 and over	2.00

(E) For rate year 2015 and prior rate years, negative account balance employers shall, in addition to paying the rate provided for in subsection (a)(2)(B) of this section, pay a surcharge based on the size of the employer’s negative reserve ratio, the calculation which is provided for in subsection (a)(2) of this section. The amount of the surcharge shall be determined from column B2 of schedule II of this section for calendar years 2012, 2013, 2014 and from column B4 of schedule II of this section for each calendar year after 2014. Each negative account balance employer who does not satisfy the requirements to have an average annual payroll, as defined by K.S.A. 44-703(a)(2), and amendments thereto, shall be assigned a surcharge of equal to the maximum negative ratio surcharge from column B2 of schedule II of this section for calendar years 2012, 2013 and 2014. Funds from the surcharge paid according to this subsection (a)(2)(E), and amendments thereto, shall be used to pay principal and interest due on funds received from the federal unemployment account under title XII of the social security act, (42 U.S.C. §§ 1321 to 1324), in the following manner:

(i) For each calendar year 2012, 2013 and 2014, an additional 0.10% of the taxable wages paid by all negative account balance employers with a negative reserve ratio between 0.0% and 19.9% shall be designated an interest assessment surcharge and paid into the employment security interest assessment fund for the purpose of paying interest due and owing on funds received from the federal unemployment account under title XII of the social security act. The total surcharges assessed, including the additional 0.10% surcharge mentioned above, on such employers are listed in schedule II column B2. For the calendar year 2015, the surcharge rate for negative balance employers with a negative reserve ratio between 0.0% and 19.9% shall be as listed in schedule II column B4.

(ii) For the calendar years 2012, 2013 and 2014, an additional surcharge on negative balance employers with a negative reserve ratio of 20.0% and higher shall be designated an interest assessment surcharge and deposited in the employment security interest assessment fund. The additional surcharge shall be used for the purposes of paying interest due and owing on funds received from the federal unemployment account under title XII of the social security act. The total surcharge including the additional surcharge on such employers is listed in schedule II column B3 of this section.

(iii) For any succeeding year in which interest is due and owing on funds received from the federal unemployment account under title XII of the social security act, the secretary of labor may adjust the surcharge amounts necessary to pay such interest;

(iv) the portion of such surcharge used for the payment of such interest shall not be included in the calculation of such employers reserve ratio pursuant to subsection (a)(2). The portion of such surcharge used for the payment of principal shall be included in the calculation of such employers reserve ratio pursuant to subsection (a)(2); and

(v) if the amounts collected under this subsection are in excess of the amounts needed to pay interest due, the amounts in excess shall remain in the employment security interest assessment fund to be used to pay interest in future years. Whenever the secretary certifies all interest payments have been paid pursuant to this section, any excess funds remaining in the employment security interest assessment fund shall be transferred to the employment security trust fund for the purpose of paying any remaining principal amount due for advances described in this section. In the event that the amount transferred from the employment security interest assessment fund exceeds such remaining amount of principal due, the balance shall be used for the purposes of the employment security trust fund.

(continued)

SCHEDULE II—Surcharge on Negative Accounts

Column A Negative Reserve Ratio	Column B1 Surcharge as a percent of taxable wages	Column B2 Surcharge as a percent of taxable wages	Column B3 Surcharge as a percent of taxable wages	Column B4 Surcharge as a percent of taxable wages
Less than 2.0%	0.20%	0.30%		0.10%
2.0% but less than 4.0	0.40	0.50		0.20
4.0 but less than 6.0	0.60	0.70		0.30
6.0 but less than 8.0	0.80	0.90		0.40
8.0 but less than 10.0	1.00	1.10		0.50
10.0 but less than 12.0	1.20	1.30		0.60
12.0 but less than 14.0	1.40	1.50		0.70
14.0 but less than 16.0	1.60	1.70		0.80
16.0 but less than 18.0	1.80	1.90		0.90
18.0 but less than 20.0	2.00	2.10		1.00
20.0 but less than 22.0	2.00		2.20	1.10
22.0 but less than 24.0	2.00		2.40	1.20
24.0 but less than 26.0	2.00		2.60	1.30
26.0 but less than 28.0	2.00		2.80	1.40
28.0 but less than 30.0	2.00		3.00	1.50
30.0 but less than 32.0	2.00		3.20	1.60
32.0 but less than 34.0	2.00		3.40	1.70
34.0 but less than 36.0	2.00		3.60	1.80
36.0 but less than 38.0	2.00		3.80	1.90
38.0 and over	2.00		4.00	2.00

(D) If the amounts collected from negative account balance employers and paid into the employment security interest assessment fund for the purpose of paying interest due and owing on funds received from the federal unemployment account under title XII of the social security act are in excess of the amounts needed to pay interest due, the amounts in excess shall remain in the employment security interest assessment fund to be used to pay interest in future years. Whenever the secretary certifies all interest payments have been paid, any excess funds remaining in the employment security interest assessment fund shall be transferred to the employment security trust fund for the purpose of paying any remaining principal amount due for advances described in this section. In the event that the amount transferred from the employment security interest assessment fund exceeds such remaining amount of principal due, the balance shall be used for the purposes of the employment security trust fund.

(3) Entering and expanding employer. (A) The secretary, as a method of providing for a reduced rate of contributions to an employer shall verify the qualifications in this statute that bear a direct relation to unemployment risk for that employer.

(B) If, as of the computation date, an eligible, positive balance employer's reserve ratio is significantly affected due to an increase in the employer's taxable payroll of at least 100% and such increase is attributable to a growth in employment, and not to a change in the taxable wage base from the previous year, the secretary shall assign a reduced rate of contributions for a period of three years.

(i) Such reduced rate of contributions shall be the new employer rate described in subsection (a)(1)(B)(i)(a), or a rate based on the employer's demonstrated risk as reflected in the employer's reserve fund ratio history.

(ii) To be eligible for such reduced rate, the employer must maintain a positive account balance throughout the reduced-rate period and must have an increase in account balance for each year.

(4)—Planned yield. (A) For rate year 2015 and prior rate years, the average required yield shall be determined from schedule III of this section, and the planned yield on total wages in column B of schedule III shall be determined by the reserve fund ratio in column A of schedule III. The reserve fund ratio shall be determined by dividing total assets in the employment security fund provided for in K.S.A. 44-712(a), and amendments thereto, excluding all moneys credited to the account of this state pursuant to section 903 of the federal social security act, as amended, which have been appropriated by the state legislature, whether or not withdrawn from the trust fund, and excluding contributions not yet paid on July 31 by total payrolls for contributing employers for the preceding fiscal year which ended June 30.

(B)(A) For the each rate year 2016 and rate years thereafter, the contribution schedule in effect shall be determined by the applicable fund control table and rate schedule table of subsection (a)(4)(D)(B).

SCHEDULE III—Fund Control Ratios to Total Wages

Column A Reserve Fund Ratio	Column B Planned Yield
4.500 and over	0.00
4.475 but less than 4.500	0.01
4.450 but less than 4.475	0.02

Column A Reserve Fund Ratio	Column B Planned Yield
4.425 but less than 4.450	0.03
4.400 but less than 4.425	0.04
4.375 but less than 4.400	0.05
4.350 but less than 4.375	0.06
4.325 but less than 4.350	0.07
4.300 but less than 4.325	0.08
4.275 but less than 4.300	0.09
4.250 but less than 4.275	0.10
4.225 but less than 4.250	0.11
4.200 but less than 4.225	0.12
4.175 but less than 4.200	0.13
4.150 but less than 4.175	0.14
4.125 but less than 4.150	0.15
4.100 but less than 4.125	0.16
4.075 but less than 4.100	0.17
4.050 but less than 4.075	0.18
4.025 but less than 4.050	0.19
4.000 but less than 4.025	0.20
3.950 but less than 4.000	0.21
3.900 but less than 3.950	0.22
3.850 but less than 3.900	0.23
3.800 but less than 3.850	0.24
3.750 but less than 3.800	0.25
3.700 but less than 3.750	0.26
3.650 but less than 3.700	0.27
3.600 but less than 3.650	0.28
3.550 but less than 3.600	0.29
3.500 but less than 3.550	0.30
3.450 but less than 3.500	0.31
3.400 but less than 3.450	0.32
3.350 but less than 3.400	0.33
3.300 but less than 3.350	0.34
3.250 but less than 3.300	0.35
3.200 but less than 3.250	0.36
3.150 but less than 3.200	0.37
3.100 but less than 3.150	0.38
3.050 but less than 3.100	0.39
3.000 but less than 3.050	0.40
2.950 but less than 3.000	0.41
2.900 but less than 2.950	0.42
2.850 but less than 2.900	0.43
2.800 but less than 2.850	0.44
2.750 but less than 2.800	0.45
2.700 but less than 2.750	0.46
2.650 but less than 2.700	0.47
2.600 but less than 2.650	0.48
2.550 but less than 2.600	0.49
2.500 but less than 2.550	0.50
2.450 but less than 2.500	0.51
2.400 but less than 2.450	0.52
2.350 but less than 2.400	0.53
2.300 but less than 2.350	0.54
2.250 but less than 2.300	0.55
2.200 but less than 2.250	0.56
2.150 but less than 2.200	0.57
2.100 but less than 2.150	0.58
2.050 but less than 2.100	0.59
2.000 but less than 2.050	0.60
1.975 but less than 2.000	0.61
1.950 but less than 1.975	0.62
1.925 but less than 1.950	0.63
1.900 but less than 1.925	0.64
1.875 but less than 1.900	0.65
1.850 but less than 1.875	0.66
1.825 but less than 1.850	0.67
1.800 but less than 1.825	0.68
1.775 but less than 1.800	0.69
1.750 but less than 1.775	0.70
1.725 but less than 1.750	0.71
1.700 but less than 1.725	0.72
1.675 but less than 1.700	0.73
1.650 but less than 1.675	0.74
1.625 but less than 1.650	0.75
1.600 but less than 1.625	0.76

Column A Reserve Fund Ratio	Column B Planned Yield
1.575 but less than 1.600	0.77
1.550 but less than 1.575	0.78
1.525 but less than 1.550	0.79
1.500 but less than 1.525	0.80
1.475 but less than 1.500	0.81
1.450 but less than 1.475	0.82
1.425 but less than 1.450	0.83
1.400 but less than 1.425	0.84
1.375 but less than 1.400	0.85
1.350 but less than 1.375	0.86
1.325 but less than 1.350	0.87
1.300 but less than 1.325	0.88
1.275 but less than 1.300	0.89
1.250 but less than 1.275	0.90
1.225 but less than 1.250	0.91
1.200 but less than 1.225	0.92
1.175 but less than 1.200	0.93
1.150 but less than 1.175	0.94
1.125 but less than 1.150	0.95
1.100 but less than 1.125	0.96
1.075 but less than 1.100	0.97
1.050 but less than 1.075	0.98
1.025 but less than 1.050	0.99
1.000 but less than 1.025	1.00
0.900 but less than 1.000	1.01
0.800 but less than 0.900	1.02
0.700 but less than 0.800	1.03
0.600 but less than 0.700	1.04
0.500 but less than 0.600	1.05
0.400 but less than 0.500	1.06
0.300 but less than 0.400	1.07
0.200 but less than 0.300	1.08
0.100 but less than 0.200	1.09
Less than 0.100%	1.10

(C) *Adjustment to taxable wages.* For rate year 2015 and prior rate years, the planned yield as a percent of total wages, as determined in this subsection (a)(4), shall be adjusted to taxable wages by multiplying by the ratio of total wages to taxable wages for all contributing employers for the preceding fiscal year ending June 30, except, with regard to a year in which the taxable wage base changes. The taxable wages used in the calculation for such a year and the following year shall be an estimate of what the taxable wages would have been if the new taxable wage base had been in effect during all of the preceding fiscal year ending June 30.

(D)(B) *Effective rates.* (i) For rate year 2016 and ensuing rate years, Employer contribution rates to be effective for the ensuing each calendar year shall be determined by the applicable rate schedule in clause (ii) and the fund control table for the rate year as specified contained in this section clause. The average high cost multiple of the trust fund as of the computation date shall determine the contribution schedule in effect for the next rate year. For purposes of subsection (a)(4)(D)(B)(i) and (v), the average high cost multiple is the reserve fund ratio, as defined by subsection (a)(4)(A), divided by the average high benefit cost rate. The average high benefit cost rate shall be determined by averaging the three highest benefit cost rates over the last 20 years from the preceding fiscal year which ended June 30. The high benefit cost rate is defined by dividing total benefits paid in the fiscal year by total payrolls for covered employers in the fiscal year. *The reserve fund ratio shall be determined by dividing total assets in the employment security fund provided for in K.S.A. 44-712(a), and amendments thereto, excluding all moneys credited to the account of this state pursuant to section 903 of the federal social security act, as amended, that have been appropriated by the legislature, whether or not withdrawn from the trust fund, and excluding contributions not yet paid on July 31, by total payrolls for contributing employers for the preceding fiscal year that ended on June 30.*

Fund Control Table A
For Rate Years 2016-2021

Lower AHCM Threshold	Upper AHCM Threshold	Solvency Adjustment to Standard Rate per Standard Rate Schedule
1,000.00000 -1,000.00000	0.19999	1.60%
0.20000	0.44999	1.40%
0.45000	0.59999	1.20%

Lower AHCM Threshold	Upper AHCM Threshold	Solvency Adjustment to Standard Rate per Standard Rate Schedule
0.60000	0.74999	1.00%
0.75000	1.14999	0.00%
1.15000	1,000.00000 1,000.00000	-0.50%

Fund Control Table B
For Rate Year 2022 and Ensuing Calendar Years

KS SUTA Tax Rate Schedules	Lower AHCM Threshold	Upper AHCM Threshold	Solvency/Credit Adjustment to Maximum Standard Rate	Solvency/Credit Adjustment as a Rate Group Multiplier to Standard, Earned Rate Group	Solvency/Credit Adjustment as a Total % to Employer's Standard, Earned Rate Group
Solvency Schedules (1-6)	1	1,000.00000	0.00001	2.00%	0.05263%
	2	0.00000	0.24999	1.80%	0.04737%
	3	0.25000	0.44999	1.60%	0.04211%
	4	0.45000	0.59999	1.40%	0.03684%
	5	0.60000	0.69999	1.20%	0.03158%
	6	0.70000	0.74999	1.00%	0.02632%
Standard Schedule (7)	7	0.75000	1.24999	0.00%	0.00000%
	8	1.25000	1.29999	1.00%	0.02632%
Credit Schedules (8-13)	9	1.30000	1.39999	1.20%	0.03158%
	10	1.40000	1.54999	1.40%	0.03684%
	11	1.55000	1.74999	1.60%	0.04211%
	12	1.75000	1.99999	1.80%	0.04737%
	13	2.00000	1,000.00000	2.00%	0.05263%

(ii) (a) For rate year 2016 and ensuing rate years, Eligible employers shall be classified by rate group according to the standard rate schedule—standard rate schedule 7 in this section, subject to any adjustment pursuant to the effective rate schedule for that rate year. Except as provided in subclause (b), for rate years 2016 through 2021, the rate pursuant to the standard rate schedule as adjusted by fund control table A shall apply. Except as provided in subclause (b), for rate year 2022 and ensuing calendar years, the rate pursuant to standard rate schedule 7, solvency schedules 1 through 6 or credit schedules 8 through 13 shall apply as provided by fund control table B.

(b) (1) In the event the full transfer of \$250,000,000 is not made as provided in section 6, and amendments thereto, to the employment security fund on or before July 15, 2021, all contributing employers shall pay the rate as set forth in standard rate schedule—standard rate schedule 7 for the 2022 calendar year.

(2) In the event the second transfer of up to \$250,000,000 is not made as provided in section 6, and amendments thereto, to the employment security fund on or before July 15, 2022, all contributing employers shall pay the rate as set forth in standard rate schedules—standard rate schedule 7 for the 2023 calendar year.

STANDARD RATE SCHEDULE -
STANDARD RATE SCHEDULE 7

Rate Group	Lower Reserve Ratio Limit	Upper Reserve Ratio Limit	Standard Rate
1	18.590	1,000,000.000	0.20%
2	17.875	18.589	0.40%
3	17.160	17.874	0.60%
4	16.445	17.159	0.80%
5	15.730	16.444	1.00%
6	15.015	15.729	1.20%
7	14.300	15.014	1.40%
8	13.585	14.299	1.60%
9	12.870	13.584	1.80%
10	12.155	12.869	2.00%
11	11.440	12.154	2.20%
12	10.725	11.439	2.40%
13	10.010	10.724	2.60%
14	9.295	10.009	2.80%
15	8.580	9.294	3.00%
16	7.865	8.579	3.20%
17	7.150	7.864	3.40%
18	6.435	7.149	3.60%
19	5.720	6.434	3.80%
20	5.005	5.719	4.00%
21	4.290	5.004	4.20%
22	3.575	4.289	4.40%

(continued)

Rate Group	Lower Reserve Ratio Limit	Upper Reserve Ratio Limit	Standard Rate
23	2.860	3.574	4.60%
24	2.145	2.859	4.80%
25	1.430	2.144	5.00%
26	0.715	1.429	5.20%
27	0.000	0.714	5.40%
N1	-0.714	-0.001	5.60%
N2	-1.429	-0.715	5.80%
N3	-2.144	-1.430	6.00%
N4	-2.859	-2.145	6.20%
N5	-3.574	-2.860	6.40%
N6	-4.289	-3.575	6.60%
N7	-5.004	-4.290	6.80%
N8	-5.719	-5.005	7.00%
N9	-6.434	-5.720	7.20%
N10	-7.149	-6.435	7.40%
N11	-1,000,000.000	-7.150	7.60%

Rate Group	1	2	3	4	5	6
N2	7.326316%	7.17368%	7.02105%	6.86842%	6.71579%	6.56316%
N3	7.578947%	7.42105%	7.26316%	7.10526%	6.94737%	6.78947%
N4	7.831579%	7.66842%	7.50526%	7.34211%	7.17895%	7.01579%
N5	8.084211%	7.91579%	7.74737%	7.57895%	7.41053%	7.24211%
N6	8.336842%	8.16316%	7.98947%	7.81579%	7.64211%	7.46842%
N7	8.589474%	8.41053%	8.23158%	8.05263%	7.87368%	7.69474%
N8	8.842105%	8.65789%	8.47368%	8.28947%	8.10526%	7.92105%
N9	9.094737%	8.90526%	8.71579%	8.52632%	8.33684%	8.14737%
N10	9.347368%	9.15263%	8.95789%	8.76316%	8.56842%	8.37368%
N11	9.600000%	9.40000%	9.20000%	9.00000%	8.80000%	8.60000%

CREDIT RATE SCHEDULES (8-13)

Rate Group	8	9	10	11	12	13
1	0.173684%	0.16842%	0.16316%	0.15789%	0.15263%	0.14737%
2	0.347368%	0.33684%	0.32632%	0.31579%	0.30526%	0.29474%
3	0.521053%	0.50526%	0.48947%	0.47368%	0.45789%	0.44211%
4	0.694737%	0.67368%	0.65263%	0.63158%	0.61053%	0.58947%
5	0.868421%	0.84211%	0.81579%	0.78947%	0.76316%	0.73684%
6	1.042105%	1.01053%	0.97895%	0.94737%	0.91579%	0.88421%
7	1.215789%	1.17895%	1.14211%	1.10526%	1.06842%	1.03158%
8	1.389474%	1.34737%	1.30526%	1.26316%	1.22105%	1.17895%
9	1.563158%	1.51579%	1.46842%	1.42105%	1.37368%	1.32632%
10	1.736842%	1.68421%	1.63158%	1.57895%	1.52632%	1.47368%
11	1.910526%	1.85263%	1.79474%	1.73684%	1.67895%	1.62105%
12	2.084211%	2.02105%	1.95789%	1.89474%	1.83158%	1.76842%
13	2.257895%	2.18947%	2.12105%	2.05263%	1.98421%	1.91579%
14	2.431579%	2.35789%	2.28421%	2.21053%	2.13684%	2.06316%
15	2.605263%	2.52632%	2.44737%	2.36842%	2.28947%	2.21053%
16	2.778947%	2.69474%	2.61053%	2.52632%	2.44211%	2.35789%
17	2.952632%	2.86316%	2.77368%	2.68421%	2.59474%	2.50526%
18	3.126316%	3.03158%	2.93684%	2.84211%	2.74737%	2.65263%
19	3.300000%	3.20000%	3.10000%	3.00000%	2.90000%	2.80000%
20	3.473684%	3.36842%	3.26316%	3.15789%	3.05263%	2.94737%
21	3.647368%	3.53684%	3.42632%	3.31579%	3.20526%	3.09474%
22	3.821053%	3.70526%	3.58947%	3.47368%	3.35789%	3.24211%
23	3.994737%	3.87368%	3.75263%	3.63158%	3.51053%	3.38947%
24	4.168421%	4.04211%	3.91579%	3.78947%	3.66316%	3.53684%
25	4.342105%	4.21053%	4.07895%	3.94737%	3.81579%	3.68421%
26	4.515789%	4.37895%	4.24211%	4.10526%	3.96842%	3.83158%
27	4.689474%	4.54737%	4.40526%	4.26316%	4.12105%	3.97895%
N1	4.863158%	4.71579%	4.56842%	4.42105%	4.27368%	4.12632%
N2	5.036842%	4.88421%	4.73158%	4.57895%	4.42632%	4.27368%
N3	5.210526%	5.05263%	4.89474%	4.73684%	4.57895%	4.42105%
N4	5.384211%	5.22105%	5.05789%	4.89474%	4.73158%	4.56842%
N5	5.557895%	5.38947%	5.22105%	5.05263%	4.88421%	4.71579%
N6	5.731579%	5.55789%	5.38421%	5.21053%	5.03684%	4.86316%
N7	5.905263%	5.72632%	5.54737%	5.36842%	5.18947%	5.01053%
N8	6.078947%	5.89474%	5.71053%	5.52632%	5.34211%	5.15789%
N9	6.252632%	6.06316%	5.87368%	5.68421%	5.49474%	5.30526%
N10	6.426316%	6.23158%	6.03684%	5.84211%	5.64737%	5.45263%
N11	6.600000%	6.40000%	6.20000%	6.00000%	5.80000%	5.60000%

(iii) For all rate years prior to 2016, except with regard to rates for negative account balance employers, employer contribution rates to be effective for the ensuing calendar year shall be computed by adjusting proportionately the experience factors from schedule I of this section to the required yield on taxable wages. For the purposes of this subsection (a)(4), all rates computed shall be rounded to the nearest .01% and for calendar year 1983 and ensuing calendar years, the maximum effective contribution rate shall not exceed 5.4%.

(iv) For rate years 2007 through 2015, employers who are current in filing quarterly wage reports and in payment of all contributions due and owing, shall be issued a contribution rate based upon the following reduction: For rate groups 1 through 5, the rates would be reduced to 0.00%; for rate groups 6 through 28, the rates would be reduced by 50%; for rate groups 29 through 51, the rates would be reduced by 40%.

(v) For rate year 2014 and rate years thereafter, an eligible employer other than a negative account balance employer, who has filed all reports due and paid all contributions due and owing on or before January 31 of the applicable year is entitled to a rate discount of 15% except as provided in this subsection. For rate year 2015 and rate years thereafter, an eligible employer other than a negative account balance employer, who has filed all reports due and paid all contributions due and owing on or before January 31 of the applicable year is entitled to a rate discount of 25% except as provided in this subsection. This discount shall not be in effect if other reduced rates pursuant to subsections (a)(4)(D)(i) through (iv) are in effect. This discount shall not be available for a rate year if the average high cost multiple, as defined in subsection (a)(4)(D)(i), of the employment security trust fund balance falls below 1.0 as of the computation date of that year's rates, and this discount shall thereafter cease to be in effect for all subsequent rate years.

SOLVENCY RATE SCHEDULES (1-6)

Rate Group	1	2	3	4	5	6
1	0.252632%	0.247375%	0.24211%	0.23684%	0.23158%	0.22632%
2	0.505263%	0.49474%	0.48421%	0.47368%	0.46316%	0.45263%
3	0.757895%	0.74211%	0.72632%	0.71053%	0.69474%	0.67895%
4	1.010526%	0.98947%	0.96842%	0.94737%	0.92632%	0.90526%
5	1.263158%	1.23684%	1.21053%	1.18421%	1.15789%	1.13158%
6	1.515789%	1.48421%	1.45263%	1.42105%	1.38947%	1.35789%
7	1.768421%	1.73158%	1.69474%	1.65789%	1.62105%	1.58421%
8	2.021053%	1.97895%	1.93684%	1.89474%	1.85263%	1.81053%
9	2.273684%	2.22632%	2.17895%	2.13158%	2.08421%	2.03684%
10	2.526316%	2.47368%	2.42105%	2.36842%	2.31579%	2.26316%
11	2.778947%	2.72105%	2.66316%	2.60526%	2.54737%	2.48947%
12	3.031579%	2.96842%	2.90526%	2.84211%	2.77895%	2.71579%
13	3.284211%	3.21579%	3.14737%	3.07895%	3.01053%	2.94211%
14	3.536842%	3.46316%	3.38947%	3.31579%	3.24211%	3.16842%
15	3.789474%	3.71053%	3.63158%	3.55263%	3.47368%	3.39474%
16	4.042105%	3.95789%	3.87368%	3.78947%	3.70526%	3.62105%
17	4.294737%	4.20526%	4.11579%	4.02632%	3.93684%	3.84737%
18	4.547368%	4.45263%	4.35789%	4.26316%	4.16842%	4.07368%
19	4.800000%	4.70000%	4.60000%	4.50000%	4.40000%	4.30000%
20	5.052632%	4.94737%	4.84211%	4.73684%	4.63158%	4.52632%
21	5.305263%	5.19474%	5.08421%	4.97368%	4.86316%	4.75263%
22	5.557895%	5.44211%	5.32632%	5.21053%	5.09474%	4.97895%
23	5.810526%	5.68947%	5.56842%	5.44737%	5.32632%	5.20526%
24	6.063158%	5.93684%	5.81053%	5.68421%	5.55789%	5.43158%
25	6.315789%	6.18421%	6.05263%	5.92105%	5.78947%	5.65789%
26	6.568421%	6.43158%	6.29474%	6.15789%	6.02105%	5.88421%
27	6.821053%	6.67895%	6.53684%	6.39474%	6.25263%	6.11053%
N1	7.073684%	6.92632%	6.77895%	6.63158%	6.48421%	6.33684%

(b) Successor classification. (1) (A) For the purposes of this subsection (b), whenever an employing unit, whether or not it is an "employing unit" within the meaning of K.S.A. 44-703(g), and amendments thereto, becomes an employer pursuant to K.S.A. 44-703(h)(4), and amendments thereto, or is an employer at the time of acquisition and meets the definition of a "successor employer" as defined by K.S.A. 44-703(dd), and amendments thereto, and thereafter transfers its trade or business, or any portion thereof, to another employer and, at the time of the transfer, there is substantially common ownership, management or control of the two employers, then the unemployment experience attributable to the transferred trade or business shall be transferred to the employer to whom such business is so transferred. These experience factors consist of all contributions paid, benefit experience and annual payrolls of the predecessor employer. The transfer of some or all of an employer's workforce to another employer shall be considered a transfer of trade or business when, as the result of such transfer, the transferring employer no longer performs trade or business with respect to the transferred workforce, and such trade or business is performed by the employer to whom the workforce is transferred.

(B) If, following a transfer of experience under subparagraph (A), the secretary determines that a substantial purpose of the transfer or business was to obtain a reduced liability for contributions, then the experience rating accounts of the employers involved shall be combined into a single account and a single rate assigned to such account.

(2) A successor employer as defined by K.S.A. 44-703(h)(4) or (dd), and amendments thereto, may receive the experience rating factors of the predecessor employer if an application is made to the secretary or the secretary's designee in writing within 120 days of the date of the transfer.

(3) Whenever an employing unit, whether or not it is an “employing unit” within the meaning of K.S.A. 44-703(g), and amendments thereto, acquires or in any manner succeeds to a percentage of an employer’s annual payroll which is less than 100% and intends to continue the acquired percentage as a going business, the employing unit may acquire the same percentage of the predecessor’s experience factors if: (A) The predecessor employer and successor employing unit make an application in writing on the form prescribed by the secretary; (B) the application is submitted within 120 days of the date of the transfer; (C) the successor employing unit is or becomes an employer subject to this act immediately after the transfer; (D) the percentage of the experience rating factors transferred shall not be thereafter used in computing the contribution rate for the predecessor employer; and (E) the secretary finds that such transfer will not tend to defeat or obstruct the object and purposes of this act.

(4) (A) The rate of both employers in a full or partial successorship under paragraph (1) ~~of this subsection~~ shall be recalculated and made effective on the first day of the next calendar quarter following the date of transfer of trade or business.

(B) If a successor employer is determined to be qualified under paragraph (2) or (3) ~~of this subsection~~ to receive the experience rating factors of the predecessor employer, the rate assigned to the successor employer for the remainder of the contributions year shall be determined by the following:

(i) If the acquiring employing unit was an employer subject to this act prior to the date of the transfer, the rate of contribution shall be the same as the contribution rate of the acquiring employer on the date of the transfer.

(ii) If the acquiring employing unit was not an employer subject to this act prior to the date of the transfer, the successor employer shall have a newly computed rate for the remainder of the contribution year which shall be based on the transferred experience rating factors as they existed on the most recent computation date immediately preceding the date of acquisition. These experience rating factors consist of all contributions paid, benefit experience and annual payrolls.

(5) Whenever an employing unit is not an employer at the time it acquires the trade or business of an employer, the unemployment experience factors of the acquired business shall not be transferred to such employing unit if the secretary finds that such employing unit acquired the business solely or primarily for the purpose of obtaining a lower rate of contributions. Instead, such employing unit shall be assigned the applicable industry rate for a “new employer” as described in subsection (a)(1). In determining whether the business was acquired solely or primarily for the purpose of obtaining a lower rate of contributions, the secretary shall use objective factors which may include the cost of acquiring the business, whether the employer continued the business enterprise of the acquired business, how long such business enterprise was continued, or whether a substantial number of new employees were hired for performance of duties unrelated to the business activity conducted prior to acquisition.

(6) Whenever an employer’s account has been terminated as provided in K.S.A. 44-711(d) and (e), and amendments thereto, and the employer continues with employment to liquidate the business operations, that employer shall continue to be an “employer” subject to the employment security law as provided in K.S.A. 44-703(h)(8), and amendments thereto. The rate of contribution from the date of transfer to the end of the then current calendar year shall be the same as the contribution rate prior to the date of the transfer. At the completion of the then current calendar year, the rate of contribution shall be that of a “new employer” as described in subsection (a)(1).

(7) No rate computation will be permitted an employing unit succeeding to the experience of another employing unit pursuant to this section for any period subsequent to such succession except in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary. Any such regulations shall be consistent with federal requirements for additional credit allowance in section 3303 of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, and consistent with the provisions of this act.

(c) *Voluntary contributions.* Notwithstanding any other provision of the employment security law, any employer may make voluntary payments for the purpose of reducing or maintaining a reduced rate in addition to the contributions required under this section. Such voluntary payments may be made only during the thirty-day period immediately following the date of mailing of experience rating notices for a calendar year. All such voluntary contribution payments shall be paid prior to the expiration of 120 days after the beginning of the year for which such rates are effective. The amount of voluntary contributions

shall be credited to the employer’s account as of the next preceding computation date and the employer’s rate shall be computed accordingly. Under no circumstances shall voluntary payments be refunded in whole or in part.

(d) As used in this section, “negative account balance employer” means an eligible employer whose total benefits charged to such employer’s account for all past years have exceeded all contributions paid by such employer for all such years.

(e) There is hereby established in the state treasury, separate and apart from all public moneys or funds of this state, an employment security interest assessment fund, which shall be administered by the secretary as provided in this act. Moneys in the employment security fund established by K.S.A. 44-712, and amendments thereto, and employment security interest assessment fund established by K.S.A. 44-710, and amendments thereto, shall not be invested in the pooled money investment portfolio established under K.S.A. 75-4234, and amendments thereto. Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 44-712(a), K.S.A. 44-716, K.S.A. 44-717 and K.S.A. 75-4234, and amendments thereto, or any like provision the secretary shall remit all moneys received from employers pursuant to the interest payment assessment established in subsection (a)(2)(E) pursuant to law, to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the employment security interest assessment fund. All moneys in this fund which are received from employers pursuant to the interest payment assessment established in subsection (a)(2)(E); assessments shall be expended solely for the purposes and in the amounts found by the secretary necessary to pay any principal and interest due and owing the United States department of labor resulting from any advancements made to the Kansas employment security fund pursuant to the provisions of title XII of the social security act (42 U.S.C. §§ 1321 to 1324) except as may be otherwise provided under subsection (a)(2)(E) (a)(2)(D). Notwithstanding any provision of this section, all moneys received and credited to this fund pursuant to subsection (a)(2)(E); shall remain part of the employment security interest assessment fund and shall be used only in accordance with the conditions specified in subsection (a)(2)(E).

(f) The secretary of labor shall annually prepare and submit a certification as to the solvency and adequacy of the amount credited to the state of Kansas’ account in the federal employment security trust fund to the governor and the legislative coordinating council. The certification shall be submitted on or before December 1 of each calendar year and shall be for the 12-month period ending on June 30 of that calendar year. In arriving at the certification contributions paid on or before July 31 following the 12-month period ending date of June 30 shall be considered. Each certification shall be used to determine the need for any adjustment to schedule III in subsection (a)(4)(B) and to assist in preparing legislation to accomplish any such adjustment.

Sec. 18. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-710b is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-710b. (a) *By the secretary of labor.* The secretary of labor shall promptly notify each contributing employer of its rate of contributions, each rated governmental employer of its benefit cost rate and each reimbursing employer of its benefit liability as determined for any calendar year pursuant to K.S.A. 44-710 and 44-710a, and amendments thereto, on or before November 30 of the calendar year immediately preceding the calendar year in which such rate takes effect. Such determination shall become conclusive and binding upon the employer unless, within 15 days after the mailing of notice thereof to the employer’s last known address or in the absence of mailing, within 15 days after the delivery of such notice, the employer files an application for review and redetermination, setting forth the reasons therefor. If the secretary of labor grants such review, the employer shall be promptly notified thereof and shall be granted an opportunity for a fair hearing, but no employer shall have standing, in any proceeding involving the employer’s rate of contributions or benefit liability, to contest the chargeability to the employer’s account of any benefits paid in accordance with a determination, redetermination or decision pursuant to subsection (e) of K.S.A. 44-710(c), and amendments thereto, except upon the ground that the services on the basis of which such benefits were found to be chargeable did not constitute services performed in employment for the employer and only in the event that the employer was not a party to such determination, redetermination or decision or to any other proceedings under this act in which the character of such services was determined. Any such hearing conducted pursuant to this section shall

(continued)

be heard in the county where the contributing employer maintains its principle place of business. The hearing officer shall render a decision concerning all matters at issue in the hearing within 90 days.

(b) *The secretary shall, without necessity of a request by an employer or a hearing, immediately and fully credit any contributing employer's, governmental rated employer's or reimbursing employer's account for any benefits paid upon a determination by the secretary that such benefits were an improper payment or paid to any person who received such benefits: (A) By fraud; or (B) in error where any conditions imposed by this act for the receipt of benefits were not fulfilled or where the recipient was not qualified to or disqualified from receiving such benefits.*

(2) (A) *Contributing employers, rated governmental employers and reimbursing employers shall be held harmless for and shall not be required to reimburse the state for any benefits paid that have been identified by the employer and reported to and determined by the secretary as fraudulent or as an improper payment, unless the secretary determines that such benefits were received properly and not: (i) By fraud; or (ii) in error where any conditions imposed by this act for the receipt of benefits were not fulfilled or where the recipient was not qualified to or disqualified from receiving such benefits. Any such determination by the secretary shall be subject to appeal as provided by the employment security law.*

(B) *Reimbursing employers shall be refunded for reimbursements made to the state for any claims or benefits paid on or after March 15, 2020, that are or have been reported to the secretary and determined by the secretary as fraudulent. Amounts refunded shall become due, subject to appeal as provided by the employment security law, upon a determination by the secretary, as provided by subparagraph (A), that the benefits were paid properly and not by fraud or in error.*

(C) *For the time period of March 15, 2020, through December 31, 2022, identifications of fraud reported to the secretary pursuant to subparagraphs (A) and (B) shall not be subject to any time limitation for disputing a claim or for appeal pursuant to K.S.A. 44-710, and amendments thereto, or pursuant to any other provision of the employment security law.*

(3) *The secretary shall review all reimbursing employer accounts and shall apply credit for any benefits previously paid by fraud or in error, as provided by paragraph (1), that have been charged against a reimbursing employer's account and have not yet been recovered through normal recovery efforts.*

(c) *Judicial review.* Any action of the secretary upon an employer's timely request for a review and redetermination of its rate of contributions or benefit liability, in accordance with subsection (a), is subject to review in accordance with the Kansas judicial review act. Any action for such review shall be heard in a summary manner and shall be given precedence over all other civil cases except cases arising under ~~subsection (i) of~~ K.S.A. 44-709(i), and amendments thereto, and the workmen's compensation act.

(e)(d) *Periodic notification of benefits charged.* The secretary of labor may provide by rules and regulations for periodic notification to employers of benefits paid and chargeable to their accounts or of the status of such accounts, and any such notification, in the absence of an application for redetermination filed in such manner and within such period as the secretary of labor may prescribe, shall become conclusive and binding upon the employer for all purposes. Such redeterminations, made after notice and opportunity for hearing, and the secretary's findings of facts in connection therewith may be introduced in any subsequent administrative or judicial proceedings involving the determination of the rate of contributions of any employer for any calendar year and shall be entitled to the same finality as is provided in this subsection with respect to the findings of fact made by the secretary of labor in proceedings to redetermine the contribution rate of an employer. The review or any other proceedings relating thereto as provided for in this section may be heard by any duly authorized employee of the secretary of labor and such action shall have the same effect as if heard by the secretary.

(e) *The secretary shall review the information reported by the United States department of labor pursuant to the payment integrity information act of 2019, public law 116-117, and any other relevant information available from the United States department of labor and any relevant information held by the department of labor available to the secretary regarding improper payment amounts for the state of Kansas for the period beginning on March 15, 2020, through December 31, 2022.*

(f) *Any federal unemployment insurance benefit program established as a result of COVID-19 or any pandemic shall not be continued after the ending date of the federal program through the use of Kansas state employment security fund contributions made by Kansas employers.*

Sec. 19. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-714 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-714. (a) *Duties and powers of secretary.* It shall be the duty of the

secretary to administer this act and the secretary shall have power and authority to adopt, amend or revoke such rules and regulations, to employ such persons, make such expenditures, require such reports, make such investigations, and take such other action as the secretary deems necessary or suitable to that end. Such rules and regulations may be adopted, amended, or revoked by the secretary only after public hearing or opportunity to be heard thereon. The secretary shall determine the organization and methods of procedure in accordance with the provisions of this act, and shall have an official seal which shall be judicially noticed. The secretary shall make and submit reports for the administration of the employment security law in the manner prescribed by K.S.A. 75-3044 ~~to through 75-3046, inclusive,~~ and 75-3048, and amendments thereto. Whenever the secretary believes that a change in contribution or benefit rates will become necessary to protect the solvency of the fund, the secretary shall promptly so inform the governor and the legislature, and make recommendations with respect thereto.

(b) *Publication.* The secretary shall cause to be printed for distribution to the public the text of this act, the secretary's rules and regulations and any other material the secretary deems relevant and suitable and shall furnish the same to any person upon application therefor.

(c) *Personnel.* Subject to other provisions of this act, the secretary is authorized to appoint, fix the compensation, and prescribe the duties and powers of such officers, accountants, deputies, attorneys, experts and other persons as may be necessary in carrying out the provisions of this act. The secretary may delegate to any such person so appointed such power and authority as the secretary deems reasonable and proper for the effective administration of this act, and may in the secretary's discretion bond any person handling moneys or signing checks under the employment security law.

(d) *Employment stabilization.* The secretary, with the advice and aid of the appropriate divisions of the department of labor, shall: (1) Take all appropriate steps to reduce and prevent unemployment; ~~to~~ (2) encourage and assist in the adoption of practical methods of vocational training, retraining and vocational guidance; ~~to~~ (3) investigate, recommend, advise, and assist in the establishment and operation, by municipalities, counties, school districts and the state, of reserves for public works to be used in time of business depression and unemployment; ~~to~~ (4) promote the reemployment of unemployed workers throughout the state in every other way that may be feasible; and (5) to these ends ~~to~~ carry on and publish the results of investigations and research studies.

(e) *Records and reports.* Each employing unit shall keep true and accurate work records, containing such information as the secretary may prescribe. Such records shall be open to inspection and subject to being copied by the secretary or the secretary's authorized representatives at any reasonable time and shall be preserved for a period of five years from the due date of the contributions or payments in lieu of contributions for the period to which they relate. Only one audit shall be made of any employer's records for any given period of time. Upon request the employing unit shall be furnished a copy of all findings by the secretary or the secretary's authorized representatives, resulting from such audit. A special inquiry or special examination made for a specific and limited purpose shall not be considered to be an audit for the purpose of this subsection. The secretary may require from any employing unit any sworn or unsworn reports, with respect to persons employed by it, which the secretary deems necessary for the effective administration of this act. Information thus obtained or obtained from any individual pursuant to the administration of this act shall be held confidential, except to the extent necessary for the proper presentation of a claim by an employer or employee under the employment security law, and shall not be published or be open to public inspection, other than to public officials or the agents or contractors of a public official in the performance of their official duties, in any manner revealing the individual's or employing unit's identity. The secretary may publish or otherwise disclose appeals records and decisions, and precedential determinations on coverage of employers, employment and wages, provided all social security numbers have been removed. Any claimant or employing unit or their representatives at a hearing before an appeal tribunal or the secretary shall be supplied with information from such records to the extent necessary for the proper presentation of the claim. The transcript made at any such benefits hearing shall not be discoverable or admissible in evidence in any other proceeding, hearing or determination of any kind or nature. In the event of any appeal of a benefits matter, the transcript shall be sealed by the hearing officer and shall be available only to any reviewing authority who shall reseat the transcript after making a review of it. In no event shall such transcript be deemed a public record. Nothing in this subsection shall be

construed to prohibit disclosure of any information obtained under the employment security law, including hearing transcripts, upon request of either of the parties, for the purpose of administering or adjudicating a claim for benefits under the provisions of any other state program, except that any party receiving such information shall be prohibited from further disclosure and shall be subject to the same duty of confidentiality otherwise imposed by this subsection and shall be subject to the penalties imposed by this subsection for violations of such duty of confidentiality. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to prohibit disclosure of any information obtained under the employment security law, including hearing transcripts, for use as evidence in a criminal investigation or in open court in a criminal prosecution or at an appeal hearing under the employment security law. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to prohibit disclosure of any information obtained under the employment security law, including hearing transcripts to an agent or contractor of a public official to whom disclosure is permissible under the employment security law, except that any party receiving such information shall be prohibited from further disclosure, except for use in the performance of such party's official duties, and shall be subject to the same duty of confidentiality otherwise imposed by this subsection and shall be subject to the penalties imposed by this subsection for violations of such duty of confidentiality. Any individual who violates any provisions of this subsection, shall be fined not less than \$20 nor more than \$200 or imprisoned for not longer than 90 days, or both. Original records of the agency and original paid benefit warrants of the state treasurer may be made available to the employment security agency of any other state or the federal government to be used as evidence in prosecution of violations of the employment security law of such state or federal government. Photostatic copies of such records shall be made and where possible shall be substituted for original records introduced in evidence and the originals returned to the agency. *Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to prohibit disclosure otherwise permissible under 20 C.F.R. part 603.5.*

(f) *Oaths and witnesses.* In the discharge of the duties imposed by the employment security law, the chairperson of an appeal tribunal, an appeals referee, the secretary or any duly authorized representative of the secretary shall have power to administer oaths and affirmations, take depositions, issue interrogatories, certify to official acts, and issue subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of books, papers, correspondence, memoranda and other records deemed necessary as evidence in connection with a disputed claim or the administration of the employment security law.

(g) *Subpoenas, service.* Upon request, service of subpoenas shall be made by the sheriff of a county within that county, by the sheriff's deputy, by any other person who is not a party and is not less than 18 years of age or by some person specially appointed for that purpose by the secretary of labor or the secretary's designee. A person not a party as described above or a person specially appointed by the secretary or the secretary's designee to serve subpoenas may make service any place in the state. The subpoena shall be served as follows:

(1) *Individual.* Service upon an individual, other than a minor or incapacitated person, shall be made: (A) By delivering a copy of the subpoena to the individual personally; (B) by leaving a copy at such individual's dwelling house or usual place of abode with some person of suitable age and discretion then residing therein; (C) by leaving a copy at the business establishment of the employer with an officer or employee of the establishment; (D) by delivering a copy to an agent authorized by appointment or by law to receive service of process, but if the agent is one designated by a statute to receive service, such further notice as the statute requires shall be given; or (E) if service as prescribed above in subparagraphs (A), (B), (C) or (D) cannot be made with due diligence, by leaving a copy of the subpoena at the individual's dwelling house, usual place of abode or usual business establishment, and by mailing a notice by first-class mail to the place that the copy has been left.

(2) *Corporations and partnerships.* Service upon a domestic or foreign corporation or upon a partnership or other unincorporated association, when by law it may be sued as such, shall be made by delivering a copy of the subpoena to an officer, partner or resident managing or general agent thereof, or by leaving the copy at any business office of the employer with the person having charge thereof or by delivering a copy to any other agent authorized by appointment or required by law to receive service of process, if the agent is one authorized by law to receive service and, if the law so requires, by also mailing a copy to the employer.

(3) *Refusal to accept service.* In all cases when the person to be served, or an agent authorized by such person to accept service of petitions and

summonses shall refuse to receive copies of the subpoena, the offer of the duly authorized process server to deliver copies thereof and such refusal shall be sufficient service of such subpoena.

(4) *Proof of service.* (A) Every officer to whom a subpoena or other process shall be delivered for service within or without the state, shall make return thereof in writing stating the time, place and manner of service of such writ and shall sign such officer's name to such return.

(B) If service of the subpoena is made by a person appointed by the secretary or the secretary's designee to make service, or any other person described in subsection (g), such person shall make an affidavit as to the time, place and manner of service thereof in a form prescribed by the secretary or the secretary's designee.

(5) *Time for return.* The officer or other person receiving a subpoena shall make a return of service promptly and shall send such return to the secretary or the secretary's designee in any event within 10 days after the service is effected. If the subpoena cannot be served it shall be returned to the secretary or the secretary's designee within 30 days after the date of issue with a statement of the reason for the failure to serve the same.

(h) *Subpoenas, enforcement.* In case of contumacy by or refusal to obey a subpoena issued to any person, any court of this state within the jurisdiction of which the inquiry is carried on or within the jurisdiction of which such person guilty of contumacy or refusal to obey is found, resides or transacts business, upon application by the secretary or the secretary's duly authorized representative, shall have jurisdiction to issue to such person an order requiring such person to appear before the secretary, or the secretary's duly authorized representative, to produce evidence, if so ordered, or to give testimony relating to the matter under investigation or in question. Failure to obey such order of the court may be punished by the court as a contempt thereof. Any person who, without just cause, shall fail or refuse to attend and testify or to answer any lawful inquiry or to produce books, papers, correspondence, memoranda or other records in obedience to the subpoena of the secretary or the secretary's duly authorized representative shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$200 or by imprisonment of not longer than 60 days, or both, and each day such violation continued shall be deemed to be a separate offense.

(i) *State-federal cooperation.* In the administration of this act, the secretary shall cooperate to the fullest extent consistent with the provisions of this act, with the federal security agency, shall make such reports, in such form and containing such information as the federal security administrator may from time to time require, and shall comply with such provisions as the federal security administrator may from time to time find necessary to assure the correctness and verification of such reports; and shall comply with the regulations prescribed by the federal security agency governing the expenditures of such sums as may be allotted and paid to this state under title III of the social security act for the purpose of assisting in the administration of this act. Upon request therefor the secretary shall furnish to any agency of the United States charged with the administration of public works or assistance through public employment, the name, address, ordinary occupation, and employment status of each recipient of benefits and such recipient's rights to further benefits under this act.

(j) *Reciprocal arrangements.* The secretary shall participate in making reciprocal arrangements with appropriate and duly authorized agencies of other states or of the federal government, or both, whereby:

(1) Services performed by an individual for a single employing unit for which services are customarily performed in more than one state shall be deemed to be services performed entirely within any one of the states: (A) In which any part of such individual's service is performed; (B) in which such individual maintains residence; or (C) in which the employing unit maintains a place of business, provided there is in effect as to such services, an election, approved by the agency charged with the administration of such state's unemployment compensation law, pursuant to which all the services performed by such individual for such employing units are deemed to be performed entirely within such state;

(2) service performed by not more than three individuals, on any portion of a day but not necessarily simultaneously, for a single employing unit which customarily operates in more than one state shall be deemed to be service performed entirely within the state in which such employing unit maintains the headquarters of its business; provided that there is in effect, as to such service, an approved election by an employing unit with the affirmative consent of each such individual, pursuant to which service performed by such individual for such employing unit is deemed to be performed entirely within such state;

(continued)

(3) potential rights to benefits accumulated under the employment compensation laws of one or more states or under one or more such laws of the federal government, or both, may constitute the basis for the payments of benefits through a single appropriate agency under terms which the secretary finds will be fair and reasonable as to all affected interests and will not result in any substantial loss to the fund;

(4) wages or services, upon the basis of which an individual may become entitled to benefits under an unemployment compensation law of another state or of the federal government, shall be deemed to be wages for insured work for the purpose of determining such individual's rights to benefits under this act, and wages for insured work, on the basis of which an individual may become entitled to benefits under this act, shall be deemed to be wages or services on the basis of which unemployment compensation under such law of another state or of the federal government is payable, but no such arrangement shall be entered into unless it contains provisions for reimbursements to the fund for such of the benefits paid under this act upon the basis of such wages or services, and provisions for reimbursements from the fund for such of the compensation paid under such other law upon the basis of wages for insured work, as the secretary finds will be fair and reasonable as to all affected interests; and

(5) (A) contributions due under this act with respect to wages for insured work shall be deemed for the purposes of K.S.A. 44-717, and amendments thereto, to have been paid to the fund as of the date payment was made as contributions therefor under another state or federal unemployment compensation law, but no such arrangement shall be entered into unless it contains provisions for such reimbursements to the fund of such contributions and the actual earnings thereon as the secretary finds will be fair and reasonable as to all affected interests;

(B) reimbursements paid from the fund pursuant to subsection (j) (4) shall be deemed to be benefits for the purpose of K.S.A. 44-704 and 44-712, and amendments thereto; the secretary is authorized to make to other state or federal agencies, and to receive from such other state or federal agencies, reimbursements from or to the fund, in accordance with arrangements entered into pursuant to the provisions of this section or any other section of the employment security law;

(C) the administration of this act and of other state and federal unemployment compensation and public employment service laws will be promoted by cooperation between this state and such other states and the appropriate federal agencies in exchanging services and in making available facilities and information; the secretary is therefore authorized to make such investigations, secure and transmit such information, make available such services and facilities and exercise such of the other powers provided herein with respect to the administration of this act as the secretary deems necessary or appropriate to facilitate the administration of any such unemployment compensation or public employment service law and, in like manner, to accept and utilize information, service and facilities made available to this state by the agency charged with the administration of any such other unemployment compensation or public employment service law; and

(D) to the extent permissible under the laws and constitution of the United States, the secretary is authorized to enter into or cooperate in arrangements whereby facilities and services provided under this act and facilities and services provided under the unemployment compensation law of any foreign government may be utilized for the taking of claims and the payment of benefits under the employment security law of this state or under a similar law of such government.

(k) *Records available.* The secretary may furnish the railroad retirement board, at the expense of such board, such copies of the records as the railroad retirement board deems necessary for its purposes.

(l) *Destruction of records, reproduction and disposition.* The secretary may provide for the destruction, reproduction, temporary or permanent retention, and disposition of records, reports and claims in the secretary's possession pursuant to the administration of the employment security law provided that prior to any destruction of such records, reports or claims the secretary shall comply with K.S.A. 75-3501 to through 75-3514, inclusive, and amendments thereto.

(m) *Federal cooperation.* The secretary may afford reasonable cooperation with every agency of the United States charged with administration of any unemployment insurance law.

(n) The secretary is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for copies made of public documents, as defined by K.S.A. 45-217(c), and amendments thereto, by xerographic, thermographic or other photocopying or reproduction process, in order to recover all or part of the actual costs incurred, including any costs incurred in certifying such copies. All moneys received from fees charged for copies of such doc-

uments shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the employment security administration fund. No such fees shall be charged or collected for copies of documents that are made pursuant to a statute which requires such copies to be furnished without expense.

(o) "Performance of official duties" means the administration or enforcement of law or the execution of the official responsibilities of a federal, state or local official, collection of debts owed to the courts or the enforcement of child support on behalf of a state or local official. Administration of law includes research related to the law administered by the public official. "Performance of official duties" does not include solicitation of contributions or expenditures to or on behalf of a candidate for public or political office or a political party.

Sec. 20. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-719 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-719. (a) (1) *Except as provided in subsection (a)(2), any person who makes a false statement or representation knowing it to be false or knowingly fails to disclose a material fact, to obtain or increase any benefit or other payment under this act, either for such person or for any other person, shall be guilty of theft and shall be punished in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 21-5801, and amendments thereto.*

(2) *Any violation of subsection (a)(1) shall be a severity level 5, nonperson felony if such person:*

(A) *Had no basis to obtain or increase any benefit or other payment under this act because the person failed to engage in employment as defined in K.S.A. 44-703, and amendments thereto, and failed to perform any services for wages within this state not within the meaning of employment as defined in K.S.A. 44-703, and amendments thereto;*

(B) *Knowingly made the false statement or representation in such a manner that such statement or representation purports to have been made by another person, either real or fictitious, and if a real person without the authority of such person; and*

(C) *communicated or caused to be communicated a false statement or representation on three or more occasions within a 30-day period that purported to be from different other persons, as provided by paragraph (2)(B), to the department of labor.*

(b) Any employing unit or any officer or agent for any employing unit or any other person who makes a false statement or representation knowing it to be false, or who knowingly fails to disclose a material fact, to prevent or reduce the payment of benefits to any individual entitled thereto, or to avoid becoming or remaining subject hereto or to avoid or reduce any contribution or other payment required from an employing unit under this act, or who willfully fails or refuses to make any such contributions or other payment or to furnish any reports required hereunder or to produce or permit the inspection or copying of records as required hereunder, shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$20 nor more than \$200, or by imprisonment for not longer than 60 days, or both such fine and imprisonment. Each such false statement or representation or failure to disclose a material fact and each day of such failure or refusal shall constitute a separate offense.

(c) Any person who willfully violates any provision of this act or any rule and regulation adopted by the secretary hereunder, the violation of which is made unlawful or the observance of which is required under the terms of this act, and for which a penalty is neither prescribed herein or provided by any other applicable statute, shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$20 nor more than \$200, or by imprisonment for not longer than 60 days, or by both such fine and imprisonment, and each day such violation continues shall be deemed to be a separate offense.

(d) (1) Any person who has received any amount of money as benefits under this act while any conditions for the receipt of benefits imposed by this act were not fulfilled in such person's case, or while such person was disqualified from receiving benefits, shall in the discretion of the secretary, either be liable to have such amount of money deducted from any future benefits payable to such person under this act or shall be liable to repay to the secretary for the employment security fund an amount of money equal to the amount so received by such person. After a period of five years, the secretary may waive the collection of any such amount of money when the secretary has determined that the payment of such amount of money was not due to fraud, misrepresentation, or willful nondisclosure on the part of the person receiving such amount of money, and the collection thereof would be against equity or would cause extreme hardship with regard to such person. The

collection of benefit overpayments which were made in the absence of fraud, misrepresentation or willful nondisclosure of required information on the part of the person who received such overpayments, may be waived by the secretary at any time if such person met all eligibility requirements of the employment security law during the weeks in which the overpayments were made.

(2) Any benefit erroneously paid which is not repaid shall bear interest at the rate of 1.5% per month or fraction of a month. If the benefit was received as a result of fraud, misrepresentation or willful nondisclosure of required information, interest shall accrue from the date of the final determination of overpayment until repayment plus interest is received by the secretary. If the overpayment was without fraud, misrepresentation or willful nondisclosure of required information, interest shall accrue upon any balance which remains unpaid two years after the final determination of overpayment is made and shall continue until payment plus accrued interest is received by the secretary. Interest collected pursuant to this section shall be paid into the special employment security fund, except that interest collected on federal administrative programs shall be returned to the federal government. Upon written request and for good cause shown, the secretary may abate any interest or portion thereof provided for by this subsection (d)(2). Interest accrued may not be paid by money deducted from any future benefits payable to such persons liable for any overpayment.

(3) Unless collection is waived by the secretary, any such amount shall be collectible in the manner provided in K.S.A. 44-717, and amendments thereto, for the collection of past due contributions. The courts of this state shall in like manner entertain actions to collect amounts of money erroneously paid as benefits, or unlawfully obtained, for which liability has accrued under the employment security law of any other state or of the federal government.

(4) In cases involving the collection of debts arising from the employment security law, the actual amount received from the United States department of treasury under the treasury offset program or its successor shall be credited to the overpayment and any fee charged by the department of treasury shall be borne by the debtor.

(e) Any employer or person who willfully fails or refuses to pay contributions, payments in lieu of contributions or benefit cost payments or attempts in any manner to evade or defeat any such contributions, payments in lieu of contributions or benefit cost payments or the payment thereof, shall be liable for the payment of such contributions, payments in lieu of contributions or benefit cost payments and, in addition to any other penalties provided by law, shall be liable to pay a penalty equal to the total amount of the contributions, payments in lieu of contributions or benefit cost payments evaded or not paid.

(f) (1) It shall be unlawful for an employing unit to knowingly obtain or attempt to obtain a reduced liability for contributions under K.S.A. 44-710a(b)(1), and amendments thereto, through manipulation of the employer's workforce, or for an employing unit that is not an employing unit at the time it acquires the trade or business, to knowingly obtain or attempt to obtain a reduced liability for contributions under K.S.A. 44-710a(b)(5), and amendments thereto, or any other provision of K.S.A. 44-710a, and amendments thereto, related to determining the assignment of a contribution rate, when the sole or primary purpose of the business acquisition was for the purpose of obtaining a lower rate of contributions, or for a person to knowingly advise an employing unit in such a way that results in such a violation, such employing unit or person shall be subject to the following penalties:

(A) If the person is an employer, then such employer shall be assigned the highest rate assignable under K.S.A. 44-710a, and amendments thereto, for the rate year during which such violation or attempted violation occurred and the three rate years immediately following this rate year. However, if the employer's business is already at such highest rate for any year, or if the amount of increase in the employer's rate would be less than 2% for such year, then a penalty rate of contributions of 2% of taxable wages shall be imposed for such year. Any moneys resulting from the difference of the computed rate and the penalty rate shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the special employment security fund.

(B) If the person is not an employer, such person shall be subject to a civil money penalty of not more than \$5,000. All fines assessed and collected under this section shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall

deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the special employment security fund.

(2) For purposes of this subsection, the term "knowingly" means having actual knowledge of or acting with deliberate ignorance or reckless disregard for the prohibition involved.

(3) For purposes of this subsection, the term "violates or attempts to violate" includes, but is not limited to, any intent to evade, misrepresentation or willful nondisclosure.

(4) (A) In addition to, or in lieu of, any civil penalty imposed by paragraph (1) if, the director of employment security or a special assistant attorney general assigned to the department of labor, has probable cause to believe that a violation of this subsection (f) should be prosecuted as a crime, a copy of any order, all investigative reports and any evidence in the possession of the division of employment security which relates to such violation, may be forwarded to the prosecuting attorney in the county in which the act or any of the acts were performed which constitute a violation of this subsection (f). Any case which a county or district attorney fails to prosecute within 90 days shall be returned promptly to the director of employment security. The special assistant attorney general assigned to the Kansas department of labor shall then notify the attorney general and if, in the opinion of the attorney general, the acts or practices involved warrant prosecution, the attorney general shall prosecute the case.

(B) Violation of this subsection (f) shall be a level 9, nonperson felony.

(5) The secretary shall establish procedures to identify the transfer or acquisition of a business for purposes of this section.

(6) For purposes of subsection (f):

(A) "Person" has the meaning given such term by section 7701(a)(1) of the internal revenue code of 1986;

(B) "trade or business" shall include the employer's workforce; and

(C) the provisions of K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 21-5211 and 21-5212, and amendments thereto, shall apply.

(7) This subsection (f) shall be interpreted and applied in such a manner as to meet the minimum requirements contained in any guidance or regulation issued by the United States department of labor.

Sec. 21. K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-757 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-757. *Shared work unemployment compensation program.* (a) As used in this section:

(1) "Affected unit" means a specified department, shift or other unit of two or more employees that is designated by an employer to participate in a shared work plan.

(2) "Fringe benefit" means health insurance, a retirement benefit received under a pension plan, a paid vacation day, a paid holiday, sick leave, and any other analogous employee benefit that is provided by an employer.

(3) "Fund" has the meaning ascribed thereto by K.S.A. 44-703(k), and amendments thereto.

(4) "Normal weekly hours of work" means the lesser of 40 hours or the average obtained by dividing the total number of hours worked per week during the preceding twelve-week period by the number 12.

(5) "Participating employee" means an employee who works a reduced number of hours under a shared work plan *initiated by their employer and approved by the secretary.*

(6) "Participating employer" means an employer who has *applied to and been approved by the secretary* for a shared work plan *that is in effect.*

(7) "Secretary" means the secretary of labor or the secretary's designee.

(8) "Shared work benefit" means an unemployment compensation benefit that is payable to an individual in an affected unit because the individual works reduced hours under an approved shared work plan.

(9) "Shared work plan" means a *short-term compensation program for reducing unemployment under which employees who are members of an affected unit share the work remaining after a reduction in their normal weekly hours of work.*

(10) "~~Shared work unemployment compensation program~~" means ~~a program designed to reduce unemployment and stabilize the work force by allowing certain employees to collect unemployment compensation benefits if the employees share the work remaining after a reduction in the total number of hours of work and a corresponding reduction in wages~~ *Short-term compensation program* means a *shared work plan program designed to provide an alternative to layoffs for employers experiencing a reduction in available work. A "short-term compensation program" preserves employees' jobs and an employer's trained workforce during*
(continued)

times of lowered economic activity by allowing an employer to reduce hours of work for employees rather than laying off some employees while others continue to work full time. Under a "short-term compensation program," employees experiencing a reduction in hours are allowed to collect a pro-rata share of their unemployment compensation benefits to replace a portion of the employee's lost wages.

(b) The secretary shall establish a voluntary ~~shared work unemployment~~ short-term compensation program as provided by this section. The secretary may adopt rules and regulations and establish procedures necessary to administer the ~~shared work unemployment~~ short-term compensation program.

(c) *The secretary shall create and manage an annual promotional campaign for the short-term compensation program to encourage and improve business participation. The promotional campaign shall include the following elements:*

(A) *Engagement in proactive educational communications with other state agencies and stakeholders, including the governor's office, legislators, workforce investment boards, labor unions and local, regional or state chambers of commerce;*

(B) *a dedicated department of labor employee or team to efficiently and timely answer employer's questions about the short-term compensation program;*

(C) *presentation materials that provide consistency of messaging about the benefits of using a short-term compensation program to provide stakeholders for distribution to employer groups, workforce investment boards or other interested parties;*

(D) *proactive engagement with employers experiencing economic stress or layoffs to share the benefits of the short-term compensation program and to ensure such employers are aware of the program; and*

(E) *an automated application, claims and weekly certification process for participating employers designed to facilitate participation, reduce an employer's administrative burden and promote the use of the short-term compensation program.*

(d) An employer who wishes to participate in the ~~shared work unemployment~~ short-term compensation program must submit a written shared work plan to the secretary for the secretary's approval. As a condition for approval, a participating employer must agree to furnish the secretary with reports relating to the operation of the shared work plan as requested by the secretary. The employer shall monitor and evaluate the operation of the established shared work plan as requested by the secretary and shall report the findings to the secretary.

(~~h~~)*(e)* The secretary may approve a shared work plan if:

(1) The shared work plan applies to and identifies a specific affected unit;

(2) the employees in the affected unit are identified by name and social security number;

(3) the shared work plan reduces the normal weekly hours of work for an employee, including regular part-time employees, in the affected unit by not less than ~~20%~~ 10% and not more than ~~40%~~ 50%;

(4) the shared work plan applies to at least 10% of the employees in the affected unit;

(5) the shared work plan describes the manner that the participating employer treats the fringe benefits of each employee in the affected unit and the employer certifies that if the employer provides health benefits and retirement benefits under a defined benefit plan, as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 414(j), or contributions under a defined contribution plan, as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 414(i), to any employee whose workweek is reduced under the program that such benefits will continue to be provided to employees participating in the ~~shared work~~ short-term compensation program under the same terms and conditions as though the workweek of such employee had not been reduced or to the same extent as other employees not participating in the ~~shared work~~ short-term compensation program;

(6) the employer certifies that the implementation of a shared work plan and the resulting reduction in work hours is in lieu of layoffs that would affect at least 10% of the employees in the affected unit and that would result in an equivalent reduction in work hours;

(7) the employer has filed all reports required to be filed under the employment security law for all past and current periods and has paid all contributions, benefit cost payments, or if a reimbursing employer has made all payments in lieu of contributions due for all past and current periods;

(8) (A) a contributing employer must be eligible for a rate computation under K.S.A. 44-710a(a)(2), and amendments thereto, and the contributing employer, as determined by the secretary, does not adversely impact the state's eligibility under section 2108 of the federal CARES act, public law 116-136;

(B) *if section 2108 of the federal CARES act, public law 116-136, is no longer in effect, a contributing employer eligible for a rate computation under K.S.A. 44-710(a)(2), and amendments thereto, that is a negative account employer as defined by K.S.A. 44-710a(d), and amendments thereto, may only be approved for a shared work application if the negative account employer's most recent calculated reserve ratio has improved from the previous reporting year's reserve ratio;*

(C) a rated governmental employer must be eligible for a rate computation under K.S.A. 44-710d(g), and amendments thereto;

(9) eligible employees may participate, as appropriate, in training, including without limitation, employer-sponsored training or worker training funded under the workforce investment act of 1998, to enhance job skills if such program has been approved by the state of Kansas;

(10) the employer includes a plan for giving advance notice, where feasible, to an employee whose workweek is to be reduced together with an estimate of the number of layoffs that would have occurred absent the ability to participate in shared work compensation and such other information as the secretary of labor determines is appropriate; and

(11) the terms of the employer's written plan and implementation are consistent with employer obligations under applicable federal and Kansas laws.

(~~e~~)*(f)* If any of the employees who participate in a shared work plan under this section are covered by a collective bargaining agreement, the shared work plan must be approved in writing by the collective bargaining agent.

(~~f~~)*(g)* A shared work plan may not be implemented to subsidize seasonal employers during the off-season.

(~~g~~)*(h)* The secretary shall approve or deny a shared work plan no later than the 30th day after the day the shared work plan is received by the secretary. The secretary shall approve or deny a shared work plan in writing. If the secretary denies a shared work plan, the secretary shall notify the employer of the reasons for the denial.

(~~h~~)*(i)* A shared work plan is effective on the date it is approved by the secretary, except for good cause a shared work plan may be effective at any time within a period of 14 days prior to the date such plan is approved by the secretary. The shared work plan expires on the last day of the 12th full calendar month after the effective date of the shared work plan.

(~~i~~)*(j)* An employer may modify a shared work plan created under this section to meet changed conditions if the modification conforms to the basic provisions of the shared work plan as approved by the secretary. The employer must report the changes made to the shared work plan in writing to the secretary before implementing the changes. If the original shared work plan is substantially modified, the secretary shall reevaluate the shared work plan and may approve the modified shared work plan if it meets the requirements for approval under subsection (d). The approval of a modified shared work plan does not affect the expiration date originally set for that shared work plan. If substantial modifications cause the shared work plan to fail to meet the requirements for approval, the secretary shall deny approval to the modifications as provided by subsection (g).

(~~j~~)*(k)* Notwithstanding any other provisions of the employment security law, an individual is unemployed and is eligible for shared work benefits in any week in which the individual, as an employee in an affected unit, works for less than the individual's normal weekly hours of work in accordance with an approved shared work plan in effect for that week. The secretary may not deny shared work benefits for any week to an otherwise eligible individual by reason of the application of any provision of the employment security law that relates to availability for work, active search for work or refusal to apply for or accept work with an employer other than the participating employer.

(~~k~~)*(l)* An individual is eligible to receive shared work benefits with respect to any week in which the secretary finds that:

(1) *The employee is determined to be eligible for unemployment compensation, except that while receiving shared work benefits, an employee shall not be required to meet work availability or work search requirements but shall be required to be available for the employee's normal work week;*

(2) the individual is employed as a member of an affected unit subject to a shared work plan that was approved before the week in question and is in effect for that week;

(~~2~~)*(3)* the individual is able to work and is available for additional hours of work or full-time work with the participating employer;

(~~3~~)*(4)* the individual's normal weekly hours of work have been reduced by at least ~~20%~~ 10% but not more than ~~40%~~ 50%, with a corresponding reduction in wages; and

(4)(5) the individual's normal weekly hours of work and wages have been reduced as described in subsection (k)(3)(4) for a waiting period of one week that occurs within the period the shared work plan is in effect, which period includes the week for which the individual is claiming shared work benefits.

(4)(m) The secretary shall pay an individual who is eligible for shared work benefits under this section a weekly shared work benefit amount equal to the individual's regular weekly benefit amount for a period of total unemployment multiplied by the nearest full percentage of reduction of the individual's hours as set forth in the employer's shared work plan. If the shared benefit amount is not a multiple of \$1, the secretary shall reduce the amount to the next lowest multiple of \$1. All shared work benefits under this section shall be payable from the fund.

(4)(n) An individual may not receive shared work benefits and regular unemployment compensation benefits in an amount that exceeds the maximum total amount of benefits payable to that individual in a benefit year as provided by K.S.A. 44-704(g), and amendments thereto.

(4)(o) An individual who has received all of the shared work benefits and regular unemployment compensation benefits available in a benefit year is an exhaustee under K.S.A. 44-704a and 44-704b, and amendments thereto, and is entitled to receive extended benefits under such statutes if the individual is otherwise eligible under such statutes.

(4)(p) The secretary may terminate a shared work plan for good cause if the secretary determines that the shared work plan is not being executed according to the terms and intent of the ~~shared work unemployment short-term~~ compensation program.

(4)(q) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this section, an individual shall not be eligible to receive shared work benefits for more than 26 52 calendar weeks during the 12-month period of the shared work plan, ~~except that two weeks of additional benefits shall be payable to claimants who exhaust regular benefits and any benefits under any other federal or state extended benefits program during the period July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004.~~ No week shall be counted as a week for which an individual is eligible for shared work benefits for the purposes of this section unless the week occurs within the 12-month period of the shared work plan.

(4)(r) No shared work benefit payment shall be made under any shared work plan or this section for any week that commences before April 1, 1989.

(4)(s) This section shall be construed as part of the employment security law.

Sec. 22. K.S.A. 44-758 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-758. (a) Any employer or any individual, organization, partnership, corporation or other legal entity ~~which that~~ is a lessor employing unit, as defined by ~~subsection (ff) of~~ K.S.A. 44-703(ff), and amendments thereto, shall be liable for contributions on wages paid by the lessor employing unit to individuals performing services for client lessees. ~~For the purposes of the employment security law, no client lessee shall lease an individual proprietor, partner or corporate officer, who is a shareholder or a member of the board of directors of the corporation, from any lessor employing unit.~~ Any client lessee shall be jointly and severally liable for any unpaid contributions, interest and penalties due under this law from any lessor employing unit attributable to wages for services performed for the client lessee by employees leased to the client lessee. The lessor employing unit shall keep separate records and submit separate quarterly contributions and wage reports for each client lessee.

(b) Any lessor employing unit ~~which that~~ is currently engaged in the business of leasing employees to client lessees shall comply with the provisions of subsection (a) prior to October 1, 1990.

(c) The provisions of this section shall not be applicable to private employment agencies ~~which that~~ provide temporary workers to employers on a temporary help basis, provided the private employment agencies are liable as employers for the payment of contributions on wages paid to temporary workers so employed.

(d) This section shall be construed as part of the employment security law.

Sec. 23. K.S.A. 44-758 and K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 44-703, 44-704, 44-705, 44-706, 44-709, 44-710, 44-710a, 44-710b, 44-714, 44-719 and 44-757 are hereby repealed.

Sec. 24. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the Kansas register.

State of Kansas

911 Coordinating Council

Notice of Hearing on Proposed Administrative Regulations

A public hearing will be conducted at 9:00 a.m. Monday, July 19, 2021, in Room 114 (First Floor Conference Room) of the Kansas Local Collection Point Administrator (Mainstream Nonprofit Solutions, Inc.) 217 SE 4th St., Topeka, Kansas, to consider the adoption of proposed rules and regulations of the Kansas 911 Coordinating Council.

This 60-day notice of the public hearing shall constitute a public comment period for the purpose of receiving written comments from the public on the proposed regulations. All interested parties may submit written public comments on the proposed regulations prior to the hearing to Scott A. Ekberg, NG911 Administrator, Kansas 911 Coordinating Council, PO Box 842, Emporia, KS 66801, or through email at scott.ekberg@kansas911.org. All interested parties will be given a reasonable opportunity to present their views, either orally, in writing, or both, concerning the adoption of the proposed regulations.

In order to give all parties an opportunity to present their views, it may be necessary to request that each participant limit oral presentation to five minutes. Any individual with a disability may request accommodation in order to participate in the public hearing and may request the proposed regulations and economic impact statement in an accessible format. Requests for accommodation should be made at least five working days in advance of the hearing by contacting Scott Ekberg at 785-438-8440. Handicap parking spaces are available on the South side of the building, near the main entrance, which is accessible.

These regulations are proposed for adoption on a permanent basis and copies of the proposed regulations and economic impact statements are available by contacting Scott Ekberg at the address or email listed above or on the website, www.kansas911.org. A summary of the proposed regulations and the economic impact follows:

K.A.R. 132-1-1 – Fees. This regulation was created in October, 2016 to increase the 911 fee from \$.53 to \$.60. With passage of HB2084, amending the Kansas 911 Act (K.S.A. 12-5362 et. seq), the legislature increased the fee by statute and this regulation is no longer applicable and is proposed for revocation. Revocation of this regulation will have no economic impact.

K.A.R. 132-1-2–Public safety answering point (PSAP). This new regulation is proposed to define the official action necessary for a new PSAP to be considered an operational PSAP. Since this definition simply clarifies, it will have no economic impact.

K.A.R. 132-2-1–LCPA; prerequisites; selection; contract. The proposed changes to the existing regulation establish prerequisites for the Local Collection Point Administrator (LCPA) and define the selection process and contract period of performance requirements. The proposed changes are intended to bring the regulation into alignment with the Kansas 911 Act (K.S.A. 12-5362 et seq) and no economic impact is anticipated.

(continued)

K.A.R. 132-3-1-911 federal grants; distribution. The proposed amendments to the existing regulation would replace existing language with grant guidance for PSAPs as sub-grantees for federal 911 grants. The proposed changes establish the method of procedure for distribution of sub-grants to individual PSAPs and as such will have positive impact on local levels of government who are awarded such sub-grants.

K.A.R. 132-4-1-Violation of the act; penalties. The proposed changes to the existing regulation update the regulation to align the regulation with statutory changes made to the Kansas 911 Act (K.S.A. 12-5362 et seq) during the 2019 legislative session. No economic impact is anticipated with these changes.

K.A.R. 132-4-2-Annual report. This proposed regulation establishes the process for submitting annual reports of 911 fee expenditures by PSAPs pursuant to the Kansas 911 Act (K.S.A. 12-5362 et seq). No economic impact is anticipated from this regulation.

K.A.R. 132-4-3-Expenditure preapproval process. This proposed regulation establishes the process for submitting preapproval requests for the expenditure of 911 fee funds pursuant to the Kansas 911 Act (K.S.A. 12-5362 et seq). No economic impact is anticipated from this regulation.

K.A.R. 132-5-1-Training standards; technology and operations of the next generation 911 (NG911) hosted solution. The proposed regulation defines training standards and requirements for the technology and operation of the Kansas NG911 hosted system as required by the Kansas 911 Act (K.S.A. 12-5362 et seq). Potential economic impact is the cost to PSAPs for staff to attend the required training. These costs are offset by the availability of 911 fee funds to cover them. Costs for attending the training will vary from PSAP to PSAP as salary rate are widely varied across the state. Total hourly training time expected annually is 8 hours per staff member.

K.A.R. 132-6-1-Geographic information system (GIS) standard. The proposed regulation establishes GIS data standards, maintenance policies and data reporting requirements for GIS data used in the Kansas NG911 System as required by the Kansas 911 Act (K.S.A. 12-5362 et seq). No altered economic impact is anticipated. PSAPs are currently funding the development and maintenance of the GIS data that is the basis of this regulation and no additional cost element is applicable.

Scott A. Ekberg
NG911 Administrator

Doc. No. 049118

State of Kansas

Department of Revenue

Notice of Hearing on Proposed Administrative Regulation

A public hearing will be conducted by the Department of Revenue at 9:00 a.m. Wednesday, July 21st, 2021, to consider the revision of a license plate regulation. Due to continuing concerns over COVID-19, the hearing will be held by teleconference hearing instead of an in-person

hearing. To participate in the teleconference hearing, a participant should call 877-400-9499 and enter conference code 9676129715. Copies of this proposed regulation and Economic Impact Statement may be found at <https://www.ksrevenue.org/prproposedregulations.html>.

This 60-day notice of the public hearing shall constitute a public comment period for the purpose of receiving written comments from the public on the proposed regulation. All interested parties may submit written public comments on the proposed regulation prior to the hearing to Erin Starr, Office of Policy and Research, Mills Building, 109 SW 9th St., Topeka, KS 66601 or through email at erin.l.starr@ks.gov.

All interested parties will be given a reasonable opportunity to present their views, either orally or in writing or both, concerning the adoption of the proposed regulation. In order to give all parties an opportunity to present their views, it may be necessary to request that each participant limit any oral presentation to five minutes.

Any individual with a disability may request accommodation in order to participate in the public hearing and may request the proposed regulation and economic impact statement in an accessible format. Requests for accommodation to participate in the hearing should be made at least five working days in advance of the hearing by contacting Erin Starr at 785-296-8042 or TTY 785-296-6461.

This regulation is proposed for adoption on a permanent basis. A summary of the proposed regulation and the economic impact follows:

Kansas Department of Revenue

Article 51. License Plates

Adoption of K.A.R. 92-51-34a. K.A.R. 92-51-34a provides for a one-year extension of the current license plate cycle.

Economic Impact:

The Kansas Department of Revenue anticipates the adoption of this regulation will prevent approximately \$5.0 million in costs associated with re-issuance of standard license plates for one year. Private business and individuals will not be impacted by this regulation.

Mark Burghart
Secretary

Doc. No. 049136

State of Kansas

Department for Aging and Disability Services

Notice of Hearing on Economic Impact of Proposed Administrative Regulations

A public hearing will be conducted at 1:00 p.m. Wednesday, June 2, 2021. Because of COVID-19 restrictions the hearing will be held virtually by Zoom, using Meeting ID 910 6400 5102 and password 5BVSpR.

At the hearing we will consider the economic impact of proposed administrative rules regarding the formation of crisis intervention centers. This notice of the public hearing shall constitute notice for the receipt of public comment about the costs of the proposed rules on both

public and private entities that might consider operating such centers. In addition to the public comment during the hearing, the department will consider written comments sent to the Kansas Department on Aging and Disability Services, Attn: Stephanie Volle, 503 S. Kansas Ave., Topeka, KS 66603 or by email to stephanie.volle1@ks.gov.

Written comment should include the cost of complying with the proposed regulations. All interested parties may submit written comments prior to 5:00 p.m. on the day of the hearing. There will be another public hearing regarding the text of the rule.

All interested parties will be given a reasonable opportunity to present their views orally regarding the economic impact of the proposed regulations during the public hearing. In order to provide all parties an opportunity to present their views, it may be necessary to request that each participant limit any oral presentation to five minutes. Any individual with a disability may request an accommodation in order to participate in the public hearing and may request the proposed regulations and economic impact statements in an accessible format. Requests for accommodation to participate in the hearing should be made at least five (5) working days in advance of the hearing by contacting Stephanie Volle at 785-296-0270 or stephanie.volle1@ks.gov.

Copies of the proposed regulations and the Economic Impact Statement for the proposed regulations can be viewed at https://kdads.ks.gov/docs/default-source/legal/crisis-intervention-centers-proposed-regulations.pdf?sfvrsn=147d0eee_4, or by contacting Stephanie Volle at 785-296-0270 or stephanie.volle1@ks.gov.

Laura Howard
Secretary

Doc. No. 049126

State of Kansas

Department of Wildlife, Parks and Tourism

Permanent Administrative Regulations

Article 3.—SMALL GAME

115-3-2. Rabbits, hares, and squirrels; legal equipment, taking methods, and possession. (a) Legal hunting equipment for rabbits, hares, and squirrels shall consist of the following:

(1) Firearms, except fully automatic rifles and handguns and except shotguns and muzzleloading shotguns larger than 10 gauge or using other than shot ammunition;

(2) pellet and BB guns;

(3) archery equipment;

(4) crossbows;

(5) falconry equipment;

(6) projectiles hand-thrown or propelled by a slingshot;

(7) box traps for rabbits and hares only;

(8) optical scopes or sights that project no visible light toward the target and do not electronically amplify visible or infrared light;

(9) lures, decoys except live decoys, and calls, including electric calls; and

(10) other equipment or methods as allowed by permit.

(b) The use of dogs, horses, and mules shall be permitted while hunting, but no person shall shoot while mounted on a horse or mule.

(c) Legal hours for the hunting and taking of rabbits, hares, and squirrels shall be from ½ hour before sunrise to sunset during established hunting seasons, except that legal hours for the running and box-trapping of rabbits and hares shall be 24 hours per day during established running seasons.

(d) Any type of apparel may be worn while hunting or running rabbits and hares.

(e) Legally taken rabbits, hares, and squirrels may be possessed without limit in time and may be given to another if accompanied by a dated written notice that includes the donor's printed name, signature, address, and permit or license number. The person receiving the meat shall retain the notice until the meat is consumed, given to another, or otherwise disposed of. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 32-807 and K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 32-1002; effective, T-115-7-27-89, July 27, 1989; effective Sept. 18, 1989; amended, T-115-12-28-89, Dec. 28, 1989; amended Jan. 22, 1990; amended Sept. 19, 1997; amended June 1, 2001; amended July 23, 2004; amended Feb. 18, 2005; amended April 26, 2019; amended May 28, 2021.)

Article 9.—LICENSES, PERMITS, STAMPS, AND OTHER DEPARTMENT ISSUES

115-9-6. Vehicle permits; display. (a) Except as provided in this regulation, each person who purchases a vehicle permit for entry into a state park or other area requiring a vehicle permit shall affix the permit to the lower corner of the windshield on the driver's side of the vehicle for which the vehicle permit was purchased.

(b) Annual vehicle permits shall be permanently affixed.

(c) Each vehicle permit purchased from an electronic permit kiosk shall be displayed within the vehicle for which the permit was purchased in an unobstructed manner to allow the text on the permit to be read from outside the vehicle. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 32-807; implementing K.S.A. 2020 Supp. 32-807 and 32-901; effective, T-115-7-27-89, July 27, 1989; effective Sept. 18, 1989; amended Feb. 20, 2015; amended May 28, 2021.)

Article 18.—SPECIAL PERMITS

115-18-13. This regulation shall be revoked on and after June 1, 2021. (Authorized by K.S.A. 32-807; implementing K.S.A. 32-807 and K.S.A. 32-1002; effective Aug. 15, 1994; amended Sept. 19, 1997; amended Sept. 25, 1998; amended Oct. 1, 1999; amended Sept. 22, 2000; amended Sept. 27, 2002; revoked June 1, 2021.)

Brad Loveless
Secretary

Doc. No. 049128

INDEX TO ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

This index lists in numerical order the new, amended, and revoked administrative regulations and the volume and page number of the *Kansas Register* issue in which more information can be found. Temporary regulations are designated with a (T) in the Action column. This cumulative index supplements the 2009 Volumes of the *Kansas Administrative Regulations* and the 2020 Supplement of the *Kansas Administrative Regulations*. Regulations can also be found at http://www.sos.ks.gov/pubs/pubs_kar.aspx.

AGENCY 4: DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Reg. No.	Action	Register
4-8-13	Amended	V. 40, p. 320
4-8-14a	Amended	V. 40, p. 320
4-8-27	Amended	V. 40, p. 320
4-8-28	Amended	V. 40, p. 320
4-8-29	Amended	V. 40, p. 320
4-8-30	Amended	V. 40, p. 320
4-8-31	Amended	V. 40, p. 320
4-8-32	Amended	V. 40, p. 320
4-8-33	Amended	V. 40, p. 320
4-8-34	Amended	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-35	Amended	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-36	Amended	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-37	Amended	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-38	Amended	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-39	Amended	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-40	Amended	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-41	Revoked	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-42	Revoked	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-43	Revoked	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-44	New	V. 40, p. 321
4-8-45	New	V. 40, p. 322
4-8-46	New	V. 40, p. 322
4-8-47	New	V. 40, p. 322
4-8-48	New	V. 40, p. 322
4-34-1	Amended	V. 40, p. 191
4-34-22	New	V. 39, p. 1578
4-34-23	New	V. 39, p. 1579
4-34-24	New	V. 39, p. 1580
4-34-25	New	V. 39, p. 1581
4-34-26	New	V. 39, p. 1581
4-34-27	New	V. 39, p. 1581
4-34-28	New	V. 39, p. 1582
4-34-29	New	V. 39, p. 1582
4-34-30	New	V. 39, p. 1583

AGENCY 7: SECRETARY OF STATE

Reg. No.	Action	Register
7-48-1	New	V. 40, p. 263

AGENCY 9: DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE—DIVISION OF ANIMAL HEALTH

Reg. No.	Action	Register
9-2-35	New	V. 39, p. 1358
9-3-9	Amended	V. 39, p. 1359

AGENCY 10: KANSAS BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Reg. No.	Action	Register
10-24-1	New (T)	V. 39, p. 732
10-24-1	New	V. 39, p. 1074
10-24-2	New (T)	V. 39, p. 732
10-24-2	New	V.39, p. 1074

10-24-3	New (T)	V. 39, p. 732
10-24-3	New	V. 39, p. 1075

AGENCY 11: DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE—DIVISION OF CONSERVATION

Reg. No.	Action	Register
11-9-5	Amended	V. 40, p. 427

AGENCY 16: ATTORNEY GENERAL

Reg. No.	Action	Register
16-14-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1155
16-14-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 1155
16-14-11	Amended	V. 39, p. 1155
16-19-1	New	V. 39, p. 208
16-19-2	New	V. 39, p. 208
16-19-3	New	V. 39, p. 208
16-20-1	New (T)	V. 39, p. 462
16-20-1	New	V. 39, p. 1075

AGENCY 17: OFFICE OF THE STATE BANK COMMISSIONER

Reg. No.	Action	Register
17-23-9	Revoked	V. 39, p. 146

AGENCY 21: HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION

Reg. No.	Action	Register
21-40-10	Revoked	V. 40, p. 265
21-41-1	Revoked	V. 40, p. 265
21-41-2	Amended	V. 40, p. 265
21-41-3	Amended	V. 40, p. 265
21-41-4	Revoked	V. 40, p. 265
21-41-6	Amended	V. 40, p. 265
21-41-8	Amended	V. 40, p. 265
21-41-10	Amended	V. 40, p. 265
21-41-11	Revoked	V. 40, p. 265

AGENCY 22: STATE FIRE MARSHAL

Reg. No.	Action	Register
22-26-1	New (T)	V. 40, p. 161
22-26-2	New (T)	V. 40, p. 162
22-26-3	New (T)	V. 40, p. 163
22-26-4	New (T)	V. 40, p. 163
22-26-5	New (T)	V. 40, p. 164
22-26-6	New (T)	V. 40, p. 164
22-26-7	New (T)	V. 40, p. 164
22-26-8	New (T)	V. 40, p. 164
22-26-9	New (T)	V. 40, p. 164
22-26-10	New (T)	V. 40, p. 165
22-26-11	New (T)	V. 40, p. 165
22-26-12	New (T)	V. 40, p. 165
22-26-13	New (T)	V. 40, p. 166
22-26-14	New (T)	V. 40, p. 166
22-26-15	New (T)	V. 40, p. 167
22-26-16	New (T)	V. 40, p. 167

AGENCY 26: DEPARTMENT FOR AGING AND DISABILITY SERVICES

Reg. No.	Action	Register
26-38-1	New	V. 39, p. 1155
26-38-2	New	V. 39, p. 1156
26-38-3	New	V. 39, p. 1157
26-38-4	New	V. 39, p. 1157
26-38-5	New	V. 39, p. 1157
26-38-6	New	V. 39, p. 1158
26-38-7	New	V. 39, p. 1158
26-38-8	New	V. 39, p. 1159
26-38-9	New	V. 39, p. 1160
26-38-10	New	V. 39, p. 1160
26-38-11	New	V. 39, p. 1160

AGENCY 28: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT

Reg. No.	Action	Register
28-1-40	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1018

28-1-40	New	V. 39, p. 1384
28-1-41	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1018
28-1-41	New	V. 39, p. 1384
28-1-42	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1018
28-1-42	New	V. 39, p. 1384
28-1-43	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1018
28-1-43	New	V. 39, p. 1385
28-1-44	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1019
28-1-44	New	V. 39, p. 1385
28-15-52	Amended	V. 39, p. 171
28-15-53	Amended	V. 39, p. 171
28-19-719	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1459
28-19-720	Amended	V. 39, p. 1459
28-24-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 336
28-24-2	Amended	V. 39, p. 336
28-24-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 336
28-24-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-8	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-9	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 338
28-24-11	Amended	V. 39, p. 338
28-24-12	Amended	V. 39, p. 338
28-24-13	Amended	V. 39, p. 339
28-24-14	Amended	V. 39, p. 339
28-38-18	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1160
28-38-19	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1160
28-38-20	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1160
28-38-21	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1160
28-38-22	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1161
28-38-23	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1161
28-38-26	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1161
28-38-28	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1161
28-38-29	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1161
28-38-30	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1161
28-44-12	Amended	V. 39, p. 819
28-44-13	Amended	V. 39, p. 819
28-44-14	Amended	V. 39, p. 819
28-44-15	Amended	V. 39, p. 820
28-44-16	Amended	V. 39, p. 820
28-44-17	Amended	V. 39, p. 820
28-44-18	Amended	V. 39, p. 821
28-44-19	Amended	V. 39, p. 821
28-44-20	Amended	V. 39, p. 821
28-44-21	Amended	V. 39, p. 821
28-44-22	Amended	V. 39, p. 822
28-44-23	Amended	V. 39, p. 822
28-44-24	Amended	V. 39, p. 822
28-44-25	Amended	V. 39, p. 822
28-44-26	Amended	V. 39, p. 823
28-44-27	Amended	V. 39, p. 823
28-44-28	Revoked	V. 39, p. 824
28-44-29	Amended	V. 39, p. 824
28-44-30	New	V. 39, p. 825
28-44-31	New	V. 39, p. 825
28-65-1	Amended	V. 40, p. 318
28-65-2	Amended	V. 40, p. 318
28-65-3	Amended	V. 40, p. 318
28-65-4	Amended	V. 40, p. 319

AGENCY 36: KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Reg. No.	Action	Register
36-45-1	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1104
36-45-1	New	V. 39, p. 1490
36-45-2	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1105
36-45-2	New	V. 39, p. 1491
36-45-3	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1105
36-45-3	New	V. 39, p. 1491
36-45-4	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1106
36-45-4	New	V. 39, p. 1491
36-45-5	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1106
36-45-5	New	V. 39, p. 1492
36-45-6	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1106

36-45-6	New	V. 39, p. 1492
36-45-7	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1106
36-45-7	New	V. 39, p. 1492
36-45-8	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1107
36-45-8	New	V. 39, p. 1493
36-45-10	New (T)	V. 39, p. 1108
36-45-10	New	V. 39, p. 1494

AGENCY 40: INSURANCE DEPARTMENT

Reg. No.	Action	Register
40-1-28	Amended	V. 40, p. 191
40-1-52	New	V. 40, p. 191

AGENCY 60: BOARD OF NURSING

Reg. No.	Action	Register
60-11-116	Amended	V. 39, p. 1021
60-11-119	Amended	V. 39, p. 1022
60-13-110	Amended	V. 39, p. 1022
60-16-101	Amended	V. 39, p. 12
60-16-103	Amended	V. 39, p. 12
60-16-104	Amended	V. 39, p. 13

AGENCY 61: BOARD OF BARBERING

Reg. No.	Action	Register
61-4-3	New	V. 40, p. 161

AGENCY 66: BOARD OF TECHNICAL PROFESSIONS

Reg. No.	Action	Register
66-6-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1425
66-6-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 1426
66-7-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1427
66-8-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 1427
66-8-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 1427
66-9-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 1427
66-10-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 1427
66-10-9	Amended	V. 39, p. 1428
66-10-10b	Amended	V. 39, p. 1428
66-10-10c	New	V. 39, p. 1428
66-10-12	Amended	V. 39, p. 1428
66-10-13	Amended	V. 39, p. 1429
66-11-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 1429
66-12-1	Amended	V. 40, p. 670
66-14-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1429
66-14-2	Amended	V. 39, p. 1430
66-14-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 1430
66-14-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 1430
66-14-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 1431
66-14-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 1431
66-14-8	Amended	V. 39, p. 1431
66-14-9	Amended	V. 39, p. 1431
66-14-10	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1431
66-14-11	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1431
66-14-12	Amended	V. 39, p. 1431
66-15-1	New	V. 39, p. 14

AGENCY 68: BOARD OF PHARMACY

Reg. No.	Action	Register
68-2-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 105
68-5-16	Amended	V. 39, p. 106

AGENCY 69: BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY

Reg. No.	Action	Register
69-3-8	Amended (T)	V. 39, p. 1186
69-3-8	Amended	V. 39, p. 1583

AGENCY 70: BOARD OF VETERINARY EXAMINERS

Reg. No.	Action	Register
70-5-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1495

AGENCY 74: BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY

Reg. No.	Action	Register
74-1-3	Amended	V. 38, p. 1337

AGENCY 82: STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Reg. No.	Action	Register
82-4-3a	Amended (T)	V. 39, p. 1188
82-4-3a	Amended	V. 39, p. 1608
82-4-30a	Amended (T)	V. 39, p. 1383
82-4-30a	Amended	V. 40, p. 160

AGENCY 86: REAL ESTATE COMMISSION

Reg. No.	Action	Register
86-1-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 54
86-1-11	Amended	V. 39, p. 55
86-1-12	Amended	V. 39, p. 56
86-1-13	Revoked	V. 39, p. 56
86-1-16	Revoked	V. 39, p. 56
86-1-17	Amended	V. 39, p. 56
86-1-18	Revoked	V. 39, p. 56
86-3-6a	Revoked	V. 39, p. 56
86-3-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 56
86-3-10	Amended	V. 40, p. 497
86-3-18	Amended	V. 40, 497
86-3-20	Revoked	V. 39, p. 57
86-3-21	Revoked	V. 40, p. 498
86-3-22	Amended	V. 40, p. 498

AGENCY 88: BOARD OF REGENTS

Reg. No.	Action	Register
88-10-1	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-10-2	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-10-3	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-10-4	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-10-5	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-10-6	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-10-7	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-10-8	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-10-10	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-10-12	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-1	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-2	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-3	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-4	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-5	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-6	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-7	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-8	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-9	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-11	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-11-12	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1270
88-25-1	New	V. 39, p. 748
88-25-2	New	V. 39, p. 748
88-25-3	New	V. 39, p. 748
88-25-4	New	V. 39, p. 748
88-25-5	New	V. 39, p. 748
88-29-1	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1215
88-29-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 1215
88-29-11	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1216
88-29-12	Amended	V. 39, p. 1216
88-29-13	Amended	V. 39, p. 1216
88-29-14	Amended	V. 39, p. 1218
88-29-15	Amended	V. 39, p. 1218
88-29-16	Amended	V. 39, p. 1219
88-29-17	Amended	V. 39, p. 1220
88-29-18	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1221
88-29-19	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1221
88-29a-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1221
88-29a-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 1223
88-29a-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 1223
88-29a-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 1223
88-29a-7a	Amended	V. 39, p. 1224

88-29a-9	Amended	V. 39, p. 1224
88-29a-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 1225
88-29a-11	Amended	V. 39, p. 1227
88-29a-18	Amended	V. 39, p. 1228
88-29a-19	Amended	V. 39, p. 1229
88-29b-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1229
88-29b-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 1231
88-29b-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 1231
88-29b-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 1232
88-29b-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 1233
88-29b-7a	Amended	V. 39, p. 1234
88-29b-9	Amended	V. 39, p. 1234
88-29b-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 1235
88-29c-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1236
88-29c-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 1238
88-29c-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 1238
88-29c-9	Amended	V. 39, p. 1238
88-29c-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 1239
88-29d-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1240
88-29d-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 1241
88-29d-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 1242
88-29d-9	Amended	V. 39, p. 1242
88-29d-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 1243
88-30-1	Amended (T)	V. 39, p. 890
88-30-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1269
88-30-2	Amended	V. 39, p. 1270

AGENCY 92: DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Reg. No.	Action	Register
92-19-47	Revoked	V. 40, p. 290
92-19-67	Revoked	V. 40, p. 290

AGENCY 100: BOARD OF HEALING ARTS

Reg. No.	Action	Register
100-6-2	Amended	V. 40, p. 571
100-6-2a	New	V. 40, p. 290
100-7-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1359
100-8-3	New	V. 40, p. 572
100-15-4	Amended	V. 40, p. 572
100-15-5	Amended	V. 40, p. 573
100-76-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 1360
100-78-1	New (T)	V. 39, p. 250
100-78-1	New	V. 39, p. 570
100-78-2	New (T)	V. 39, p. 250
100-78-2	New	V. 39, p. 570

AGENCY 105: BOARD OF INDIGENTS' DEFENSE SERVICES

Reg. No.	Action	Register
105-5-2	Amended	V. 39, p. 252
105-5-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 252
105-5-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 252
105-5-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 252
105-5-8	Amended	V. 39, p. 252

AGENCY 109: BOARD OF EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

Reg. No.	Action	Register
109-3-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 30
109-3-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 31
109-5-1a	Amended	V. 39, p. 32
109-11-1a	Amended	V. 39, p. 32

AGENCY 111: KANSAS LOTTERY

A complete index listing all regulations filed by the Kansas Lottery from 1988 through 2000 can be found in the Vol. 19, No. 52, December 28, 2000 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2001 through 2003 can be found in the Vol. 22, No. 52, December 25, 2003 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2004 through 2005 can be found in the Vol. 24, No. 52, December 29, 2005 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2006 through 2007

can be found in the Vol. 26, No. 52, December 27, 2007 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2008 through November 2009 can be found in the Vol. 28, No. 53, December 31, 2009 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from December 1, 2009, through December 21, 2011, can be found in the Vol. 30, No. 52, December 29, 2011 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from December 22, 2011, through November 6, 2013, can be found in the Vol. 32, No. 52, December 26, 2013 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from November 7, 2013, through December 31, 2015, can be found in the Vol. 34, No. 53, December 31, 2015 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2016 through 2017, can be found in the Vol. 36, No. 52, December 28, 2017 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2018 through 2019, can be found in the Vol. 38, No. 52, December 26, 2019 *Kansas Register*.

Reg. No.	Action	Register
111-2-328	New	V. 39, p. 1460
111-4-3595	New	V. 39, p. 57
111-4-3596	New	V. 39, p. 58
111-4-3597	New	V. 39, p. 59
111-4-3598	New	V. 39, p. 60
111-4-3599	New	V. 39, p. 61
111-4-3600	New	V. 39, p. 63
111-4-3601	New	V. 39, p. 532
111-4-3602	New	V. 39, p. 533
111-4-3603	New	V. 39, p. 570
111-4-3604	New	V. 39, p. 572
111-4-3605	New	V. 39, p. 573
111-4-3606	New	V. 39, p. 574
111-4-3607	New	V. 39, p. 576
111-4-3608	New	V. 39, p. 621
111-4-3609	New	V. 39, p. 623
111-4-3610	New	V. 39, p. 624
111-4-3611	New	V. 39, p. 854
111-4-3612	New	V. 39, p. 855
111-4-3613	New	V. 39, p. 856
111-4-3614	New	V. 39, p. 858
111-4-3615	New	V. 39, p. 859
111-4-3616	New	V. 39, p. 860
111-4-3617	New	V. 39, p. 861
111-4-3618	New	V. 39, p. 862
111-4-3619	New	V. 39, p. 862
111-4-3620	New	V. 39, p. 864
111-4-3621	New	V. 39, p. 865
111-4-3623	New	V. 39, p. 866
111-4-3624	New	V. 39, p. 891
111-4-3625	New	V. 39, p. 892
111-4-3626	New	V. 39, p. 893
111-4-3627	New	V. 39, p. 894
111-4-3628	New	V. 39, p. 896
111-4-3629	New	V. 39, p. 897
111-4-3630	New	V. 39, p. 900
111-4-3631	New	V. 39, p. 1076
111-4-3632	New	V. 39, p. 1077
111-4-3633	New	V. 39, p. 1109
111-4-3634	New	V. 39, p. 1109
111-4-3635	New	V. 39, p. 1110
111-4-3636	New	V. 39, p. 1111
111-4-3637	New	V. 39, p. 1113
111-4-3638	New	V. 39, p. 1114
111-4-3639	New	V. 39, p. 1333
111-4-3640	New	V. 39, p. 1334

111-4-3641	New	V. 39, p. 1335
111-4-3642	New	V. 39, p. 1336
111-4-3643	New	V. 39, p. 1404
111-4-3644	New	V. 39, p. 1460
111-4-3645	New	V. 39, p. 1462
111-4-3646	New	V. 39, p. 1463
111-4-3647	New	V. 39, p. 1465
111-4-3648	New	V. 39, p. 1466
111-4-3649	New	V. 40, p. 40
111-4-3650	New	V. 40, p. 41
111-4-3651	New	V. 40, p. 192
111-4-3652	New	V. 40, p. 193
111-4-3653	New	V. 40, p. 194
111-4-3654	New	V. 40, p. 196
111-4-3655	New	V. 40, p. 197
111-4-3656	New	V. 40, p. 199
111-4-3657	New	V. 40, p. 427
111-4-3658	New	V. 40, p. 573
111-4-3659	New	V. 40, p. 575
111-4-3660	New	V. 40, p. 576
111-5-223	Amended	V. 40, p. 428
111-5-245	New	V. 39, p. 577
111-5-246	New	V. 40, p. 429
111-9-223	New	V. 39, p. 625
111-9-224	New	V. 39, p. 867
111-9-225	New	V. 40, p. 578
111-15-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1405
111-15-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 1080
111-15-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 1081
111-15-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 1081
111-15-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 1081
111-15-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 1082
111-19-72	Amended	V. 39, p. 64
111-19-73	New	V. 39, p. 64
111-19-74	New	V. 39, p. 65
111-19-75	New	V. 39, p. 65
111-19-76	New	V. 39, p. 74
111-19-77	New	V. 39, p. 578
111-19-78	New	V. 39, p. 579
111-19-79	New	V. 39, p. 580
111-19-80	New	V. 39, p. 626
111-19-81	New	V. 39, p. 626
111-19-82	New	V. 39, p. 868
111-19-83	New	V. 39, p. 868
111-19-84	New	V. 39, p. 868
111-19-85	New	V. 39, p. 869
111-19-86	New	V. 39, p. 870
111-19-87	New	V. 39, p. 901
111-19-88	New	V. 39, p. 901
111-19-89	New	V. 39, p. 1082
111-19-90	New	V. 39, p. 1115
111-19-91	New	V. 39, p. 1116
111-19-92	New	V. 39, p. 1116
111-19-93	New	V. 39, p. 1337
111-19-94	New	V. 39, p. 1405
111-19-95	New	V. 39, p. 1405
111-19-96	New	V. 39, p. 1406
111-19-97	New	V. 40, p. 42
111-19-98	New	V. 40, p. 43
111-19-99	New	V. 40, p. 44
111-19-100	New	V. 40, p. 200
111-19-101	New	V. 40, p. 430
111-19-102	New	V. 40, p. 578
111-19-103	New	V. 40, p. 579
111-301-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 534
111-301-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 534
111-301-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 535

111-301-43	Amended	V. 39, p. 537
111-301-60	Amended	V. 39, p. 66
111-301-62	Amended	V. 39, p. 67
111-301-64	Amended	V. 39, p. 538
111-301-66	Amended	V. 39, p. 538
111-301-72	New	V. 39, p. 1338
111-301-73	New	V. 39, p. 1338
111-301-74	New	V. 39, p. 1338
111-301-75	New	V. 39, p. 1338
111-301-76	New	V. 39, p. 1339
111-302-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 68
111-302-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 1082
111-305-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 539
111-305-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 539
111-401-253	New	V. 39, p. 69
111-401-254	New	V. 39, p. 69
111-401-255	New	V. 39, p. 71
111-501-71	Amended	V. 39, p. 1340
111-501-81	Amended	V. 39, p. 1340
111-501-105	Amended	V. 40, p. 430
111-501-107	Amended	V. 40, p. 431
111-501-108	Amended	V. 40, p. 431
111-501-109	Amended	V. 40, p. 431
111-501-149	New	V. 39, p. 72
111-501-150	New	V. 39, p. 72
111-501-151	New	V. 39, p. 73
111-501-152	New	V. 39, p. 73
111-501-153	New	V. 39, p. 74
111-601-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 1117
111-601-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 1117
111-601-35	Amended	V. 40, p. 580

AGENCY 112: KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION

Reg. No.	Action	Register
112-105-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 251

AGENCY 115: DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE, PARKS AND TOURISM

Reg. No.	Action	Register
115-1-1	Amended	V. 40, p. 498
115-2-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1525
115-4-2	Amended	V. 39, p. 617
115-4-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 618
115-4-4a	Amended	V. 39, p. 1527
115-4-6	Amended	V. 40, p. 500
115-5-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1103
115-6-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 1103
115-7-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 1528
115-7-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 1528
115-14-12	Amended	V. 39, p. 1271
115-14-13	Amended	V. 39, p. 1273
115-14-14	Amended	V. 39, p. 1275
115-18-7	Revoked	V. 39, p. 1528
115-18-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 1528
115-18-12	Amended	V. 39, p. 1529

AGENCY 129: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT—DIVISION OF HEALTH CARE FINANCE

Reg. No.	Action	Register
129-6-103	Amended	V. 39, p. 1557
129-9-9	New (T)	V. 39, p. 647
129-9-9	New	V. 39, p. 1019
129-10-31	Amended	V. 39, p. 800

Kansas Register
Secretary of State
1st Floor, Memorial Hall
120 SW 10th Ave.
Topeka, KS 66612-1594
